XINDA INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREEZERERAT

(formerly known as “LONGITECH SMART ENERGY HOLDING LIMITED”

A EERANE 2 RIERER AT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability 7528 EFMEIIHERAF)
Stock Code A& A 1X55% = 1281

Annual
Report
2022

£ 37




H$% Contents

Corporate Information
sEwE | 02

Chairman’s Statement

ERHEE 04

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERES 06

Directors and Senior Management

EEREREER 14

Report of Directors

EEERE 18

Corporate Governance Report

PEELEE 42

Independent Auditor’s Report
WimmEs | 67

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
SaEa%R 75

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
gazmkas | °

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

GARBKAE 7

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
wausenx | 7°

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GaneRER 80

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SaMEmEmME 81

Financial Summary

:\ HERE 180 ~




02

Corporate Information

LATFEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Director
Mr. Wei Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wei Shaojun (Resigned on 24 June 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Han Qinchun

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

Mr. Han Xiaoping (Resigned on 8 July 2022)

Mr. Feng Zhidong (Appointed with effect on 7 October 2022)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John (Chairman)

Dr. Han Qinchun

Mr. Han Xiaoping (Resigned on 8 July 2022)

Mr. Feng Zhidong (Appointed with effect on 7 October 2022)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Han Qinchun (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John
Mr. Wei Qiang

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wei Qiang (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

Mr. Han Xiaoping (Resigned on 8 July 2022)

Mr. Feng Zhidong (Appointed with effect on 7 October 2022)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wei Qiang
Ms. Zou Yanhong

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zou Yanhong

LEGAL ADVISOR

As to Hong Kong law:
FANGDA PARTNERS

26/F, One Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
25/F, Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Centre
Hong Kong

XINDA INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022

Exg

HITES

B3 55 4k (TR HRITHADRL)

FHITES
ROFRE(ER-F=—FAH =+ 0AFHE)

BYFHITES

BREE L

mREALAE
BETYE4C(ER-_ZE-—F+H/\AEF)
BEREER T —F+ALHEZTIWERN)

BEREEE

BRBEE(EE)

BRAEWBL
BEFTRE(ER-_F-—FLANHET)
BEREERZFEZZF A+ HEZHENER)

BMWEES
BEEWL (TR

HREAKE
ekt

REZES

Bonskd (X/E)

=FERLA
BELELE (AR —F+ A\ AEHF)
BEREE(R-ZE- —FE+ H+AES(FIL4H)

REAXR

ekt
WA+

NCIE
PR L L

EEEE

EB LR
FEEMEBR
a5

IR
44 FE 35 8 5%

X5 E 51826412

B 2L Em

EANEEZSAMELTERDQA
HEDEED

BB

FHEPI115

K L2254



REGISTERED OFFICE

Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC

Longjitaihe Industrial Park
66 Dongfang Road
Gaobeidian City

Hebei Province

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 1231, 12/F China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road,

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

QOcorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Development Bank

Bank of China

Industrial & Commercial Bank of China
China Minsheng Bank

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.longitech.hk

STOCK CODE

1281 (Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited)

LFE#H

AfMERE

Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

B AR

& B

Ieivk)

= 8 JE T

R 77 BE 6655
EERMIXE

BERETBREREMR

BB

BT

7 V& T8 26 55
FEHAREI2IE1231F

HEHEROVBFERCHAE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

BEERNDEBFERTE

SEBFBELERAA
i

BERIEB165
BEREEPOITE

FEFREBT
Bl f 3R 1T

P EERTT

B TR
FERERTT

NGIEER S

www.longitech.hk

IR A3 X 5%

1281 (BEBERSABER AR ER)

BERBERERAT  Fik 2022

03



04

Chairman’s Statement

EREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Xinda
Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”), | hereby present the annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”)
to all shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

2022 was a year of turbulence and change with great power game,
geopolitics and impact of the pandemic, and the world was caught in a
dilemma between controlling inflation and stabilizing growth. However,
vigorous development of renewable energy sources has become the
dominant direction and concerted action of the global energy revolution
and the response to climate change, and renewable energy sources,
especially wind power generation and solar power generation, has shown a
rapid development momentum. In 2022, the newly installed and total
installed capacity of solar power generation in the world and China reached
another new record high.

In 2022, due to continuous sharp rise in the price of polycrystalline silicon,
the prices of domestic photovoltaic components and raw materials
continued to increase. With very low profit margin of the sales and
installation business of household solar power generation systems that the
Group was originally engaged in, the Group has suspended the expansion
of related business after comprehensive consideration. Meanwhile, the
investment in the Group’s Baoding Donghu PPP project also decreased
due to the overall downturn in the domestic real estate industry.

During the Reporting Period, the Group realised a revenue of
RMB195,209,000, representing a decrease of approximately 57.8% as
compared to the same period of last year, and a loss attributable to owners
of the Company of RMB306,368,000, which increased significantly as
compared to the same period of last year, mainly attributable to (i) during
the Reporting Period, as an associate made significant amount of provision
on impairment loss for its certain other receivables from the property
developer, the Group recognised a net loss of approximately
RMB265,854,000 (same period of 2021: recognition of net profit of
RMB2,457,000) for the associate accounted for using equity method; and (ii)
due to the deterioration of operating environment, the Group made
provisions on impairment loss of approximately RMB15,272,000 for part of
financial assets for the Reporting Period, compared with reversal of
impairment losses of approximately RMB5,735,000 for the same period of
2021.
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OUTLOOK

In 2023, the global economic recovery will face great pressure, and China’s
economy will also experience a gradual recovery after the adjustment of the
pandemic policy, but it still faces a series of challenges. Under the guidance
of dual carbon goals and construction of an energy security system, there
is stil a huge space for the development of green, low-carbon and
renewable energy sources in China with further in-depth development.
Meanwhile, with more and more enterprises tapping into the field of new
energy, the market competition will become increasingly fierce. In 2023,
with prudent financial management and cost control measures, the Group
will continue to operate and develop its business in a pragmatic manner
and seek suitable investment and development opportunities to explore
business development opportunities that benefit the Group.

APPRECIATION

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | hereby extend my sincere gratitude to all
Shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers and business associates for
their continued support. | would also like to thank all employees for their
tireless efforts and contribution in 2022.

Wei Qiang
Chairman

28 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBIWERS

OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in smart energy business with focus on
the possession and operation of solar power plants and public
infrastructure construction business in relation to the Baoding Donghu PPP
project, with gradual expansion and diversification to other clean energy
businesses.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a revenue of
RMB195,209,000 (same period of 2021: RMB462,642,000), representing
a decrease of approximately 57.8% as compared to the same period of
last year, which was primarily attributable to the Group’s significant
decrease of sales of household solar power generation systems during the
Reporting Period and the decrease in investment in the Baoding Donghu
project as compared to the same period of last year. Loss attributable to
owners of the Company was RMB306,368,000 (same period of 2021: loss
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB28,221,000). The substantial
increase in loss was mainly attributable to (among others): (i) affected by
the dramatic adjustment of the domestic real estate industry, an associate
of the Group made a relatively significant amount of provision on
impairment loss for its certain other receivables held by the associate from
the property developers for the Reporting Period. For this reason, the
Group recognised a net loss of approximately RMB265,854,000 for the
associate accounted for using the equity method for the Reporting Period,
compared with net profit of approximately RMB2,457,000 for the same
period of 2021; and (i) due to the deterioration of operating environment,
the Group made provisions on impairment loss of approximately
RMB15,272,000 for part of financial assets for the Reporting Period,
compared with reversal of impairment losses of approximately
RMB5,735,000 for the same period of 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Smart Energy Business

The Group’s smart energy business, positioned as comprehensive energy
services for the user side, mainly serves to meet the demands from
customers in industrial, commercial and residential sectors as well as public
institutions. The Group provides its customers with a full range of smart
energy comprehensive utilisation services based on various energy sources
including electricity, heat and gas by leveraging on its smart energy cloud
platform, to help customers improve their energy utilisation efficiency and
reduce energy consumption cost, whereby building a diversified, clean and
low-carbon energy supply system.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group works to realise the above business objectives by integrating its
energy systems with internet technology. On one hand, the Group acquires
premium energy assets and projects by expanding its offline business in
comprehensive energy supply such as electricity, heat and gas, and
generates stable operation and investment returns from operating and
managing such assets. On the other hand, the Group uploads the real-time
data of electricity, heat and gas consumption of its industrial and
commercial enterprises and residential users to the Cloud Platform,
integrates and analyses such big data, and taps into the energy
consumption potential of customers, so as to provide them with other
industrial chain services, including multi-energy complementation of
electricity, heat and gas, smart operation and maintenance, energy trade,
and energy efficiency analysis.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s smart energy business mainly
represented the possession and operation of solar power plants, including
the possession and operation of 11 existing solar power plants with an
installed capacity of approximately 64 megawatts (MW), and the
possession and operation of new 18 MW household solar power plants
during the year. During the Reporting Period, the total power generation
capacity of the existing solar power plants and the new household solar
power plants was approximately 108,780 MWh, and the total power
generation revenue was RMB73,486,000 (same period of 2021:
RMB63,457,000). In terms of household solar power generation business,
as the price of photovoltaic raw materials continued to rise during the
Reporting Period, the profit margin of the sales and installation of the
household solar power generation systems has become very low. Except
for the disposal of backlog inventory, the Group has suspended the sales
and installation of the household solar power generation systems.
Meanwhile, the Group’s transformer station can provide power supply and
related value-added services in Hefeng Industrial Park in Xinjiang, which
was subject to the settlement of enterprises in the park.

During the Reporting Period, the smart energy business contributed
approximately RMB104,262,000 (same period of 2021: RMB316,898,000)
to the Group’s revenue, representing a decrease of approximately 67.1%
as compared to the same period of last year, which was primarily
attributable to the Group’s significant decrease of sales of household solar
power generation systems during the Reporting Period. Loss for the
Reporting Period amounted to RMB304,018,000 (same period of 2021:
loss of RMB28,016,000).
attributable to the Group’s recognition of a net loss of approximately
RMB265,854,000 for the associate accounted for using equity method and
provisions on impairment losses of approximately RMB15,272,000 for part
of financial assets as a result of the deterioration of operating environment
during the Reporting Period.

Such increase in the loss was primarily
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEWE S

Public Infrastructure Construction Business

The public infrastructure construction business refers to the construction
and related preliminary investment and post-construction, operation and
management of public infrastructure under the Baoding Donghu Project in
Baoding City of Hebei Province. During the Reporting Period, the public
infrastructure construction business contributed approximately
RMB90,947,000 (same period of 2021: RMB145,744,000) to the Group’s
revenue. Profit for the Reporting Period amounted to approximately
RMB818,000 (same period of 2021: RMB2,684,000). The decrease in both
revenue and profit was primarily attributable to the decreased investment
due to the sluggish domestic real estate industry.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In 2023, China’s economy will experience economic recovery after the
adjustment of pandemic prevention policies, strategic opportunities and
risk challenges co-exist. Under the support of the goal of carbon peak and
carbon neutralization, new energy has ushered in a new cycle for full speed
development, and is moving towards the direction of main energy. As the
main force of new energy, the investment and development of solar power
generation have also entered a feverish stage, the market competition has
become increasingly fierce, and the industrial concentration has been
further enhanced. In the face of fierce market competition, we will continue
to operate and develop our business in a pragmatic manner in 2023,
consolidate the operation and management level of the existing solar power
plants, tap our potentials and continue to reduce the operating costs and
management costs of the power plants. Meanwhile, on the basis of the
existing businesses, we will proactively explore and develop other clean
energy business suitable for the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Gross Profit

The Group’s revenue and gross profit for the Reporting Period amounted
to RMB195,209,000 (same period of 2021: RMB462,642,000) and
RMB50,576,000 (same period of 2021: RMB87,654,000), respectively. The
gross profit margin was 25.9% (same period of 2021: 18.9%).

The decrease in revenue as compared to the same period of last year was
primarily attributable to the significant decrease in sales revenue of
household solar power generation systems and the decrease in investment
in public infrastructure construction projects during the Reporting Period.
The increase in gross profit margin as compared to the same period of last
year was primarily attributable to a decrease in proportion of sales of
household solar power generation systems.
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Management Discussion and Analy5|s

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group incurred selling and distribution expenses of RMB2,153,000
during the Reporting Period (same period of 2021: RMB18,242,000),
representing a decrease of 88.2% as compared to last year, which was
primarily attributable to the decrease in related selling and distribution
expenses as a result of the decrease of sales of household solar power
generation systems during the Reporting Period.

Administrative Expenses

The Group incurred administrative expenses of RMB32,582,000 during the
Reporting Period (same period of 2021: RMB63,622,000), representing a
decrease of 48.8% as compared to last year, which was primarily
attributable to lower management fees as a result of the downsizing of its
business.

Impairment Losses/Reversal of Impairment
Losses on Financial Assets

During the Reporting Period, the Group made impairment losses on
financial assets of RMB15,272,000 (same period of 2021:
impairment losses of RMB5,735,000), primarily attributable to provisions on
impairment losses for part of trade receivables as a results of the
deterioration of operating environment.

reversal of

Finance Expenses — Net

Net finance expenses amounted to RMB4,442,000 for the Reporting
Period (same period of 2021: RMB6,290,000), representing a decrease of
29.4% as compared to last year. Such decrease was primarily attributable
to the decrease in borrowings.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense amounted to RMB31,875,000 for the Reporting Period
(same period of 2021: income tax expense of RMB38,873,000),
representing a decrease in the expense of 18.0% as compared to last year,
which was primarily attributable to the decrease in derecognition of
deferred income tax assets in the current period as compared to the same
period of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEWE S

Share of Net (Loss)/Profit of Associate Accounted
for Using the Equity Method

Affected by the dramatic adjustment of the domestic real estate industry,
an associate of the Group made a relatively significant amount of provision
on impairment loss for its certain other receivables held by the associate
from the property developers for the Reporting Period. For this reason, the
Group recognised a net loss of approximately RMB265,854,000 for the
associate accounted for using the equity method for the Reporting Period
(same period of 2021: recognition of a net profit of RMB2,457,000).

In order to safeguard the legal rights and interests of the Company, the
Company has requested the controlling shareholder of the associate to
provide a charge over the property in favor of the Company to secure the
legal rights and interests of the Company in that associate. The preliminary
appraised value of relevant property under charge is approximately
RMB260,000,000. The Directors and the management of the Company will
continue to monitor the operation of that associate. If feasible, the
Company will take relevant measures (including but not limited to legal
actions) to protect the legitimate rights and interests of the Company.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

Cash position

As at 31 December 2022, bank balances and cash amounted to
approximately RMB213,198,000 (31 December 2021: RMB240,661,000),
of which approximately RMB7,817,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB18,341,000) was restricted bank balances (mainly used for the
expenses incurred under the Baoding Donghu Project). Such decrease in
bank balances and cash was primarily attributable to partial payment of the
project and equipment.

Total current assets and current ratio

As at 31 December 2022, total current assets and current ratio (total
current assets/total current liabilities) were approximately RMB629,170,000
(81 December 2021: RMB728,627,000) and 6.05 (31 December 2021: 6.24),
respectively. The decrease in total current assets was primarily attributable
to a decrease in financial assets at amortized cost and the decrease in
current ratio was the result of a decrease in current assets.
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Management Discussion and Analy5|s

External borrowings and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had external borrowings of
RMB186,300,000 (31 December 2021: RMB211,000,000), of which
RMB186,300,000 was secured by certain machinery at solar power plants
with a carrying amount of RMB246,991,000 and the collection rights of
future receivables of certain subsidiaries (831 December 2021:
RMB211,000,000 was secured by certain machinery at solar power plants
with a carrying amount of RMB266,055,000 and the collection rights of
future receivables of certain subsidiaries).

Gearing Ratio

The table below sets forth the calculation of gearing ratio of the Group as
at the dates indicated:

THEWESH

HREEREEEH

RZFEZZF+ZA=+—8 XEEII
& Z A AR #186,300,000L(— T - —F+ =
A=+ —H8: AR®211,000,0007T) & A
R #186,300,000t LA E THREEEAARKE
246,991,000 7T K ¢ 1K B Uh 4 & = T i B A &)
ZARREWRIE 2 W IBIERR(ZEZ—
FH+ZA=+—H: AKR%211,000,0007C A &

T EEmE EE A AR 266,055,000 7T H Y K E vk
WA & T BB A B 2 AR K R IR TE 2 W SR
EIEER) -

BERR

TREJAEERMAEHNEBLENGE:

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
+t=A=+-8B +=-A=+-8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBTT
Bank loans IRITER 186,300 211,000
Lease liabilities HEAaRE 13,162 12,737
Less: Cash and cash equivalents WIRERIREEED (205,381) (222,320)
Restricted cash 2R IR & (7,817) (18,341)
Net (cash) (R&) 58 (13,736) (16,924)
Total equity AR 866,298 1,171,591
Total capital (Net (cash) plus total equity) BAR(RE)FEMERERE) 852,562 1,154,667
Gearing ratio (Net debt/total capital) BELR(EBFE BEXR) N/A N/A
TiE A T iEA
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s net debt was negative, whichwas R-E-—F+-_HF=+—HB A&EE &%
primarily attributable to the repayment of loans and the partial recovery of % %8

financial assets at amortised cost during the Reporting Period.

The proportion of long-term and short-term debts was 66.8% and 33.2%,
respectively (as at 31 December 2021: 64.4% and 35.6%), of which the
borrowings of RMB186,300,000 in respect of solar power plants were
gradually repaid by the proceeds from electricity sales. Therefore, the
Group was not exposed to any significant insolvency risk.

REBE RAXEAAREHHEERER
Bl Ef D REEK AT ENSREEM -

R ANE 1% B 58 Hi & 75 & 1566.8% 1. 33.2% ( é_
T —F+-A=+—H 644%K%356%)  H
H o KB BE B I fE A R #5186,300,000 7T LA &
EMBECESEE WASETEABRERX
EERR -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEWE S

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from external borrowings.
During the Reporting Period, the external borrowings, which mainly
represent bank borrowings for solar power plants, bear interests at rates
ranging from 5.39% to 5.63% per annum (same period of 2021: 5.39% to
5.63% per annum). The interest rates applicable to borrowings of solar
power plants were charged at the lending rate of the People’s Bank of
China for the same period plus 10% to 15%, with risk derived from the
changes in China’s policy on interest rate, but the Group expects the
impact of the interest rate risk on the Group’s consolidated profit or loss to
be insignificant.

Exchange Rate Risk

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in the PRC, the Group’s
transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi, which is not freely
convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
involving Renminbi must take place through the People’s Bank of China or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchanges. The
exchange rates adopted for foreign exchange transactions are the rates of
exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China that are determined
largely by supply and demand.

The Group currently does not have a policy on foreign currency risk as it
had minimal transactions denominated in foreign currencies during the
Reporting Period, and the impact of foreign currency risk on the Group’s
operation is minimal.

Investment Commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had investment commitments of
RMB101,600,000 (831 December 2021: RMB101,600,000), which were
mainly the Group’s obligations of capital contribution to its associate
Longyao (Beijing) Clean Energy Technology Company Limited* (£ #2(1k )
B BELRREH AR A 7)) that shall be fulfilled by 31 December 2025. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 31 December 2021 for
details.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2021: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analy5|s

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, INVESTMENT
AND DISPOSAL

Material Acquisition and Investment

The Group had no material acquisition and investment during the Reporting
Period.

Material Disposal

The Group had no material disposal during the Reporting Period.

COUNTER-GUARANTEE

On 19 May 2022, Hebei Longitech Cloud Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Cloud Energy”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a counter-guarantee agreement with a guarantor company, pursuant to
which Cloud Energy shall provide the guarantor company with a total
amount of security deposits no more than RMB30 million as counter-
guarantees for the guarantees provided by the guarantor company to the
bank for the benefits of customers.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 19
May 2022.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group had 62 employees as at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: 80 employees). Such decrease in the number of employees was
primarily due to the downsized expansion of the Group’s household solar
power generation systems business. Employees are remunerated
according to the nature of their positions, individual qualification,
performance, work experience and market trends, and subject to periodic
reviews based on their performance. Meanwhile, to attract and retain high-
caliber employees to ensure smooth operation and accommodate the
continued expansion of the Group, the Group offers competitive
remuneration and benefit packages to employees at different levels,
including discretionary bonuses, various training programs, sponsorship for
further study and share option schemes for the benefit of the Directors and
eligible employees of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

EFREREHRE

DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. Wei Qiang, aged 40, joined the Company as an executive Director, the
chief executive officer of the Company and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 11 November 2015. On 29 June 2017, Mr. Wei Qiang was
appointed as the chairman of the Board and chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Board. Mr. Wei Qiang has around 15 years of work and
management experiences in the clean energy industry and had been
awarded the title of Hebei Innovation and Entrepreneurship Team Leader
and Entrepreneurship Management Talent by the People’s Government of
Hebei Province. Mr. Wei Qiang has also been serving as a director of a
rural bank initiated by Chengdu Rural Commercial Bank since 2013. From
2003 to 2006, Mr. Wei Qiang studied at the University of Auckland in New
Zealand majoring in Finance and from 2007 to 2009, studied business
administration and information strategies at Tsinghua University. Mr. Wei
Qiang is the son of Mr. Wei Shaojun, the ultimate controlling Shareholder of
the Company .
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Han Qinchun, aged 64, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee in February 2015. Dr. Han had resigned as the
member of the Nomination Committee, and was appointed as the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee on 28 June 2016. Dr. Han is currently the
president of Hong Kong International Financial Assets Market Limited. Dr.
Han obtained a Doctorate degree in philosophy in urban economics and
management from The University of Hong Kong in 1998. He also obtained
a bachelor’s degree from Xi’an University of Architecture and Technology in
1982. He has rich experience in the PRC property sector, financial
investment, equity capital market and listed companies’ management. He
had worked in securities and investment in Bank of China International
Holdings Limited, Agricultural Bank of China Securities Limited (now known
as Agricultural Bank of China International Holdings Limited) and Everbright
Securities Company (Hong Kong) Limited. He served as the vice-chairman
and co-president and executive director of Hong Long Holdings Limited (now
known as Suncity Group Holdings Limited), a listed company on the main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock
Exchange”) (stock code: 1383) for three years. Over the past three years,
he served as an independent non-executive director for the following Stock
Exchange listed companies, namely Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
(stock code: 0162) and Lingbao Gold Company Ltd., (stock code: 3330).
He currently serves as an independent non-executive director of
Guangdong — Hong Kong Greater Bay Area Holdings Limited (listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code:1396).

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John, aged 56, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee,
a member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
on 16 October 2015. Mr. John Wong Yik Chung is a qualified accountant
and has over 33 years of experience in auditing and corporate finance
work, with extensive exposure to the business enterprises in the PRC. He
is the founder of Vantage Group and TMF China, which provide
professional outsourcing solutions to companies investing in the PRC and
targeting at international customers. Mr. Wong graduated from the
University of Melbourne. He is a fellow member of each of the Australian
Society of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He also obtained a PRC Certificate of
Independent Directorship in 2002. Over the past three years, he served as
an independent non-executive director for the following Stock Exchange
listed companies, namely Perfect Optronics Limited (stock code: 8311),
Xinjiang Xinxin Mining Industry Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3833), Beijing Capital
Land Ltd. (stock code: 2868) and EcoGreen International Group Limited (stock
code: 2341).

Directors and Senior Management
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEHE

Mr. Feng Zhidong, aged 49, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee on 7 October 2022. He obtained a Bachelor’s
Degree in International Accounting from the Renmin University of China in
the PRC in July 1995 and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from the South China University of Technology in the PRC in February
2004. Mr. Feng has also completed a Mergers and Acquisitions Executive
Program from the Business School of Sun Yat-sen University in the PRC in
March 2015 and a Global Entrepreneur Leadership Program from the PBC
School of Finance at the Tsinghua University in the PRC in July 2019. In
addition, Mr. Feng has obtained a Certificate of Specialty and Technology
(Intermediate Level) in Accounting in the PRC granted by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC. Mr. Feng has more than 22 years of experience in
financial management, capital operations and managing investor relations.
Since June 2016, Mr. Feng is the chairman of the board and a director of
Guangzhou Yueting Network Technology Co., Ltd.* (BENIi{ERE4EREA
f& 2 &), which is principally engaged in internet parking services. Moreover,
since August 2018, he is the chairman of the board and a director of
Guangzhou Yueting Capital Management Co., Ltd.* (EMHEEREIRE
B2 |]), which is principally engaged in parking management and
corporate management service. He currently serves as an independent
non-executive director of Xingye Wulian Service Group Co., Ltd. (listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 9916) and K. H. Group
Holdings Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1557).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

At the date of this report, the senior management of the Group comprises
the executive Director above, namely Mr. Wei Qiang, and Ms. Zhao Hua.
The biographies of Ms. Zhao Hua are set out below:

Ms. Zhao Hua, aged 37, joined the Company as the executive vice
president in January 2020. She is mainly assisting the chief executive
officer of the Company to take full charge of the daily operation and
management of the Group. Ms. Zhao was an executive Director of the
Company from 26 February 2015 to 11 November 2015. She has about 10
years of management experience in clean energy and commercial
operation. From July 2014 to July 2016, she served as the executive vice
president of Hedao International Commercial and Trading Co., Ltd., which
is principally engaged in commercial center leasing, market service,
warehousing service, import and export trade and mall management etc.,
where she was responsible for the business segment of commercial
operation. In 2013, she served as the executive vice president and
secretary of the board of directors of Lightway Green Energy Technology
Co., Ltd., which was principally engaged in the production and sales of
photovoltaic modules and the installation of solar power stations, where
she was responsible for financial and human resources management. Ms
Zhao graduated from Central University of Finance and Economics in 2010,
with a major in administrative management and obtained a master’s degree
in management. She graduated from Beijing International Studies University
in 2007, with a major in international politics and obtained a Bachelor of
Laws degree. Ms. Zhao is the wife of Mr. Wei Qiang, the executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company.

Details of the interests of the Directors in the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS” under the “Report of the Directors”.

Directors and Senior Management
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Report of Directors

EFEHSE

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are smart energy business, public
infrastructure construction and the related preliminary investment and post-
construction operation management business, with gradual expansion and
diversification to other clean energy business.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the Reporting Period by
segments is set out in note 5 to the audited consolidated financial
statements. The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the audited consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
“Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss” on pages 75 of this annual
report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities and equity of
the Group for the last five financial years and the financial key performance
indicators of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out on page 180 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The business review for the Reporting Period and an indication of likely
future development in the business of the Company are set out in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. Our risk management system and a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that the Company may
be facing are provided in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual
report.
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 15 July 2022 by the Company,
the Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name issued by the Registrar
of Companies in the Cayman Islands on 21 July 2022, and the Certificate
of Registration of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong
Company was issued by the Companies Registrar in Hong Kong on 4
August 2022, the Company had changed its name from “LongiTech Smart
Energy Holding Limited BEEZFMEZERIERABRAF" to “Xinda
Investment Holdings Limited £ 3% B4R AR A ).

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain the entitlements to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, 25 May 2023 (the “Meeting”),
the transfer books and register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 22 May 2023 to Thursday, 25 May 2023, both days
inclusive, during which period no share transfers can be registered. In order
to qualify for attending the Meeting, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office of the Company, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 19 May 2023.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Details of interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2022 are set out in note 29 to the audited consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.
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Report of Directors

ESEHE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Group, or existed during the Reporting Period.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 28(a) to the audited consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company ( the “Articles of Association” ) or the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands where the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares of the Company (the “Shares”) on
a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out in note 28(b) to the audited consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity Shareholders was RMB1,159,694,000 (31 December
2021: RMB1,066,391,000).
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donations during the Reporting
Period (2021: Nil).

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the smart energy and public
infrastructure construction businesses. The smart energy business, which
mainly the operation of solar power plants, is an environmentally friendly
business. With the focus on the smart energy business, the Group strives
to develop clean energy sources and is committed to protecting the
environment and mitigating the impact of its operations on the environment.
The Group’s public infrastructure construction business represents the
Baoding Donghu PPP project. The project is to develop a new functional
urban area in Baoding city highlighted with ecological culture. The project
comprises a lake district with an area of 660 mu, park and green space
with an area of 250,000 square metres, Guan Hanging theater and
museum with an area of approximately 70,000 square metres and urban
protective green belt with an area of 310,000 square metres. The project
connects to public and infrastructural facilities such as the municipal road
of 4.68 square kilometres, educational facilities for primary and secondary
schools, and public stations. It will improve the urban function of Baoding
city, enrich the cultural asset of the city, and enrich the cultural life of the
citizens while bringing benefits to the environment.

In the course of developing its smart energy and public infrastructure
construction businesses, the Group is mainly subject to the supervision and
restriction under the following environmental laws and regulations: the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental Protection, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste,
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Appraising of Environment
Impacts and the Regulations on the Administration of Environmental
Protection of Construction Projects. The Group has paid consistent
attention to complying with the laws and regulations on environmental
protection. Throughout the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with
the relevant laws and regulations on environmental protection that have a
material impact on the Group.
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We also recognise the importance of maintaining mutually beneficial
relationships with stakeholders, including our Shareholders and investors,
government organs,
communities. Their support is vital to the Group’s sustainable development.
We pay close attention to the needs of all our stakeholders, offer solutions
to address their needs and continuously interact with them in ways that are
conducive to the sustainable growth of the Company, the industry and the
community.

employees, customers, suppliers and local

For details of the Group’s environmental, social and governance report (the
“ESG Report”) for 2022, please refer to the 2022 ESG Report of the
Company issued at the same time of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group operates its businesses mainly in Mainland China. The
development and operation of the Group’s smart energy and public
infrastructure construction businesses in the PRC are mainly regulated by
the local laws and regulations on renewable energy, electricity supply and
construction projects, as well as various policies and industry guidelines
issued by such local governments. There was no incident of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that had or would have a
significant impact on the Company during the Reporting Period. For details,
please refer to the 2022 ESG Report of the Company issued at the same
time of this report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transaction

The Group didn’t carried out any connected transaction (other than
connected transactions that were fully exempted under Chapter 14A of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) during the Reporting Period.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group carried out the following continuing connected transactions (other
than continuing connected transactions that are fully exempted under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) during the Reporting Period:

(1)

First Master Agreement and Second Master
Agreement in relation to the supply of electricity
First Master Agreement

On 10 July 2017, Gao Bei Dian City Guangshuo New Energy Group
Co.,Ltd. (“Guangshuo”), an indirect wholly- owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a master agreement (“First Master
Agreement”) with Longjitaine Property Co., Ltd. (“Longjitaihe
Property”) in respect of the continuing connected transactions
between members of the Group and Longjitaihe Property and its
subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the terms of the First Master Agreement, members of the
Group will lease roof top and related storage and operation spaces
from Longjitaine Property and its subsidiaries for the installation of
the solar power plant facilities of the Group, and upon the solar
power plants get connected to the grid, supply electricity to
Longjitaihe Property and its subsidiaries.

In respect of the supply of electricity by Guangshuo to Longjitaine
Property, the fees will be based on the unit price per kWh as
published by the Provincial Price Bureau of which the power station
projects are located at (which is subject to adjustment from time to
time), with a discount of no more than 20% being offered in
comprehensive consideration of the free rental of roof top and the
electricity usage of the landlord, etc. The transactions under such
electricity purchase agreement are conducted in the usual and
ordinary course of business of the Group on normal commercial
terms, and under equivalent conditions, the terms and consideration
are similar to those offered to independent third party customers.

The First Master Agreement has a term of 20 years for the leases
and a term of 25 years for the supply of electricity. The annual caps
under the First Master Agreement in respect of the supply of
electricity to Longjitaihe Property during the term of the agreement
will not exceed RMB10,000,000.
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Longjitaihe Property is a company controlled and owned by Mr. Wei
Shaojun, the controlling Shareholder of the Company. The
transactions contemplated under the First Master Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Second Master Agreement

On 10 July 2017, Guangshuo entered into another master agreement
(the “Second Master Agreement”) with Longjitaihe Group Limited
(“‘Longijitaihe Group Limited” ) (formerly known as “Longjitaihe
Industrial Co., Limited”) and Lightway Green Energy Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Lightway Green Energy”), in respect of the continuing
connected transactions between members of the Group and
Longjitaihe Group Limited, Lightway Green Energy and their
subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the terms of the Second Master Agreement, members of
the Group will lease roof top and related storage and operation
spaces from Longjitaihne Group Limited and Lightway Green Energy
and their subsidiaries for the installation of the solar power plant
facilities of the Group, and upon the solar power plants get
connected to the grid, supply electricity to Longjitaihe Group Limited
and Lightway Green Energy and their subsidiaries.

In respect of the supply of electricity by Guangshuo, the fees will be
based on the unit price per kWh as published by the Provincial Price
Bureau of which the power station projects are located at (which is
subject to adjustment from time to time), with a discount of no more
than 20% being offered in comprehensive consideration of the free
rental of roof top and the electricity usage of the landlord, etc. The
transactions under such electricity purchase agreement are
conducted in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group
on normal commercial terms, and under equivalent conditions, the
terms and consideration are similar to those offered to independent
third party customers.

The Second Master Agreement has a term of 20 years for the leases
and a term of 25 years for the supply of electricity. The annual caps
under the Second Master Agreement in respect of the supply of
electricity to Longjitaihe Group Limited and Lightway Green Energy
during the term of the agreement will not exceed RMB8,000,000.
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Longjitaihe Group Limited and Lightway Green Energy are companies
controlled and owned by Mr. Wei Shaojun and Mr. Wei Qiang, the
controlling Shareholder and the Director of the Company respectively.
The transactions contemplated under the Second Master Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 27 April 2017, 9 June 2017, 10 July 2017 and the circular
dated 22 May 2017.

The transaction amounts under the First Master Agreement and the
Second Master Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022
were approximately RMB3,229,000 and RMB5,978,000 respectively.

In October 2018, Guangshuo completed the acquisition from
Baoding Lightway Green Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Baoding
Lightway”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lightway Green Energy) a
10.2 MW distributed solar power plant located at the Lightway
Industrial Park, Hebei Province, the PRC. Upon completion,
Guangshuo supplied electricity to Baoding Lightway, and Baoding
Lightway has undertaken that its annual minimum electricity
consumption is not less than 10 million degrees per year (except the
normal physical decline of 0.7% per vyear), otherwise Baoding
Lightway should pay the difference to Guang Shuo. During the
Reporting Period, Baoding Lightway has fulfilled the above-
mentioned minimum electricity consumption commitment. The
transaction amount of electricity sold by Guangshuo to Baoding
Lightway is included in the Second Master Agreement.

Implications under the Listing Rules

As the annual caps in respect of the continuing connected
transactions under the First Master Agreement and the Second
Master Agreement on an aggregate bases are expected to be more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, the First Master Agreement and the
Second Master Agreement are subject to the reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements and exempted from
the independent Shareholders’ requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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(2)

2021 Renewal Agreement

On 18 June 2021, the Company entered into the 2021 renewal
agreement (the “2021 Renewal Agreement”) with Longjitaine Group
Limited, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to provide
through the Company or any of its subsidiaries to Longjitaihe Group
Limited or any one of its subsidiaries, and/or third parties designed
by Longjitaihe Group Limited, collectively or individually, a revolving
loan in a maximum principal amount of up to RMB11,000,000 for the
availability period commenced from 18 June 2021 and ended on 18
June 2022. After the expiration of the 2021 Renewal Agreement, the
Company did not sign any new renewal agreement.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
18 June 2021.

The maximum transaction amount under the 2021 Renewal
Agreement for the period from 1 January 2022 to 18 June 2022 was
approximately RMB10,430,000.

Implications under the Listing Rules

As at the date of the 2021 Renewal Agreement , Longjitaihe Group
Limited was held as to 99% by Mr. Wei Shaojun, the controlling
Shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, the 2021 Renewal
Agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder constituted
continuing connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the transaction
under the 2021 Renewal Agreement exceeded 0.1% but were less
than 5%, the transaction was only subject to reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements but were exempt from the circular
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions set out above and have confirmed
that the continuing connected transactions were entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (i) according to the agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing
the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions above-mentioned in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
submitted by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save for the continuing connected transactions disclosed above, the
Board is of the view that those material related party transactions
disclosed in note 35 to the audited consolidated financial statements
as contained in this annual report do not constitute “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions”, as the case
may be, that are subject to the reporting, announcement or
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the above connected transactions.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
72% (2021: 43%) of the total sales for the Reporting Period and sales to
the largest customer included therein amounted to 47% (2021: 32%) of the
total sales for the Reporting Period. Purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 88% (2021: 63%) of the total
purchase for the Reporting Period and purchase from the Group’s largest
supplier included therein amounted to 36% (2021: 26%) of the total
purchase for the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued Shares) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The Group
provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate the
employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its immediate and long-
term goals. To maintain its brand competitiveness and dominant status, the
Group aims at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the
products and service to its customers. During the Reporting Period, there
was no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
suppliers and/or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and currently are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wei Shaojun
(Resigned on 24 June 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Han Qinchun

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

Mr. Han Xiaoping (Resigned on 8 July 2022)

Mr. Feng Zhidong (Appointed with effect on 7 October 2022)

In accordance with article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at the
forthcoming Meeting to be held, Mr. Wei Qiang and Mr. Wong Yik Chung,
John will retire from office as Directors, and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election as Directors. Pursuant to the article 112 of the
Articles of Association, Mr. Feng Zhidong will retire from office as a Director
at the forthcoming Meeting, and being eligible, has offered himself for re-
election. At the forthcoming Meeting, ordinary resolutions will be proposed
to re-elect Mr. Wei Qiang, Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John and Mr. Feng
Zhidong as Directors.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND OTHER
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and other senior management are
disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received a written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that
all independent non-executive Directors are being considered to be
independent by reference to the factors stated in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Meeting has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company has not
entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body corporate to
manage or administer the whole or any substantial part of any business of
the Company during the Reporting Period.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 37 to the
audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the
Company is set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and
structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management of
the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market practices. The remunerations of the
Directors are determined with reference to the economic situation, the
market condition, the responsibilities and duties assumed by each Director
as well as their individual performance.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, and five highest paid individuals
during the Reporting Period are set out in notes 7 and 37 to the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the Company
are set out in note 7 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

CHANGE TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT
OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, after the interim report for
the six-month ending 30 June 2022, there was no change to information in
respect of a Director which is required to be disclosed and has been
disclosed by Directors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

XINDA INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022

M B R

ARRFHEZEESE(FMEEGDNRILE
@W$§IM%§%F\MA§E&TWK§
MmEERN A ARENFHERREAKE

%ﬁ%%&m%aﬁﬁ%%% - BEEN
2 EEERR THEREUAREESH
EENBENEECRAEBAARBMEE

EERANERFALIRAREHNEOMSF
BFEN AN EFREERGEMBRRMETRIT -

RHRESRENE

RN s

RE R

ROK K R B 18 F 5t 8l 00 3 B8R N F 3],
B BHRMET -

EENEREH

BIEEMRAEISIBUO)IE RBEE S -—F
ANAZTBLEARBAZFHRARE  WELW
EEENEHAEERE LMMAEAEI351Q) K
@ZEBNOBEATRE FTHES -



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the audited consolidated financial
statements and in the section headed “Connected Transactions and
Continuing Connected Transactions” in this annual report, neither Director
nor entity connected with the Directors had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group subsisting at any time during the
Reporting Period or at the end of the year to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for the
equity or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate or
had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
or any of their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in
any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the following current Directors
held share interests and/or directorships in companies engaged in
businesses which compete or likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group:
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Mr. Wei Shaojun (resigned as a non-executive Director of the Company on
24 June 2022) holds share interests and directorships in Longjitaihe Group
Limited (together with its subsidiary, the “Longjitaihe Group”), and Mr. Wei
Qiang works as a senior management in Longjitaine Group (Resigned as a
senior management on 1 April 2022), Longjitaihe Group engages in
businesses of public infrastructure construction business. As smart energy
business constitutes the Group’s principal business activities, the Group
currently has no plan to further expand public infrastructure construction
business after the Baoding Donghu Project is complete. On this basis, it
does not exist any material competition between the businesses of the
Group and those of the Longjitaihe Group.

Each of the Directors is aware of his fiduciary duties as a Director of the
Company which require, among other things, that he acts for the benefit
and in the best interests of the Company and avoids any conflicts between
his duties as a Director and his personal interest.

As the Board is independent of the boards of the aforesaid companies and
maintains three independent non-executive Directors, the Group operates
its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses
of the aforesaid companies.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 22 November 2011.

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the
eligible persons, to provide additional incentive to them and to
promote the success of the business of the Group.

2. Participants

The Board is authorised, at their absolute discretion and subject to
the terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant options to subscribe
the Shares to, inter alia, any employees (full-time and part-time),
directors, consultants, advisors, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers of the
Group.
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Total number of Shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the number of the issued Shares of the Company as
at the Listing Date. On 12 June 2018, the Company had refreshed
the scheme mandate limit of the Share Option Scheme to 10% of the
aggregate number of the Shares of the Company in issue as at that
date, i.e. a total of 137,842,200 Shares, representing 9.28% of the
number of the Shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this
report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted to any grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme, in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue.

Period within which the Shares must be taken
up under an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum period for
which an option must be held and performance targets that must be
achieved before an option can be exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable
on acceptance of the option

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance
of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.
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Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall not
be lower than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the option; (i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option;
and (i) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant of the
option.

Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme became unconditional on the Listing Date
and shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing
on 22 November 2011. On 21 November 2021, the Share Option
Scheme had been expired.

The Company has not adopted any new share option scheme during
the Reporting Period after expiration of the previous Share Option
Scheme.

As at 31 December 2022, details of the movement of the share options
under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

8.
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Number of Share Options
BREHA
Closing
price Adjusted
preceding exercise
dateof Exercise  price Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed
grant price (HKS per Asat duringthe duringthe duringthe during the As at
Name and category of (HKS per (HK$per ~ Share) 1 January Reporting Reporting Reporting  Reporting 31 December
participants Date of grant Exercise period share) ~ Share) (Note 1) 2022  Period  Period  Period Period 2022
B gRz
REAM T\ R
e TRE (BR R s XEE ARE  ABE -FoCF
(B8R (BR #Bn) —B==F HEr BHR BHERK BER +=A
SEERERER RHAH TEEE Br) #x) (Wd1) -A-8 i K3 BE %%  =1-A
Directors
£z
Dr. Han Qinchun 26 January 2018 26 January 2018 to 25 January 2028 1711 2182 1.77% 359,400 - - - - 359,400
BREAL ZE-N\§-A=tAB ZZ-N\§-A-+/rRAZ
ZZ\5-A=+HA
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John 26 January 2018 26 January 2018 to 25 January 2028 1711 2182 1.77% 359,400 - - - - 359,400
BEAKE “E-\f-AZtRH ZE-N\F-A-TRHZE
- \$-A=t+EH
Mr. Han Xiaoping 26 January 2018 26 January 2018 to 25 January 2028 1.711 2132 17796 359,400 - - - 359,400 -
(Resigned on 8 July 2022)
BRETREE “E-\5-f-tXB ZE-\E-F-tKAH
(WZBZZEtANBEE) E-R-N\F-AZTEA
Total 1,078,200 - - - (359,400 718,800
@it

XINDA INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022



Notes:

1. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, adjustments are required for
the exercise price and the number of Shares available for subscription under the
outstanding share options as a result of the Company’s rights issue, with effect
from 22 March 2018. The exercise price of the share options granted on 26 January
2018 was adjusted to HK$1.7796 per Share. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 21 March 2018.

2. As at 31 December 2022, the weighted average exercise price of options
outstanding is HK$1.8 (2021: HK$1.8)

As the Share Option Scheme had been expired on 21 November 2021, the
number of share options available for grant under the Share Option
Scheme was all Nil as of 31 December 2022 and as of 31 December 2022.

The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2022
divided by the weighted average number of the Shares in issue of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 is 0.048%.

During the Reporting Period, no expense arose from share-based payment
transactions previously recognised as part of employee benefit expense (2021:
Nil).
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
THE DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

() Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares
of Company

EERFTETBAERALT
RAEBEZENRG - HERD
REZPERNERERKXR

MN-ZE-—H#+-FA=+—H BFHARQA
FTETHABRAQARSKEMAMMAEEE (&
BEBAFETIEEFRBSEA(ESFRS
E%B)EXVE)BRRD  BERGO RESRE
BEREFHRPEEOIEXVEE7 RS EE M
ERRAAIRBRANERRAE (BEREFES
MEIE GBI EERRIEER N EM
) BB ESRBEGIE2GH T A
TRRZEL s M ERER AR HRE
ETRAIMEE TR EN EMBEITAERETE
FRGMZETA(ZEFADREEMNG X
REl MR ER AR DT

) RELXARGREEBRGH
Bz

Number of Shares/

underlying Shares

Approximate
Percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest held shareholding
s,

BEEnE B RERME HEROGHE RESAEIL
Mr. Wei Qiang Beneficiary of a discretionary trust™ 970,534,633(L) 65.37%
BoRSEE —IERIBEFENZ @AY

Dr. Han Qinchun Beneficial owner® 359,400(L) 0.02%
BREH L e A?

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John Beneficial owner® 359,400(L) 0.02%
=EBLEE EnEEAO
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Notes: Wi
1. King River Developments Limited is deemed to be respectively interested in 1. King River Developments Limited # 1% /£ i i@ &
534,462,121 Shares and 436,072,512 Shares (totally 970,534,633 Shares) A Lightway Power Holdings Limited & Harvest
through its control over Lightway Power Holdings Limited and Harvest Oak Oak Holdings Limited &9 % § # - i1 o 5l 2%
Holdings Limited, and Zedra Trust Company (Singapore) Limited (as a 534,462,121 % I 17 & 436,072,512 8% f% 17 (&
trustee of a discretionary trust ) is deemed to be interested in 970,534,633 51970,534,633 % I 17 ) % A #E 25 + K Zedra
Shares through its control over King River Developments Limited. The details Trust Company (Singapore) Limited ( — I8 B 15
of which are set out as follows: EREMNXZFEAN)HIE A S B E KKing River
Developments Limited & 1% | # 72 970,534,633
BRI ER BHEFBENT

Direct Number of
Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling shareholder % control interest Shares
FEHEEEE ERRRAE ERBESL HigEs BHHE
King River Developments Limited Zedra Trust Company (Singapore) Limited 100.00 N 970,534,633(L)

B
Lightway Power Holdings Limited King River Developments Limited 100.00 Y 534,462,121(L)

=
Harvest Oak Holdings Limited King River Developments Limited 100.00 Y 436,072,512(L)

=
Mr. Wei Qiang is deemed to be interested in 970,534,633 Shares as a Hatd(EAZBEEEXEZA)HEAR

beneficiary of the discretionary trust. 970,534,633 A AR 17 B #E = o

2. Dr. Han Qinchun is interested in 359,400 share options of the Company. 2. B &= H 18 1 7 359,4000% 7N A 7] B AR AE R %

3. Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John is interested in 359,400 share options of the
Company.

4. The letter “L” denotes the long position in Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short position in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
THE SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company as
disclosed above) had interests or short positions in Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or, which were recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

() Long Position in the Shares and underlying

TEREREMALREADT
RO RAERA R RS HER
RKR

RZEZZF+ZA=+—RH RESHA T
IATOGEEXFIBEMNAARIEETHEZTH
AB)RBRMOIBERO P EEREESLBE
&Pl EXVER B2 K35 & M & SCA R AN A A M B
RFIBEENEZSIAE  KRBEFHFRBER
BB 33615 R AR RIZBATFEMNE LM ER
FORE

() RRORMEBRRGHNETR

Shares
Number of Shares/ Approximate
underlying Shares percentage of
Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest held shareholding
s,
FTERRER B HRHE HEROGHE RESBAIEIL
Mr. Wei Shaojun Founder of a discretionary trust® 970,534,633(L) 65.37%
BOERAE —IARIBEFERIRZAY
Zedra Trust Company (Singapore) Limited  Trustee!” 970,534,633(L) 65.37%
ZEEAW
King River Developments Limited Interest of controlled corporation 970,534,633(L) 65.37%
ZiE LA E R
Lightway Power Holdings Limited Beneficial owner!” 534,462,121(L) 36.00%
EmEaAD
Harvest Oak Holdings Limited Beneficial owner™ 436,072,512(L) 29.37%
EmEa A
Notes: B &
1. King River Developments Limited is deemed to be respectively interested in 1. King River Developments Limited # 1% £ i 8 &

534,462,121 Shares and 436,072,512 Shares (totally970,534,633 Shares)
through its control over Lightway Power Holdings Limited and Harvest Oak
Holdings Limited, and Zedra Trust Company (Singapore) Limited (as a
trustee of a discretionary trust ) is deemed to be interested in 970,534,633
Shares through its control over King River Developments Limited, and Mr.
Wei Shaojun is deemed to be interested in 970,534,633 Shares as a founder
of the discretionary trust.

2. The letter “L” denotes the long position in Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company had not
been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which would be
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not involved in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of material
importance is known to the Directors to be pending or threatened against
the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles of Association provide that each Director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of relevant
legal actions against the Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), comprising
the three independent non-executive Directors, has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
together with the management and the external auditor of the Company.
The Audit Committee is of the opinion that such statements have complied
with the applicable accounting standards, and the disclosures required by
the Stock Exchange and other relevant legal requirements, and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal information on the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital, being the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules,
are held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period and as of the
date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

On 15 January 2021, as PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned as the auditor
of the Company, the Company had appointed BDO Limited (‘BDO”) as the
auditor of the Company, and BDO was re-appointed at the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 28 May 2022.

The consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period prepared in
accordance with IFRS were audited by BDO who shall retire and, being eligible,
offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming Meeting of the Company.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

on 21 May 2019, Beijing Longguang Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Longguang”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a capital increase agreement (the “Capital Increase
Agreement”) with Hebei Julin Chuanghe Cultural Communication Limited
(*Hebei Julin”) and Gao Bei Dian City Long Chuang Central Heating
Company Limited (“Longchuang Heating”), pursuant to which Beijing
Longguang had acquired 40% equity interests of Longchuang Heating by
making capital contribution to Longchuang Heating. Pursuant to the Capital
Increase Agreement, Hebei Julin provided a profit guarantee to Beijing
Longguang and agreed to compensate Beijing Longguang for the shortfall
between the guaranteed profit and the actual net profit of Longchuang
Heating every three years(commencing from 1 January 2020) if the annual
net profit set out in Longchuang Heating’s annual financial statements (as
verified by Beijing Longguang) is lower than the agreed amount during the
guarantee period.

As Longchuang Heating failed to meet the profit guarantee for the years
2020, 2021 and 2022, according to the Capital Increase Agreement, Hebei
Julin should pay a profit compensation of RMB 21,600,000 to Beijing
Longguang. Beijing Longguang has already requested Hebei Julin and its
Guarantor to pay the above-mentioned compensation in cash to Beijing
Longguang by 5:00 p.m. on 31 March 2023, but as at the date of the
announcement, the Company and Beijing Longguang have not received
the compensation from Hebei Julin and the Guarantor.
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The Board of the Company (including the independent non-executive
Directors) is of the view that: (i) Hebei Julin has failed to fulfil the profit
guarantee under the aforesaid Capital Increase Agreement and has not
paid the compensation in accordance with the Capital Increase Agreement
as at the date of the announcement; and (i) the demand by Beijing
Longguang for compensation in cash from Hebei Julin is fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders of the Company as a
whole after taking into account of the current financial position of
Longchuang Heating. The Company will subsequently take further
appropriate actions (including but not limited to legal actions) to recover the
above-mentioned compensation to safeguard the legitimate interests of the
Company as appropriate.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 31
March 2023.

By order of the Board

Wei Qiang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hebei Province, the PRC, 28 March 2023

Report of Directors
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in this
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance in the
management structure and internal control procedures of the Group for the
purpose of ensuring that all business activities of the Group and the
decision-making process are properly regulated and are in full compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations, and to safeguard the interests of
Shareholders and to enhance corporate value. During the Reporting Period,
the Company has applied the principles of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
Company’s corporate governance principles emphasize the importance of
a high-quality Board, effective internal control, and accountability to
Shareholders, which enhances the value of the Company for Shareholders
and also ensures the sustainable development of the Group. The Company
has adopted the code provisions of the CG Code as its corporate
governance code.

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code
during the Reporting Period, except for code provision C.2.1and C.5.1.

According to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Wei Qiang, an executive Director, is the chief
executive officer of the Company and the chairman of the Board. The
Board is of the opinion that vesting the roles of both the chairman and the
chief executive officer in the same person could improve the Company’s
effectiveness and efficiency in reaching its business goals. The Board also
believes that this arrangement will not be detrimental to the balance of
power and authority between the chairman and the chief executive officer,
while a higher ratio of non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) will enable the Board to make unbiased judgments
more effectively and provide sufficient supervision to protect the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders.

According to code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the board meeting
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly interval.
During the Reporting Period, two Board meetings were held to approve the
interim financial performance and annual financial performance of the
Group which should be decided by the Board, and discussed the overall
operation and strategy of the Group. The Company also sought the
approval of the Directors on relevant matters by circulating a written
resolution to replace the Board meeting. In addition, the Directors had
frequent communication with the management of the Company during the
year to discuss the overall operation and strategy of the Group, and actively
exchanged their views on the performance of the Group. As such, the
Directors are considered to be provided in a timely manner with appropriate
information to make informed decisions and perform their duties and
responsibilities.
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The Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code. Set out
below is detailed discussion of the corporate governance practices
adopted and observed by the Company for the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Board has established the Group’s purpose, values and strategies and
ensured that they are aligned with the Group’s culture. All Directors must
act with integrity, lead by example, emphasize and promote a corporate
culture of lawful, ethical and responsible business conduct. The Board
closely monitored the implementation of corporate governance practice,
risk management and internal control systems to ensure the corporate
value and the Company’s culture are aligned.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board currently consists of four Directors with a combination of one
executive Director and three independent non- executive Directors. During
the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the composition of
the Board is as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Wei Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wei Shaojun (resigned on 24 June 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Han Qinchun

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

Mr. Han Xiaoping (resigned on 8 July 2022)

Mr. Feng Zhidong (Appointed with effect on 7 October 2022)

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report. Mr. Wei Qiang,
the executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company, is the
son of Mr. Wei Shaojun, the non-executive Director and the controlling
Shareholder of the Company, except that, the Directors do not have any
other relationships with any Directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling Shareholders of the Company.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders at all times.
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the
Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Functions of the Board

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and the Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the long term
success of the Group by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs
and overseeing the achievement of strategic plans to enhance
Shareholders’ value. The Directors are aware of their duties to act in good
faith and expected to make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The principal functions of the Board are to:

i) convene general meetings and report the Board’s work at general
meetings;

(i) implement the resolutions passed by the Shareholders in general
meetings;

(i)  consider and approve strategies, financial objectives, annual budget,
investment proposals of the Group;

(iv)  approve and authorise material transactions, including acquisition,
investment, disposal of assets (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests);

(v)  formulate the proposals for profit distributions;
(vi)  assume the responsibilities of corporate governance of the Group;

(vij)  establish and review the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems through the Audit Committee; and

(vii) exercise other powers, functions and duties conferred by the
Shareholders in general meetings.

The senior management is delegated with the authority and responsibilities
by the Board for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management. The Board meets regularly
to review the financial and operating performance of the Company, and
considers and approves the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
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All Directors have separate access to the management and are provided
with full and timely information about the conduct of the business and
operation of the Group. A monthly report containing significant events and
latest development of the Group was provided to all Directors.

The Board has implemented different mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the mechanism and confirm its effectiveness.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has regularly reviewed the
contributions from the Directors and confirmed that they have spent
sufficient time performing their responsibilities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The chairman leads the Board in the determination of strategies and in the
achievement of objectives and ensures that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings and receive adequate,
complete and reliable information. The chief executive officer is delegated
with the authority and responsible for running the Company’s business,
implementing the Company’s strategies in achieving business objectives.
Both the Chairman and the chief executive officer positions are currently
held by Mr. Wei Qiang. The Board believes that the current governance
structure, with a combined chairman and chief executive officer and more
than one-third of the Board is independent non-executive Directors, could
improve the Company’s effectiveness and efficiency in reaching its
business goals and its in the best interest of the Company at the present
stage.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. After making specific enquiry, all of the Directors who held
their office during the Reporting Period have confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the Reporting Period.

The Company has also adopted its own code of conduct regarding
employees’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
standard set out in the Model Code for the compliance by its relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information of the
Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and code of conduct applicable to
employees and Directors, reviewing and monitoring training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, as well as reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has reviewed corporate governance practices of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and this corporate governance
report. It will continue to review, monitor and improve the policies and
practices of the Company for the purpose of ensuring the compliance of
the CG Code and maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors. The
Board considers that all independent non-executive Directors have
appropriate and sufficient industry, professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise to carry out their duties so as to
protect the interests of Shareholders. Under Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, listed issuers are required to appoint independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the Board. The Company has
three independent non-executive Directors currently representing more
than one-third of the Board and therefore, the Company has complied with
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Prior to their respective appointment, each of the independent non-
executive Directors has submitted a written statement to the Stock
Exchange confirming their independence and has undertaken to inform the
Stock Exchange as soon as practicable if there is any subsequent change
of circumstances which may affect their independence. The Company has
also received a written confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Directors in respect of their independence in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are being considered to be independent by
reference to the factors stated in the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Wei Qiang, the chairman of the Board,

held a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors.
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All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought
a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company.

As regards the CG code provision requiring directors to disclose the
number and nature of the offices held in public companies and
organisations and other significant commitments as well as their identity
and the time involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE
DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors (including non-executive Directors) has been
appointed for a specific term of three years, subject to the provisions on
Directors’ retirement as set out in the Articles of Association and none of
the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation). All Directors appointed by the Board shall hold office only
until the next general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next annual general meeting of the Company (in the
case of an addition to the Board), and every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Pursuant to the article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Pursuant to the article 112 of the Articles of
Association, the term of office of any director appointed to fill a temporary
vacancy can only continue until the first general meeting of the Company
after his appointment, and can only be reappointed after re-election by the
shareholders of the Company.
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Pursuant to the article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wei Qiang
and Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John will retire from office as Directors at the
forthcoming Meeting, and being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-election. Pursuant to the article 112 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Feng Zhidong will retire from office as a Director at the forthcoming
Meeting, and being eligible, has offered himself for re-election.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.

Nomination Policy

The Board had adopted a nomination policy on 1 January 2019 which
posted on the website of the Company for public review.

Selection criteria:

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the Nomination
Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

(1)  The Company’s development strategy needs;
(2)  Reputation for integrity;

(8)  Achievements and experiences in the Company’s major business;

(4)  Time devotion and the representation of relevant beneficial parties;

(6)  Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age (has
to be aged 18 or older), cultural and educational background,
professional experiences, skills, knowledge and management
experiences;

(6)  Directorship in other public companies and corporate governance
structures of those companies, etc; and

(7)  Independence (for independent non-executive Director).
These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive and

decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to nominate any
person, as it considers appropriate.
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Nomination Procedures:

The procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director is summarised as
follows:

— nomination and invitation of suitable candidates by any member of
the Nomination Committee or the Board;

— evaluation of the candidate based on all selection criteria as set out
in the nomination policy;

— performing due diligence in respect of each candidate and making
recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval;

— in case of nomination of an independent non-executive Director,
assessing the candidate’s independence under the relevant code
provisions of the CG Code and the Listing Rules;

— in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors, reviewing the
candidate’s overall contribution and performance and making
recommendations to the Board and/or the shareholders for
consideration in connection with his/her re-election at general
meetings; and

— convening a meeting of the Board to consider the appointment or re-
appointment of the candidate as a Director.

The Nomination Committee should regularly monitor and review formal
procedures for the Nomination Policy to ensure that the nomination policy
is tailored to the needs of the Company and reflects current regulatory
requirement and good governance practices.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES

(1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 22 November 2011. The
Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely Mr.
Wong Yik Chung, John (Chairman), Dr. Han Qinchun and Mr. Feng
Zhidong, all of the members are independent non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year with
the Company’s external auditors regarding the review of the
Company’s financial report and accounts.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of
auditor, review the financial statements, reports and accounts, and
review and monitor the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems and review the effectiveness of the
internal audit function. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by
the Board are in line with the provisions of the CG Code and are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has held two
meetings and mainly fulfilled the following responsibilities:

— reviewed the audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2021,
auditors (in the absence of the management of the Company),

discussed the annual results with external

and formed the opinion that the relevant financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards and regulation, and that adequate
disclosures have been made;

—  reviewed the unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2022, and formed the opinion that the relevant
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the applicable accounting standards and regulation, and that
adequate disclosures have been made;

—  reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and the internal
control systems and the internal audit function of the Group;
and

—  provide recommendations on the scope of work and
appointment of external auditor.
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(2)

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid or payable to the
Company’s independent auditor, BDO, in respect of its audit and
non-audit services were as follows:
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WARE IR AR A B RS
B E B T B A BUR 5 B A RS 8 5
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2022 2021

s —E-—F

Type of Services RMB’000 RMB’000
REESE AR¥T AREETTT
Audit services % BUIR 1% 1,800 1,800
Non-audit services (Note) AR (B 3E) 300 333
Total “aEt 2,100 2,133

Note: This non-audit service is about the review service for the interim performance
of the Group.

The statement of the Company’s independent auditor regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the Reporting Period is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 November
2011. The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
namely Dr. Han Qinchun (Chairman), Mr. Wei Qiang and Mr. Wong
Yik Chung, John, the majority of which are independent non-
executive Directors and one of the members is an executive Director.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing
the terms of the remuneration packages of the Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management, assessing performance of
executive Directors, approving the terms of executive Directors’
service contracts, and reviewing and approving matters related to
share schemes.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year to
discuss remuneration related matters. No Director is allowed to be
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
adopted by the Board are in line with the provisions of the CG Code
and are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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(3)

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting, passed two written resolutions and mainly fulfiled the
following responsibilities:

— reviewed the remuneration policies of the Group for 2022 and
reviewed the remuneration package for executive Directors
and the senior management personnel;

—  assessed the performance of the executive Director;

—  made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of
the newly appointed independent non-executive Director; and

— revised the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company.

For the Reporting Period, the remuneration of the five highest paid
individuals of the Group, including those Directors as disclosed in
note 37 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this
annual report, was within the following bands:

m$ﬁ¢%ﬁ’ﬁM§§@$ﬁT RE

HOBEN _EEARBRLTIEZRT T

B

- RBRINAEBER-_ZT-__FOHHFHK
REBATHTEERSRERAER
FY 3 T 155 4

- WMERTEFEZRE:

- BMHZEZBINFATEEZHMH
MESEERHEE:

- BIFARARRzZHFMEESBELE-

RAREHHE  AEBLUKSHALH
FH(ERAFHREERGE VB RERN
AT BENE R N FIATEE

2022 2021

—ECHE T4

Number of Number of

Remuneration Band Individuals Individuals
e E AE AH
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000 77T 3 5
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001,%7c2 1,500,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,000/% 7t 22,000,000/ 7T 2 -

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 November 2011.
The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Wei Qiang (Chairman), Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John and Mr. Feng
Zhidong, the majority of which are independent non-executive
Directors and one of the members is an executive Director.

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies
on the Board and senior management and to ensure that the
candidates to be nominated as Directors are experienced, high
calibre individuals.
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The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once every year for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
other related matters. In reviewing and recommending the
appointment of new Directors, the Nomination Committee would
seek to identify the competencies required to enable the Board to
fulfill its responsibilities. The resume or documents of the nominee or
candidate will be given to the Nomination Committee for
consideration.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee adopted
by the Board are in line with the provisions of the CG Code and are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has held
one meeting and passed one written resolution, and mainly fulfilled
the following responsibilities:

— reviewed the structure, composition of the Board and the
Board diversity policy;

— made recommendations regarding the re-election of retiring
Directors at the 2022 annual general meeting;

— nominated the newly appointed independent non-executive
Director and evaluate his independence; and

— assessed the independence of all the independent non-
executive Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board had adopted the Diversity Policy on 1 January 2019 which is
posted on the website of the Company for public review.

When selecting the candidates for the Board, the Nomination Committee
will proceed from a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experiences, skills, knowledge and management experiences. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy in a timely
manner to ensure that the Diversity Policy is effective.
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For the implementation of the board diversity policy, the following
measurable objectives have been adopted:

(@ in terms of professional background, the executive Directors have
more than ten years of experience in the clean energy sector. The
occupational backgrounds and professional skills of the independent
non- executive Directors cover professional accountants, investment
and financing and corporate management and have more than 20
years of experience in their industry;

(b) in terms of a regional perspective, the background of the Directors
covers Hong Kong and Mainland China with different cultural
backgrounds; and

(c) at least 1/3 of the Board members are independent non- executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee believes that the current composition of the
Board is balanced and diversified with the high-calibre members from
different cultural backgrounds and possessing professional expertise of
various industries, which indicates that the Diversity Policy has been well
implemented.

Currently there are no female director on the Board. We understand the
importance of gender diversity, and therefore we will strive to improve the
gender diversity of the Board. When selecting and recommending suitable
candidates for board members, the Company will seize the opportunity to
increase the proportion of female board members. The Company expects
to appoint at least one female Director before 31 December 2024, and
plans to promote gender diversity in the recruitment of middle and senior
staff, so that the Company has more female senior managers and potential
successors of board members.

As at 31 December 2022, the employees (including senior management) of
the Group, the percentages of male employees and female employees are
69% and 31%, respectively. The Board considers that the Group’s
workforce (including senior management) is diverse in terms of gender.
Further details for the diversity, including the gender diversity, in the
workforce during the Reporting Period are set forth in the 2022 ESG Report
of the Company which issued at the same time of this report.
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BOARD MEETING AND ATTENDANCE
RECORD

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

According to the CG Code, the board meeting should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly interval. During the Reporting
Period, two Board meetings were held. The Company also sought the
approval of the Directors on relevant matters by circulating a written
resolution to replace the Board meeting. In addition, the Directors had
frequent communication with the management of the Company during the
year to discuss the overall operation and strategy of the Group, and actively
exchanged their views on the performance of the Group. As such, the
Directors are considered to be provided in a timely manner with appropriate
information to make informed decisions and perform their duties and
responsibilities.

The Directors can attend meetings in person or by means of such
telephone, electronic or other communication facilities so as to permit all
persons participating in the meeting to communicate with each other
simultaneously and instantaneously, and participation in such meeting shall
constitute presence in person at such meetings in accordance with Article
133 of the Articles of Association.

The Board and Committees’ meeting schedule and the agenda of each
meeting are made available to Directors in advance. Notices of regular
Board meetings were served to all Directors at least 14 days before the
meetings. For all other Board and Committees’ meetings, reasonable
notices were given. Papers for Board meetings or Committees’ meetings
together with all relevant information are sent to all Directors or Committee
members at least three days before each meeting to enable them to make
informed decisions with adequate data.

All Directors will also be provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties, and upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense. All minutes of Board meetings will be recorded in
sufficient detail, including matters considered and decisions reached by the
Board.
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Meetings held and Attendance CEITHNEBEREE
The Board held two Board mestings during the Reporting Period. The AR 4 HIRE - & $ eRITT_REETCTE
composition of the Board and the Committees, the attendance records of & % % ehRZECENURABREHEES
the Directors at the Board meetings, committees meetings and general & LEegemaMRERENESTHFEL
meetings during the Reporting Period are set out below: ﬁ'-%!( 7;‘|J N
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
g8 ENEES FMzEg REZES B3R
EEnE g% gF g% g3 xg
Executive Director HBITES
Mr. Wei Qiang gt
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (TERETHAEZ) 2/2 N/AT i 1/1 1/1 2/2
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Wei Shaojun BOERAE
(Resigned on 24 June 2022) (ER=-ZF—-—
NAZ T AEE) 171 N/AZ i N/AT i B N/AT i B 1
Independent Non-executive Directors B ki {T&S
Dr. Han Qinchun BREML 2/2 2/2 11 N/ATiE A 2/2
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BEERLAE 2/2 212 11 1/1 2/2
Mr. Han Xiaoping ?E B EA
(Resigned on 8 July 2022) (ER-ZF-—F
tANAEF) 1 11 N/AT 38 A 11 1/1
Mr. Feng Zhidong BEREE
(Appointed with effect on (R-—ZFE-—F+A4
7 October 2022) tHEZELER) NATER N/AT 8 N/AT i@ A NAT@ER  NATER
INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS ABREEEERE

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon their appointments, Directors are advised on the legal and other
duties and obligations they have as directors of a listed company. Each
newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction package
designed to enhance his/her knowledge and understanding of the Group’s
culture and operations. Discussion sessions with key management
personnel are also held. During the Reporting Period, Mr. Feng Zhidong,
the newly appointed independent non-executive Director, had received a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on his appointment, and also
received the necessary introduction and professional development to
ensure that he had a proper understanding of the Company’s operation,
business and his responsibilities under supervision.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, we have arranged trainings
which were presented by professional firms to the Directors. Through the
course of their directorship, the company secretary of the Company also
from time to time updated and provided written training material relating to
the roles, functions and duties of a director and all the aforesaid Directors
studied such materials. All Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.

We have maintained record of the continuous professional development
participated by the Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the current Directors received the following training with an emphasis on
the role, functions and responsibilities of directors of listed companies
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through attending training sessions and reading materials: Zl -
Reading
materials/
regulatory Attending
updates/ training
Name of Director monthly reports sessions
B AR
EEEHNER
EEnA RE®HE HEENE
Mr. Wei Qiang BoEksE 4 v
Mr. Wei Shaojun ROERE
(Resigned on 24 June 2022) (BER-—F = —4F XA -+ HET) v N/A 7~ i
Dr. Han Qinchun BREHL v \
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John mEBEE v v
Mr. Han Xiaoping BETLAE
(Resigned on 8 July 2022) (BER=—ZZF=—F+ANHEHT) 4 N/A 7 i@ F
Mr. Feng Zhidong HER A
(Appointed with effect on 7 October 2022) (R-ZFE=Z—F+A+HEZ L) v v
DIVIDEND POLICY KB BUR

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Policy”) which can be
downloaded from the Company’s website. Subject to applicable laws,
regulations and the Articles of Association, and depending on the financial
performance of the Group and factors including but not limited to the
Group’s annual performance, cash flow performance, future financing
needs, major capital expenditures, business operating model, industrial
development trends, the Company’s development stage and strategic
planning etc., the Board may propose and/or declare dividends during a
financial year, and any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to an
ordinary resolution of the Shareholders.
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The Board will review the Policy on a regular basis to ensure that the Policy
is in line with market practice and supports the Company’s continuous
development strategy.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s financial
statements for each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and applicable
accounting standard. The Company deploys appropriate and sufficient
resources to prepare audited accounts. In preparing the financial
statements for the Reporting Period, the Board has selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for
taking all reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. In addition,
the Company provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on
the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Risk Management Structure

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control system, and regularly
assessing and continuously supervising its effectiveness to safeguard the
overall interests of the Group and its Shareholders, and to foster the
sustainable development of the Group. However, the risk management and
internal control system formulated by the Group aims to manage, instead
of eliminate, all risks exposed to the Group. Such system cannot
completely eliminate inherent limitations such as unpredictable risks and
events beyond control (e.g. natural disasters, fraud and judgment errors),
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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The Group established an Enterprise Risk Management (the “ERM”)
framework to implement effective risk management. Our risk management
structure is simple and clear, with a defined scope of duties.

Board of Directors

As a body in charge of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system, the Board is responsible for the setting up of clear ERM framework
and risk management policies, aiming to assess and evaluate the business
strategies of the Group and its degree of risk tolerance. With the support of
the Audit Committee, whose authority has been delegated by the Board,
the Board constantly monitors the risk management and internal control
system of the Group, as well as conducts review as to its effectiveness at
least once year.

Audit Committee

As the highest body, second only to the Board, being responsible for the
risk management and internal control system, the Audit Committee
provides advice and support in respect of all risk matters, including on-
going monitoring of the implementation of risk management procedures,
reviewing the Group’s list of major risk exposures, reviewing and approving
the internal control review plans and results.

Management

The management of the Group is responsible for identifying and
continuously monitoring strategic, operational, financial, reporting and
compliance risks associated with the daily operations of the Group. The
management reports to the Board and the Audit Committee on relevant
risks and their changes. The management also designs, formulates and
implements various internal control measures to mitigate the risks, and
rectify internal control deficiencies they identified in a timely manner.

Internal Audit Department and External Team

The Company has an internal audit department, which carried out the
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and directly
reported the review results to the Audit Committee. The auditor of the
Company is also able to communicate to the Audit Committee directly any
internal control issues they noticed during their audit process.

Risk Management Procedures

The Group has established the ERM framework so as to effectively manage
all kinds of risks exposed to the Group. The ERM framework defined the
procedures for identifying, assessing, responding to and monitoring risks
and their changes. Through regular discussions with each operating
function, the Group strengthened the understanding of risk management
so that all employees will understand and report the risks timely which
enhanced the Group’s ability to identify and manage risks.
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In the course of risk identification, the management liaises with each
operating function, collects significant risk factors that affect the Group
from the bottom to the top, in various aspects including strategies,
operational and financial matters,
establishing risk assessment scope, the management will assess the
potential impact and possibilities of the risks and prioritise the risks, and
make appropriate internal control measures are then developed to mitigate
the risks identified and monitor the changes of risks in an on-going manner.

reporting and compliances. After

Risk Management System

The Group’s risk management system is guided by the three lines of
defence:

The first line of defence — Maintain an effective internal
control system (operational level)

The Group has set up a Risk Management Executive Team, comprising
functional centres, various business departments and all staff. In the course
of their daily operations, the functional centres, business segments and
individuals execute the risk management strategies of the Group, gather
risks in a timely manner based on the changes in the business and give the
Risk Management Leading Team feedback on the risks. The Risk
Management Leading Team revises and optimizes the risk management
system to confine risk management of the Group to the first line of defence.

The major strategies of risk management of the Group include: establish
clear internal control policies and procedures, clearly define the
responsibilities, authorities and accountabilities of each key position;
establish code of conduct,
requirements on integrity and ethic; establish whistle blowing mechanism,
encourage employees to report incidents of misconduct or fraud; establish
appropriate level of information technology assess rights, avoid leakage of

convey to all employee the Group’s

price sensitive information; and establish inside information disclosure
policy, including reporting channels and responsible person of disclosure,
unified response to external enquiries and obtain advice from professional
financial advisors or the Stock Exchange, if necessary.

The second line of defence — On-going risk monitoring
(risk management level)

The Group has set up a Risk Management Leading Team, comprising the
president, the vice-president and the directors of different centres. The Risk
Management Leading Team based on risk management framework and
risk management policies established by the Board designs, implements
and supervises the risk management system to identify, communicate and
assess the significant risks for the Group, and liaise with each operating
function and collect significant risk information that affects the Group from
the bottom to the top and continually monitors changes in risks.
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The Group has established a risk register to record the risks identified, the
management will regularly assess the potential impact and possibilities of
each major risk and formulate relevant internal control measures.

The third line of defence — Annual review (Board level)
The Board and the Audit Committee under the Board, which make up the
third line of defence, are responsible for assessing and determining the
nature and level of risks the Group is willing to take in achieving its strategic
objectives, ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems, and
supervising the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis.

During the Reporting Period, the internal audit department of the Company
has completed the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the Reporting Period and has reported the review results to the
Audit Committee.

Through the Audit Committee and the internal audit team, the Board has
conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022. The Board has considered the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
accounting, internal audit, financial reporting functions as well as those
relating to the issuer’s ESG performance and reporting when reviewing risk
management and internal control procedures.

The management has established remediation and improvement plan for
internal control weaknesses identified. Nothing has come to the Audit
Committee’s or Board’s attention to believe that risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are inadequate or ineffective.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations of the Group
may affect the Group’s financial conditions or growth prospects. In dealing
with these risk factors and uncertainties, the Group focuses on the control
of risks and uncertainties with the aim of understanding and addressing the
concerns of stakeholders. Such factors are by no means exhaustive or
comprehensive, and there may be other risks in addition to those shown
below which are not known to the Group or which may not be material now
but could turn out to be material in the future.
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The key risks and uncertainties affecting the Group for 2022 are
summarized below.

Industry and Policy Risk

The Group’s smart energy business and public infrastructure construction
business are all located in the PRC. Performance of the Company’s
principal businesses will also be significantly affected by the government’s
policy in respect of clean energy, the extent of subsidy and adjustments, as
well as the planning and storage progress of local land by the Baoding
Government. If the Group fails to grasp and judge macroeconomic and
national policy changes, and adjust its operational strategies in time, the
achievement of the Group’s business performance and business objectives
may be affected.

Countermeasures:

° the management continued to focus on the overall economic and
industrial policy changes and conducted analysis, research and
prediction of macro-economic conditions, government policies and
industrial policies and timely adjust business development strategies
according to the industry and policy changes.

Capital Risk

Smart energy and public infrastructure construction businesses require
large capital investment. Financing ability and financing cost of the Group
depend on global economic condition, interest rates and banks’ credit
policy as well as its own financial performance. The Group cannot
guarantee that credit line, cost and terms can be obtained according to the
Group’s preference or project needs, which may affect the expected
returns of business and projects. In addition, the Group cannot guarantee
that it can recover its trade and other receivables and the external
investment funds of the Group in time and in full. The Group’s profit and
cash flow may therefore be significantly and adversely affected.

Countermeasures:

o strengthened cooperation with banks and external financing
institutions, adopted diversified financing methods to minimise the
Group’s financial costs;

° strengthened the overall management of funds, specified the
standards for each cost and expense item and strengthened budget
management during the daily operational management process; and

° established the collection mechanism of receivables to follow up the
recovery progress of trade and other receivables and external
investment funds in a timely manner, and, when necessary, took
measures such as litigation and preservation to recover the funds.
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Intensifying Market Competition Risk

Under the development background of the new era of energy
transformation and energy security construction, more and more
enterprises enter the new energy industry to participate in the business
layout, and the market competition is becoming increasingly fierce, which
may have a certain impact on the Group’s market share and profitability,
and further affect the business performance of the Group.

Countermeasure:

° Continue to pay attention to the industry development momentum
and development trends, timely adjust our business development
strategy.

Risk Arising From An Extreme Climate

Typhoon, hail and flood disasters caused by heavy rainfall may lead to
damage to components, increase the risk of operation and maintenance
and inspection, and cause safety accidents in serious cases to endanger
the safety of employees or surrounding communities. Abnormal rainy
weather affects the electricity generation, and then affects the sales amount
of electricity and revenue from power generation. At the same time, the
extreme high temperature weather and temperature rise significantly, which
is prone to fire and also increases the risk of heat stroke for outdoor
workers.

Countermeasures:

° Establish an emergency management mechanism and formulate
emergency plans for possible emergencies caused by typhoon, hail
and flood disasters, organize targeted safety inspection and
reinforcement measures focusing on wind prevention and flood
control;

° Accurately evaluate and calculate insurance types based on years of
accidental operation and maintenance failure data, purchase relevant
insurance for power plants, and transfer risks and damages that may
be caused by extreme weather;

o Conduct 24-hour real-time monitoring through the centralized

operation and maintenance platform, effectively identify the abnormal
improve operation and maintenance efficiency, and
reduce the impact of abnormal rainy weather on power generation;
and

conditions,

° Implement high temperature operation specification requirements in
high temperature weather, ensure the health of employees by
adjusting operation arrangements, controlling outdoor operation
hours, ensuring adequate rest and distributing heat cooling items
and health care products.
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INSIDE INFORMATION MANAGEMENT

The Company has established an inside information policy which contains
the guidelines to the Directors, officers and all relevant employees (likely
possessing the unpublished inside information) of the Group to ensure that
the inside information of the Group is to be disseminated to public in equal
and timely manner in accordance with the applicable laws and regulation.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a corporate
culture of openness, probity and accountability. Apart from setting up “Anti-
Fraud, Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery Policy”, a “Whistleblowing Policy” is
also in place to create a system for the employees and business partners
to report to the Audit Committee and the Board about possible
improprieties relating to the Group. The identity of whistleblowers will be
treated with the strictest confidence.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zou Yanhong (“Ms. Zou”) is the company secretary of the Company.
Ms. Zou is the director of securities affairs department of the Company and
is also responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters
and ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and the applicable
laws, rules and regulations are followed.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, Ms. Zou has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training respectively in compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company endeavours to develop and maintain continuing relationships
and effective communications with its Shareholders and investors. In an
effort to facilitate and enhance the relationships and communication, the
Company has established a shareholders communication policy. The
Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of such policy
during the Reporting Period and considered that it is sufficient and effective.

The Company has established the following channels for maintaining an
on-going dialogue with its Shareholders:

(i) the annual general meeting provides a forum for the Shareholders of
the Company to raise comments and exchange views with the
Board. The Directors are available at the annual general meetings of
the Company to address Shareholders’ queries;
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(ii) interim and annual results are announced as early as possible, to
keep the Shareholders of the Company informed of the Group’s
performance and operations;

(i) Periodic announcements are made through the Stock Exchange and
published on the website of the Stock Exchange www.hkexnews.hk
and the website of the Company www.longitech.hk;

(iv)  the Company maintains a website , where updated key information/
news of the Group is available for public access; and

(v)  Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns with
sufficient contact details to the Board by post at Room 1231, 12/F.,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
for the attention of the Company Secretary or by email at
investor@longitech.hk.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each issue at Shareholder meetings, including the election of
individual directors.

At any general meetings, a resolution put to vote of the meeting shall be
decided by way of a poll except where a show of hands is allowed under
the Listing Rules and the results of voting by poll will be declared at the
meeting and published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively pursuant to the Listing Rules. At the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2022, all resolutions, including
the approval of the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021, were
passed by poll by the Shareholders.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting according to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws
of Hong Kong) and the Articles of Association of the Company. According
to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company, extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or the company secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held
within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.
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As regards proposing a person for election as a director, Article 113 of the
Articles of Association of the Company stipulates that no person, other
than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness
to be elected shall have been lodged at the Head Office or at the
Registration Office. The period for lodgment of the notices required under
the Articles of Association will commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting
and the minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least seven days. The procedures for
Shareholders to propose a person for election as a director are available on
the website of the Company.

CHANGE IN ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the Reporting Period, the Company has adopted the new Articles of
Association through several amendments in substitution for and to the
exclusion of the original Articles of Association, for the purposes of, among
others, (i) bringing the Articles of Association of the Company in line with
the relevant requirements of the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and
the Listing Rules (in particular, Appendix 3 of the Listing Rules); (iimaking
some other housekeeping improvements; and (jii) reflecting the proposed
change of Company name.

The new amended Articles of Association have been adopted at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 15 July 2022. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 20 June 2022, 15 July
2022, 11 August 2022 and the circular dated 22 June 2022. The full text of
the new adopted Articles of Association of the Company is available on the
website of the Stock Exchange and that of the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

I BDO Tel : +852 2218 8288

FEE : +852 2218 8288
{#H : +852 2815 2239

AR

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

HEBETHEER11158
Tk ZF2548

www.bdo.com.hk

To the Shareholders of Xinda Investment Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xinda Investment
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) set out on pages 75 to 179, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flow for the year ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“‘HKICPA”)’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Recoverability of trade receivables

Key Audit Matter
Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the gross carrying amount of trade receivables
amounted to RMB411,630,000, with loss allowance amounting to
RMB229,275,000.

The Group assesses expected credit loss allowances (‘ECL”) of trade
receivables using credit risk exposure and expected credit loss rates. The
Group assesses the expected credit losses on a forward looking basis.
When measuring expected credit losses, the Group considers historical
loss rates, current market conditions and available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information, including economic policies,
macroeconomic indicators, industry risks and changes in debtors’
conditions.

Assessment on the recoverability of trade receivables and the sufficiency of
the related loss allowances for ECL are performed by the management.

In carrying out impairment assessment of trade receivables under the ECL

model, significant management judgement was used to determine the
underlying estimations.

XINDA INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022

BAEEFTEE

PAREFFEAERERMNEXZHEG  RRY
TG AV BRENBARREENTR B
LERRAERMBABRESAMBRRILHDA
EARBETREEMN - RATEHELEHENR
BEENER -

B 5 EWEEN AW E %
CEE LR 2=

F2RGRA M B WMRME25 -

R-E-_—_F+_A=+—H EZENKZNHE
R BRE 48 A A R % 411,630,0007T © 2 5H1E 8
B 18 B A A R 5 229,275,000 7T °

EXEBEEREZRERFNERRRK D RE
HMERBRXFGHBRHMERABRIRAERE
XD BEEEZAEUHEEFERARASEHA
K-GEERHERABERT EXEEZEESL
BRE -EMMmBRARTHANEGEAEARS
FUENMEER BRCERR  ZEKER
B TERRBREEBAMREESE -

HHE FEWGRIE R WD K 5t 78 B E BB KA
RAABEREGER I UENFGEIHEREEL -

7 TR H D M SR T AT 5 I8 MR B A
AP B - R B ik B A B A
figt o



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recoverability of trade receivables (continued)

Our response
Our audit procedures included:

° Ascertaining our understanding on the policy and operating
effectiveness on internal controls which oversee credit control, debt
collection and estimate of expected credit loss;

° Assessing on a sample basis, whether items in the trade receivables
aging report were classified within the appropriate aging bracket by
comparing individual items in the report with relevant sales invoices;

° Assessing the appropriateness of the key input data, on a sample
basis, used by management to develop the historical loss rates and
assessing the sufficiency, reliability and relevance of that data;

° Involving an auditor’s expert to assist us in evaluating and assessing
the appropriateness of the assessment methodologies and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions and estimations used in the
assessment; and

° Discussing with management about the recoverability status of
material overdue balances and assess whether provision is required.

Recoverability of financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Key Audit Matter
Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the gross carrying amount of financial assets at
amortised cost amounted to RMB55,683,000, with loss allowance
amounting to RMB55,683,000.

The Group took into account reasonable and substantiated historical data
such as principal and interest payment schedule, ageing, repayment
history, financial information of the counterparties, and available forward-
looking information to determine whether the credit risk has significantly
increased since initial recognition and to calculate expected credit losses.

Assessment on the recoverability of financial assets at amortised cost and
the sufficiency of the related loss allowances for ECL are performed by the
management.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recoverability of financial assets measured at
amortised cost (continued)

Key Audit Matter (Continued)

In carrying out impairment assessment of financial assets at amortised cost
under the ECL model, significant management judgement was used to
determine the underlying estimations.

Our response
Our audit procedures included:

° Ascertaining our understanding on relevant controls in place on
granting loans to third parties and on management’s assessment on
the recoverability of financial assets at amortised cost;

° Checking the aging analysis, on a sample basis, against repayment
terms set out on loan agreements of the loan receivables, on a
sample basis, to the source documents, including bank statements;

° Assessing the appropriateness of the key input data, on a sample
basis, used by management to develop the historical loss rates and
assessing the sufficiency, reliability and relevance of that data;

° Involving an auditor’s expert to assist us in evaluating and assessing
the appropriateness of the assessment methodologies and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions and estimations used in the
assessment; and

o Evaluating the historical accuracy of the management’s assessment
of impairment for loan receivables, on a sample basis, by examining
the actual write-offs, the reversal of previous recorded allowance and
new allowances recorded in the current year in respect of loan
receivables at the end of the previous financial year.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Chan Wing Fai

Practising Certificate no. P05443

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

FERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET T ARBT T
Revenue Il 5(a) 195,209 462,642
Cost of sales 5 & A 6 (144,633) (374,988)
Gross profit EA 50,576 87,654
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEBAS 6 (2,153) (18,242)
Administrative expenses TEAX 6 (32,582) (63,622)
(Impairment losses)/reversal of impairment losses on & @& E/ CREEIE)
financial assets VERI=N SRk AE 8 (15,272) 5,735
Other income E A A 9 176 149
Other (losses)/gains — net Hh(EE), Wt FHE 10 (4,722) 994
Operating (loss)/profit e (ER), BT (3,977) 12,668
Finance income & WA 11 7,373 7,048
Finance expenses & R 11 (11,815) (13,338)
Finance expenses — net B E R SRR (4,442) (6,290)
Share of net (loss)/profit of associates accounted for £ FA #& 5 /A A BR AU Bl & 2
using the equity method A (4L &) KL R (5 58 20 (265,854) 2,457
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETIS AT (BB, %R (274,273) 8,835
Income tax expense Fris i = 12 (31,875) (38,873)
Loss for the year FABE (306,148) (30,038)
(Loss)/profit is attributable to: LT G (B518) %A
Owners of the Company KABHEA A (306,368) (28,221)
Non-controlling interests FEIERER 220 (1,817)
(306,148) (80,038)
Loss per share for loss attributable to owners of ZARQTEBE AEBGEEEN
the Company (RMB): BREBR(ARYE)
Basic loss per share I& H AR 18 13 (0.2064) (0.0190)
Diluted loss per share R SEEE 13 (0.2064) (0.0190)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —&F — —

F+_A=1tT—HILFE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Loss for the year FREE (306,148) (30,038)
Other comprehensive income Hit2EBA
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to BEERIEEE# P A 182 HYIA H
profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of financial MEBINEB B MR TE £
statements of overseas operations HYDE 5 =58 818 (210)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, EFREMEEVRA(EE)
net of tax "BIMBRBE 818 (210)
Total comprehensive loss for the year EREEEEALSHE (305,330) (30,248)
Total comprehensive loss/(income) for the year LTEAERZEEE(KA)
is attributable to: R
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ SN (305,550) (28,431)
Non-controlling interests e R R 220 (1,817)
(305,330) (80,248)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ek

As at 31 December2022 W —_ZE -~ +—-_H=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E AR®T T ARBT T
Assets B5E
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BEMKE 14 422,255 432,568
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 14,792 15,083
Intangible assets EBVEE 16 77,407 4,715
Deferred tax assets BEERBBEE 17 3,527 33,043
Investments accounted for using the equity method A A ABRMKRE 20 — 265,854
Deposits b 25 23,570 8,000
Other non-current assets HM3EmEEE 23 9,077 11,728
Total non-current assets IREBEELTE 550,628 770,991
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 24 6,666 30,805
Contract assets BHEE 18 190,592 187,722
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b g W E 25 218,714 205,404
Financial assets at amortised cost BEHEK AT EN SR
B E 22 - 64,035
Restricted cash SR §IIR & 26 7,817 18,341
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESZEEY 27 205,381 222,320
Total current assets REBEEHATE 629,170 728,627
Total assets EEHTE 1,179,798 1,499,618
Equity and liabilities EERERE
Share capital N 28(a) 12,255 12,255
Reserves & 28(b) 1,144,863 1,143,725
(Accumulated losses)/retained earnings (BEtEE) REB% (296,350) 10,519
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AAREEAEEESR 860,768 1,166,499
Non-controlling interests R E R 5,530 5,092
Total equity ERBE 866,298 1,171,591
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R

As at 31 December 2022 R —_ZE - —4F+_H=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

it 5 AR¥ TR ARBTT

Liabilities =R

Non-current liabilities kRBEE

Borrowings ®7E 29 160,500 186,300
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 12,458 12,110
Deferred government grants iR TE AT 4 BG 1,959 2,066
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEE & 17 18,846 10,854
Contract liabilities AHBE 15,715 =
Total non-current liabilities kRBEELAE 209,478 211,330
Current liabilities RBAEE

Trade and other payables B REMENKIE 30 56,793 64,883
Contract liabilities AHAEE 8,666 14,237
Current tax liabilities BNEARI I B & 12,059 12,250
Borrowings BE 29 25,800 24,700
Lease liabilities HEBRE 15 704 627
Total current liabilities REBEELARE 104,022 116,697
Total liabilities BEAE 313,500 328,027
Total equity and liabilities EakBEAE 1,179,798 1,499,618

The financial statements on pages 75 to 179 were approved by the Board HF75BEZF17T9EFE BB HRENR T _=F=

of Directors on 28 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf AZ+N\BR&EZgHE THTINESKE
="E
Wei Qiang Han Qinchun
3 BEE
Director Director
EF 2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & = —

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEEAERE

FeEQERR

E__F+-_A=1+—BItEE

Share-based Non-
Share Share  Statutory compensation Exchange Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests Total equity
MR 17 % A3 89 FER
RE  RGEE EERE AMERE ERRE HUtRE REER EH i 353 AgEs
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETE ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2021 R=F-—%-A—-H 12,255 1,090,355 40,577 1,928 6,870 4,187 38,758 1,194,930 6,986 1201916
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Loss for the year EREE = - - - - - (28221)  (28221)  (1817) (30,038
Other comprehensive loss Hth2AER - - - - (210) - - (210) - (210)
Total comprehensive loss 2EFRAE - - - - (210) - (28221)  (28431) (1817)  (30,248)
Appropriation to statutory reseve B2 A 1A - - 1,406 - - - (1,406) - - -
Lapse of share option BRELH - - - (1,388) - - 1,388 - - -
Disposal of subsidlaries HEWBAR - = = = = = = = (77) (77)
- = 1,406 (1,389 = - (18) = 7 ]
Balance at 31 December 2021 RN-B--£+Z8
and 1 January 2022 Z+-AR=B==f
-A-R&R 12,255 1,090,355 41,983 540 6,660 4,187 10,519 1,166,499 5092 1,171,591
Comprehensive income 2EKA
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER)/&F - - - - - - (306,368)  (306,368) 220 (306,148)
Other comprehensive income HE2EKA - - - - 818 - - 818 - 818
Total comprehensive (loss)/ 2 (FR)/WALE
income - - - - 818 — (306,368  (305,550) 220 (305,330)
Appropriation to statutory reserve & % & i i - - 681 - - - (681) - - -
Lapse of share option B RE & - - - (180) - - 180 - - -
Acquisition of non-wholly owned W2 EHEB AR
subsidiary - - - - - - - - 4,120 4,120
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - (181) - - - - (181) (3,902 (4,083)
- - 500 (180) - - (501) (181) 218 37
Balance at 31 December 2022 R=-Z=--%+=H
=t+-A#&e 12,255 1,090,355 42,483 360 7,478 4187  (296,350) 860,768 5,530 866,298
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeaBfiER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —&F — —

F+_A=1tT—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥ET T AR T T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMBSRERE
Cash generated from operations IRERTSIR S 32 7,458 77,847
Interest received W ER | 2 2,519 1,311
Income tax (paid)/refunded (X)), REFRBH (2,412) 787
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHMEELFE 7,565 79,945
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHMEREERE
Payments for property, plant and equipment WYE - BERZEIA
KIA (28,778) (32,196)
Payments for Intangible assets | A E A RIE (261) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYE  BEEEXE
and equipment FT 5 58 118 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value H &2 A FEE B
through profit or loss HE8 ABmH
S RMEEMSRE - 44,612
Repayment of loans by an associate —HEEAREEER 2,050 =
Repayment of loans by related parties BT EEER 10,950 3,114
Repayment of loans by third parties FE=ZHEEER 6,020 13,850
Repayment of advance to related parties BEMBETNEBER - 3,711
Interest received on financial assets at amortised cost i BY &z # 5% Bk 78 5+ 2 &Y
TREEN S 4,854 5,737
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from disposal of subsidiaries H & [t B A &) FT 53R &
O ), A% (135) 5,174
Net cash inflow from acquisition of a subsidiary I B — BB 2 B FT 15
BEMAFEE 451 —
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash SR IR A (3 ) 10,524 (18,202)
Net cash generated from investing activities REZBMERELFE 5,793 25,800
Cash flows from financing activities RETEHASRERE
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (24,700) (24,400)
Interest paid SRR (11,815) (13,318)
Principal elements of lease payments HENFAEIH (213) (1,874)
Funds received from an associate B — R QR WA
B4 35(a) 2,000 —
Funds received from related parties BB IWEHE S 35(a) 2,485 2,355
Repayment of funds to related parties HEBBANES 35(a) (1,944) (3,952)
Net cash used in financing activities MEZBHTARESFE (34,187) (41,189
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash REeERBELEEY
equivalents (RL2) /I8 hn 3 48 (20,829) 64,556
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year R FEFHIR & KIR &
ZEY 222,320 155,446
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEYWEN
Was 3,890 2,318
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year RERPNBEERES
ZEB8Y 27 205,381 222,320
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn & MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Xinda Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 4 January 2011 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park,
PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, the Cayman Islands. The
Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 12 January 2012.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 15 July 2022 and the
Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name issued by the
Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands on 21 July 2022, and
the Certificate of Registration of Alteration of Name of Registered
Non-Hong Kong Company was issued by the Companies Registrar
in Hong Kong on 4 August 2022, the Company had changed its
name from “LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited [ £ ZxA0%5 2
BERIEAS AR A B]” to “Xinda Investment Holdings Limited £&ZEi%&
ZERBR AT

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in smart energy business and public infrastructure
construction business. For this reporting period, two major
shareholders of the Company are Harvest Oak Holdings Limited and
Lightway Power Holdings Limited. The ultimate beneficial owner of
the Company is Mr. Wei Shaojun (the “Controlling Shareholder”).

1.

—REH

EEREAERARARITARRRADRKZ
Z-—F-AOHRBER=HSQAE
(B8 )(— NN —FEIREH - Lix
B ERERESTMKALRER R
B R A A - M EE # ik A Windward
3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, the Cayman Islands = 7%
RARWR_ZE—Z_F—HA+_BEEHE
BMERSMARAR ER L -

BER-ZZE_—_FtAT+HABBNIER
AELRHAEHSAAAMEERR =
T ZFELtAZ T+ BEBNRARIERSA
BaAMEES URBEBEQARFMEERE
RZEZ_FNANBBLAMIESRE
ARAEFLBAMERAEZ AR FEBHEH
[ LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited £
ZANEZRRERERAF]EE BXinda
Investment Holdings Limited £ 2 1% B Ik &
FRAAE]

AARKREMBAR(EMINER]) *
HABMEAMS AR AMBEIERRK
/& Harvest Oak Holdings Limited X Lightway
Power Holdings Limited > X A 7] 8] fx 48 & 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRARMEE

Ny =]
For th

2.

e year ended 31 December2022 B Z —_E - —F+_-_A=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which include all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has adopted all the new and amended IFRSs which are

effective for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1

January 2022 throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020

Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combination

Amendments to IFRSs

Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised)

None of these new or amended IFRSs has a material impact on the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior period.
The Group has not early applied any new or amended IFRSs that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

The following published new accounting standards and

interpretations are not mandatory for 31 December 2022 reporting

periods and have not been early adopted by the Group:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current (amendments) and
non-Current Liabilities with
Convenants (amendments)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred tax related to Assets and

Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

These standards are not expected to have a material impact on the
Group in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXEFHEBME@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 RERAREZEFE

accounting

2.2.1 Subsidiaries 221 B F
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which =N @ BEITEENTE(R
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity where the Group HEEBEEE) 2 AEERLHTENE
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement 75 i & TJ*T “ 0] 3R /9 JRL B sk = B A & [ =R
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its R BB HIEETEEEHE
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully hE & ;Z% = i& H—i; » B3R 7R AN &£ B 1 &) 5%
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the E‘S‘% B AR TH|EEEETARER 2
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. BEA G )\ HE A FL A AR E 2

E ,%%JJ:/E'\@W\EE g

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for NEEBWNEFEHeTRBERKE=T
business combinations by the Group (Note 2.3). %= (Misx2.3) ©

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on ERRNARBERS SR EEEBARBK
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised > E’j 51{ IR ER ) T UAET 8 - KRB IRE R
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence W BIEZAXSEZTIBEBRAE
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of ggg% HIERE MEBAANEKRED
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure REEREE  URERENEBMREAKREK
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. —F o

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are RHMB AT EERERIEIEREZR D R
shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, NEEERER 2EKRZIR ERIEHR
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity REEBBERABIYYR -

and balance sheet, respectively.

2.2.2 Associates 2228 & N\ A

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant MENTANEEHEEEERTE S

influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the case BRrEEEFIERXERZESNENTEE

where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. e —RBRAT  KN&EEEE20%ZE50%

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method E’] WERE - NI IEKATERE RN E

of accounting (Note 2.2.3), after initially being recognised at cost. NaHIREEEBERS % (H5$2.2.3)
ABR ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #, %= —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

2.2.3 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit
or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction
in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any
the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

other unsecured long-term receivables,

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for
impairment in accordance with the policy described in Note 2.9.
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R BB IRARMEE

Ny =]
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2.

e year ended 31 December2022 B Z —_E - —F+_-_A=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

o equity interests issued by the Group

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity and acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the
fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the
amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value
as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar
borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified as either equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

2.4 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwiill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EAEHBEHEmw

88

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The Board of Directors of the Company has identified the senior
executive management as the chief operating decision-maker, who
assesses the financial performance and position of the Group, makes
strategic decisions and allocates resources.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

2.6.1 Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Chinese
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Group’s presentation currency.

2.6.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year-end exchange
rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in
a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a net
basis within other gains/(losses).

XINDA INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022

o HEETELERRERHEN
WE‘H&%%‘TF BRI ARE -

E?a*ﬁ,ﬁ&aiﬂi}\,az%lzz
CREREFEANEENMERR

&ﬂi{ﬁ : LA&T’FHﬂ RESRE R DEEIR -

26 HEBmE

261ThEER 25| B ¥
SAEMEENYBEHREMIEER HUZ
BRGLHMETEEBEEENEE (I
BEEDNAE-LEUBRRAPEARK
TARBD2% AR AKEEN27
o

—~

262X F K&tk
INESZ R 5 E BNIE R E A4
B EEZES SN REIIBSENE
Mé@&%ﬁ&i[ﬁ%ﬁﬁimEﬂw
HREE—REBIARR  ERAEHE
Be R RAEHRIREYHREH &
SBRENLEBNBHERE BN ERS
EIT -

HEEAMNEL RS NBREGSER
= E) BB KA TSI o ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂ:mﬁz
"R BEERE ?Emi'%lﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬂl&fm/
18) P LS E P IR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #, %= —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

2.6.2 Transactions and balances (Continued)
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.6.3 Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet,

° income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and
statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions), and

° all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements and
certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter lease term, as

follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 5-25 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and included in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Intangible assets
2.8.1 Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill
is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs”) for
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those CGUs or groups
of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose. The CGUs or groups of CGUs are
identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the operating segments.

2.8.2 Patent

Patent acquired in a business combination is recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. It has a finite useful life and is subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses,
if any.

2.8.3 Software

Acquired computer software is stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Costs associated with maintaining software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Intangible assets (continued)

2.84 Service concession agreement

The Group has entered into contractual service arrangement with
local government authorities for its participation in the construction,
operation and management of heat supply services in the People
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group carries out the
construction of pipeline connection for the granting authorities and
receives in exchange for the right to operate the heat supply services
concerned and the entitlement to provision of heat service fees
collected from users of the concession infrastructure.

The Group recognises an intangible asset arising from a service
concession arrangement when it has a right to charge for usage of
the concession infrastructure. The concession grantor has not
provided any contractual guarantee in respect of the amounts of
construction costs incurred to be recoverable. Intangible assets
received as consideration for providing construction work and project
management services in a service concession arrangement are
measured at fair value upon initial recognition. Subsequent to initial
recognition the intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2.9).

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of the intangible asset
arising from a service concession arrangement on a unit of usage
basis over the estimated useful life, which is the period when it is
available for use to the end of the concession period. Where an item
of infrastructure assets included in the intangible asset arising from a
service concession arrangement has different period of expected
future economic benefits flowing to the Group than the concession
period, it is amortised separately.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.
2.8.5 Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life using
the straight-line method over the following periods:

Software 5 years
Patent 10 years
Service concession agreement 30 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #, %= —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or CGUs. Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

2.10.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through
profit or loss or through other comprehensive income (“OCI")),
and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be recorded
in either profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.10.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

2.10.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) are expensed in
profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

(@) Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

2103 Measurement (Continued)

(@)

Debt instruments (Continued)
FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement
of profit or loss.

FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2103 Measurement (Continued)

(b)  Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised
in other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

2104 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost
and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Group has three types of financial assets that are subject to the
expected credit loss model:
° trade and other receivables,

° contract assets relating to public infrastructure construction
business, and

o debt investments carried at amortised cost
While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment

requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.104 Impairment (Continued)

Impairment losses on financial assets are presented as net
impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the same line
item. Financial assets are written off where there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

()  Trade and other receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables and contract assets. The contract assets relate
to unbilled work in progress. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and ageing, assessed collectively or
individually for likelihood of recovery.

Impairment on other receivables is measured as either 12 months’
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit loss, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit losses.

Quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s loss allowance for
contract assets and trade and other receivables as at 31 December
2022 are disclosed in Note 18 and 25.

2.

EXASHBEHBE@

QI0RERHEMBEMEE @)

2104 7% 1B (@)
SRMEERMBEEZ Y AELEF AR
EEEFE - HA B A MEneES
SAR-BEENEF ST EAED
WEITEHE ¢REESHMY  vES
19 M) Uy B B HR B 3 (PR B3R B 75 A K B
87K S W H R ST B AR ET B o

() EBEZRAEMERITAREX
AEBRBERYG RS EREIRBHL
TENFEBBMEEER 0 ENED
RUFRBEREHNEERAFERBEHNER
BE-GHNEERERRERTZAM-
RABRHEEBE EZRKFERSE
HWEERBARGERRBHELER I
B AR oK 5 R 44 4 = 0 AT BE A

HEWRBEREZI2ZEARACEER
BaGFENBRMEEERFE RFED
RERAREERREEREE M- 8
)46 T 78 DA 2K 8 WK TR 9 15 B Rl K R 4
e AP ERFENEREEBETE -

EBHASEER-_ZE-_—_F+=-_F=+—H
MENEERE S & H i FE UK 58 518 #
BEHTEEREENW 18 R25H 5 -

BERBERERAT  Fik 2022

97



98

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRARMEE

Ny =]
For th

2.

e year ended 31 December2022 B Z —_E - —F+_-_A=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.104 Impairment (Continued)

(i)  Debt investments carried at amortised cost

Impairment on the Group’s debt investments carried at amortised
cost is measured as either 12 months’ expected credit losses or
lifetime expected credit losses, depending on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Debt
instruments are considered to be low credit risk where they have a
low risk of default and the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a debt investment has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses. Quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s loss
allowance for debt investments carried at amortised cost as at 31
December 2022 are disclosed in Note 22.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

2.12 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Group’s impairment policies of trade receivables are disclosed in
Note 3.1.2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided
to the Group prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid.
Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EAEHBEHEmw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

2.18.1 Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

2.182 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax
is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and where
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

2.19.1 Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits
and accumulating sick leave that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the reporting period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.

2.19.2 Post-employment obligations
The Group’s post-employment scheme are defined contribution
pension plan.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entiting them to the
contributions. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid.

2.20 Share-based payments

The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee
benefit expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

o including any market performance conditions (for example, the
Company’s share price),

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period), and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save or hold shares
for a specific period of time).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #, %= —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Share-based payments (Continued)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, over which
all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end
of each period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the contract
and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the asset may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the asset is
transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer,

° creates and enhances an asset (for example, work in progress)
that the customer controls as the Group performs, or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to the payments for
the performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the asset. The progress towards complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation is measured based on one of the
following methods that best depict the Group’s performance in
satisfying the performance obligation:

° direct measurements of the value to the customer of the goods
or services transferred to date relative to the remaining goods
or services promised under the contract, or

o the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to
the satisfaction of that performance obligation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Loss per share

2.22.1 Basic loss per share

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to
owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year.

2.22.2 Diluted loss per share
Diluted loss per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of
basic loss per share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.23 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable,

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date,

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #, %= —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Leases (Continued)

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing was
received,

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, for example, term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the
lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Leases (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received,

° any initial direct costs, and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being
appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the Group,
on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the
end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred
government grants and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.26 Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is included in the net fair value gains on these assets (Note 10).

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from debt investments carried at amortised cost (Note 11).

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %= —

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

E-_—_F+-_A=+—HBItEE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Related parties

a. A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related

to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)  is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or the Group’s parent.

b. An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member);

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(vy  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

related to the Group;

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a);
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #, %= —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Related parties (continued)

b. (Continued)

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

2.28 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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110

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

This note explains the Group’s exposure to financial risks and how
these risks could affect the Group’s future financial performance.

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market

3.

Bt 7% B b B 18
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Bt %5 B B &=
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risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest SRR (BEIINERRE RERERAF
rate risk), credit risk, concentration risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s BN ZRRR) EERK - & q: b & R E
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability 18 B bR o 7N £ [BF EX L [ B ZEd R

of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

3.1.1 Market risk

(@)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk is primarily with respect to the US
dollar (“US$”). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a
currency that is not the functional currency of the relevant entity. The
risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable US$
transactions.
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The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk as at 31 December REBR -_ZE-_—_FK_FT-_—F+=-H
2022 and 2021, expressed in RMB, is as follows: =ET—HEHENIMNERRAAREZ5)
UM
2022 2021
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Denominated in US$ HKETEE
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED 2 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(@) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following foreign-exchange related amounts were recognised in
profit or loss for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

3. B¥EAKERE

3.1 B¥AEKREZE @

3.1.1 W i5 & ks (&)
(a) SME R Bz (&)
RBE_ZTE-_—_FR-_ZT-_—F+=-A=
+—HLEFEESERNIIERBE S

R
2022 2021
B8 T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR¥TT

Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) included in B &R E itk 25 (E518) JF 5B 1Y
other gains/(loss) — net [E 5 Uk zs /(5 18) F58 3,589 (486)

As most of the Group’s US$ denominated financial instruments are
held by the Group’s entity whose functional currency is Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”), the Group is primarily exposed to changes in US$/
HK$ exchange rates. The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the
exchange rates arising mainly from US$ denominated financial
instruments is as follows:

MR REEABAUETHENSBTA
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BE ARBIEARETLETNESR
BH - BERTIERANETHENS R
TRAERBHORBEN TR :

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT T ARETT

US$/HK$ exchange rate — increase 5% E TR B TR X — 18 H15% - —
US$/HK$ exchange rate — decrease 5% ETTHBTHIER — 5% - —
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R BB IRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %= —

E-_—_F+-_A=+—HBItEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings.
Borrowings with variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk which is offset by cash held at variable rates.
Borrowings with fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group’s borrowings were all denominated in RMB. The interest rates
and the terms of repayments of the Group’s borrowings are
disclosed in Note 29.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s borrowings amounting to
RMB186,300,000 (2021: RMB211,000,000) were at variable interest
rates. As at 31 December 2022, if the interest rates on the Group’s
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, loss before income tax would have been
RMB1,863,000 higher/lower (2021: profit before income tax would
have been RMB2,110,000 lower/higher), as a result of higher/lower
interest expense.

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Group’s borrowing (2021: nil)
was at fixed interest rates. The fair value of this fixed interest rate
borrowing estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rate for similar financial instruments
available to the Group is RMB nil (2021: RMB nil).

3.1.2 Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash
flows of debt instruments carried at amortised cost and at fair value
through profit or loss, as well as credit exposures to customers,
including outstanding receivables.

In respect of deposit with banks, the Group mitigates its exposure to
credit risk by placing deposits with banks with established credit
rating. Given the high credit ratings of the banks, management does
not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.
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R B RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of trade receivables, credit evaluations are performed on
all customers. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
taking into account the information specific to the customer as well
as relating to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Normally, the Group does not obtain any security from its
customers. Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in
Note 25.

The Group’s investment in debt instruments are regularly monitored
for credit deterioration by management. Quantitative disclosures in
respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from debt
investments are disclosed in Note 22.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December
2022 is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowances.

The Group does not provide any financial guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

3.1.3 Concentration risk

For the year ended 31 December 2022, 47% (2021: 32%) of the
Group’s revenue was derived from one customer (2021: one
customer) (Note 5(a)).

3.1.4 Liquidity risk

Local managements in the operating entities of the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including short-term
investments of cash surpluses and raising loans to cover expected
cash demands, in accordance with practice and limits set by the
Group. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and compliance with the loan covenants, to ensure that
it maintains sufficient cash and adequate committed credit facilities
to meet obligations in the short and longer term.

3.

B 7% B B B B ()

3.1 B¥AEKREZE @

312 EER M @)
RESERKEATS ALEEUHEE
PRITREETE  hETHERRESB
GEEMABMREMLER B AR
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BEEHABOEN  — R AEBEFR
CHEFEDER - SHEAEEE 5 EK
HEMELCHESRBNE—SELRE
7 R MfsE2s5 -

EEEEHNERAEENER TANKE
EEELLNBER - BRAAEBEBKKEMN
EENEERBHNELREF RHE22 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. Bf 7 E [ E 2 @)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBEKEREEm
3.1.4 Liquidity risk (Continued) 3.1.4 7R B M [ By ()
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant TRARAEFAR - E-_—_FER_T=-—%F
maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities as at 31 + A=+ HERAHEHABRSEDN
December 2022 and 2021, disclosed in undiscounted cash flows SHBEESN BEEAEREAXR %ﬁ IWIE 4
(including interest payments calculated using contractual rates or, if REPETEHRAAONEXFIREZEREEAKR
variable, based on current rates at the end of the respective reporting IRTTH R (EREBR)TETERNF B
period): KB FE
Within
1 year or Between Between 5 years Carrying
ondemand 1and2years 2and5 years above Total amount
—FRH
EEX -—-SZWFE MEEREF EENLE st IREE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARBTRL AR®TT AR®TT ARBTE ARETT

As at 31 December 2022 HA=-Z ==

t=A=+-8
Borrowings EE 34,698 34,376 99,703 49,226 218,003 186,300
Trade and other payables 2 5 & H i fE 1 3 56,793 — — — 56,793 56,793
Lease liabilities HEAE 879 2,324 2,220 18,047 23,470 13,162
92,370 36,700 101,923 67,273 298,266 256,255

As at 31 December 2021 HA=-T=—4F

t=A=+-8
Borrowings EE 35,274 34,969 102,647 81,349 254,239 211,000
Trade and other payables & 5 K& H b & {~ 28 64,883 — = = 64,883 64,883
Lease liabilities HERRE 815 795 5,352 17,277 24,239 12,737
100,972 35,764 107,999 98,626 343,361 288,620
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #, %= —

RE BTTEIRRMIEE
—E -+ -_A=+—HItEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BI B E B EE @)
3.2 Capital management 32 EXERE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its AREBEBERANENAREREBER
ability to continue as a going concern to provide returns for BENFELE TN AIRELRR MR U
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain an LEEMmEZREA AERANZE - B S
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. BEEREBURLESHE A -
The Group monitors its capital on the basis of gearing ratio, REBENBEBHRELEER L XTIRE
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated BEEFERNAEARAFE - BEFEER
as total borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash BEBELRTHEABERBESLABESEZEYR
equivalents and restricted cash. Total capital is calculated as total STREBS BEARENERETIN LI
equity plus net cash. SFRE -
The Group’s strategy is to maintain its gearing ratio at a healthy level AEBNRBEERIEAGH REBEMNK
to support its business activities. The main strategies adopted by the T U BEEEY AEBERRNEE
Group include but not limited to reviewing future cash flow BEEEIRRENRRBEREFT K
requirements and monitoring the ability to meet debt repayment et NAEHERNE N #iEEHE
schedules, maintaining an adequate amount of committed credit BN AGEEEENARKRENRETZ
facilities and adjusting investment and financing plans, if necessary, (tnz ) C PIRERANEF }zg *ﬁ‘ SIEKFER
to ensure that the Group has a reasonable level of capital. The BR W_E-__—_FRrR_ZT-_—F+=H
gearing ratios as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows: Er= E MaEERNT:
2022 2021
=SHE= T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARET T
Total borrowings EE R 186,300 211,000
Lease liabilities HEBE 13,162 12,737
Less: cash and cash equivalents WRERREEEY (205,381) (222,320
restricted cash PR HI IR & (7,817) (18,341)
Net cash REFE (13,736) (16,924)
Total equity T AR R 866,298 1,171,591
Total capital FER= i 852,562 1,154,667
Gearing ratio BELE N/A TEA N/A A3

3.3 Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at
amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2022 and 2021 since either the instruments are short-
term in nature or the interest receivable/payable is close to the
current market rates.

33 EMTEAMNAFEE

AR AEEREEKAVEN SR ITAS
52 HA 1 ok B e E A R BB E BT T S A
ERE MR ZEZZFRZT=Z—F+
A=+ —H IAENEEESREQAFE
BEEDK -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.
AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the use
of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Recoverability of trade receivables and
debt investments at amortised cost

The loss allowances for trade receivables and debt investments
at amortised cost are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment assessment, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking
information at the end of each reporting period. In assessing
forward-looking information, the Group considers factors
including macroeconomic factors, industry risks and changes
in debtors’ conditions. The changes in the basis of estimation
or economic conditions could lead to a change in the level of
credit loss allowance recorded and consequently on the
charge or credit to profit or loss.

(b) Useful life of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Management determines the estimated useful life and related
depreciation and amortisation charges for property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets with reference to the
estimated periods during which future economic benefits are
derived from the use of these assets. Management revises the
depreciation and amortisation charges if the useful life is
different from previous estimates, or writes off or writes down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

XINDA INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022

B 52 & 5t fh 5T & I B

RREAVBRERAEA G WHE
EE - EHEAARIGENBERS
RER -EREREAAKRE ST BRRE
JRZAE t HI B -

ARERBBEERREBEE(REE
HEERT TSP EARAS
2 1) oK O R D) 5 AT 4SS AR
418 -

(a)

¥

T8 I 12 1 65 X
BRENAWY

=

:

B
T

il

34
=4 o
0

I

F
IR

B 5 R R B HK AT EMER R
é%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ@Lﬁﬂ > T8
HEBRXNEBRR AXBEREAEEBRE
FE b~ & AT IS AR DA R & SRS BA R A BT
BMERETHE FHZSRRLESR
BB T R A B IR o R AT R B
B AKEEEERBEEERE TERAR
REBARAEEHERFK - At EEHLK
ERAABHAIREHBEENEEBERE
KFEFHBRES A< R ABRN
TRXITE -

b) WX BERKEURE
FREERHERFH

EREBENE BELARBUALRERE
ENGETAERFHRARTE RBHEX
b D2EAKEREERRSFEEESL
AREENDNOGT BT AEE - EA L
REMBERGF AR EEEBERT T
EREHE L MERMRC HELCD
HEARM EEBRIFBBUENEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Impairment loss for non-financial assets
(other than goodwill)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether non-financial assets suffered any impairment in
accordance with accounting policy stated in Note 2.9. The
non-financial assets are reviewed for the impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
determination of recoverable amount requires an estimation of
future cash flows, the selection of appropriate discount rates
and other key assumptions. Changes in these estimates could
have a significant impact on the carrying value of the assets
and could result in additional impairment charge or reversal of
impairment in future periods, where applicable.

Impairment loss for goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated. For the purposes of impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated to its respective CGUs.
Management judgement is required in the area of goodwill
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether the carrying
amount of an CGU can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less cost of disposal or
value in use; and (i) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate.

Income taxes

There are certain transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will be reflected in the income tax
expense in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised as management considers it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. In case where
the actual future taxable profit generated are less than
expected, or changes in facts and circumstances which result
in revision of future taxable profit estimation, a material reversal
or further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
will be recognised in profit or loss in the period in which such a
reversal or further recognition takes place.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

(@) Revenue

5. zkoHBER

(a) W=

(b)

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARET T
Sales of electricity HEE 73,486 63,457

Sales of household solar power generation HEFAXRKERK
systems and rendering smart energy services REEEERRGE 30,776 253,441
Public infrastructure construction NESE 90,947 145,744
195,209 462,642

Timing of revenue recognition e 5 1 R I BT

At a point in time NE—rF2 98,070 315,230
Over time £ — R 97,139 147,412
195,209 462,642

For the year ended 31 December 2022, there was one
customer (2021: one customer) with which the Group’s
transactions exceeded 10% of total revenue. One customer
(2021: one customer) was from public infrastructure
construction business and none (2021: none) was from smart
energy business. For the year ended 31 December 2022,
revenue derived from this customer amounted to
RMB90,947,000 (2021: RMB145,744,000).

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines (products and services). In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group presents the following
two reportable segments:

° Smart energy business, and
° Public infrastructure construction business.

No geographical information is presented as substantially all of
the Group’s business activities were in the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. &Kk WBE R @
INFORMATION (continued)
(c) Reportable segment profit or loss, assets c) I2HoHEZ BEER
and liabilities =R
Public
Smart infrastructure
energy  construction Intersegment
business business Unallocated  eliminations Total
g8 28
RRER DBERER AAE L] @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTE ARBTT ARETT ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-E-__f+-HF=+-H
LEE

Revenue from external customers R P Y s 104,262 90,947 - - 195,209
Impairment losses on financial assets SREENEBR (15,272) - - - (15,272
Finance income BERA 7,193 179 1 - 7,373
Finance expenses BER (11,814) - ) - (11,815)
Share of net loss of associates accounted for £ F 4 % 5 A BR B0 B & A &) )

using the equity method wEnE (265,854) - - - (265,854)
Income tax expense FERAX (31,464) (411) - - (31,875)
(Loss}/profit for the year FR(EE)/&F (304,018) 818 (2,948) - (306,148)
Other information Hit & £
Depreciation and amortisation TERE#H (36,272) (52) (71) - (36,395)
Additions to non-current assets (Note) NEFERBHEE () 31,019 - - - 31,019
As at 31 December 2022 R-EB--—E+-A=+-H
Reportable segment assets AEZRDHBEE 960,147 215,908 346,827 (343,084) 1,179,798
Reportable segment liabilities AZHHMAE 492,838 161,612 2,134 (343,084) 313,500
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-2--f+=-A=+-H

LEE

Revenue from external customers YN P U a5 316,898 145,744 = = 462,642
Reversal of impairment losses on financial € B & Z& KR E BB &M

assets BB — — — B,TP
Impairment losses on property, plant and ME BERREREESRE

equipment (11,642) - - — (11,642
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets FRAEESEREER (80) - - - (80)
Finance income BERA 6,802 245 1 - 7,048
Finance expenses BMERY (13,320) - (18) - (13,338)
Share of net gain of associates accounted for 5% F # 2 & A\ BR A0 B 2 A B4

using the equity method mwFHE 2,457 - - - 2,457
Income tax expense FBHAX (34,701) 4,172 - = (38,879)
(Loss)/profit for the year FN(ER)/ & F (28,016) 2,684 (4,706) - (30,038)
Other information HMEH
Depreciation and amortisation NERBE (31,943) (18) (1,211) = (33,172)
Additions to non-current assets (Note) REFRDEE W) 33,108 - - - 33,108
As at 31 December 2021 R-B--E+-A=+-H
Reportable segment assets AERDWEBE 1,723,643 215,280 357,460 (796,765) 1,499,618
Reportable segment liabilities AERNBERE 964,834 159,635 323 (796,765) 328,027
Note: Additions to non-current assets exclude financial assets and deferred Wi : AREFRBEETLREREENE

tax assets. EHBEEE -
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R BB IRARMEE

Ny =]
For th

6.

e year ended 31 December 2022 & Z& — & — —

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses

F+_A=1tT—HILFE

6.

and administrative

expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss are listed by

nature as follows:

BEMHEDENEX

REBRRPHERES HERDHAX
RATHARIEEHRINMT

2022 2021
—E—-= —E=—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT T ARET T
Changes in inventories of finished goods (Note 24) ®45K T i) 17 & & &) (Mf 51 24) 15,962 210,591
Subcontract costs o BERA 82,917 137,517
Employee benefit expense (Note 7) EERFAZ (ME?) 16,891 36,536
Depreciation and amortisation Hr & N 8 36,395 33,172
Consulting and legal fees B NEEER 3,210 5,818
Repair and maintenance expenses HERRERX 8,220 6,095
Transportation and travelling expenses BERHkERBX 704 3,142
Promotion and advertising expenses HEMESRAX 304 635
Short term lease expenses and low-value assets A ER X RIRBEEEHRE
lease expenses 53 1,914 2,969
Impairment losses of property, plant and M - B R EREEE
equipment (Note 14) (fF5E14) - 11,642
Reversal of inventories write-down (Note 24) TFERMORER (MiE24) (22) (976)
Utilities NHEHE 6,172 893
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 B % BA
— Audit services — &R 1,800 1,800
— Non-audit services — EEZRE 300 333
Others HAh 4,601 6,685
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution HEKA  HE R D HAX &
expenses and administrative expenses THRAX &% 179,368 456,852
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #, %= —

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

RE BTTEIRRMIEE
—E -+ -_A=+—HItEE

7. BERAMAX

2022 2021
—E=-= —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREF T
Wages, salaries and allowances ITE& - %< k=R 14,611 32,377
Post-employment benefit and other welfare BERE 2 12 A R H AR FIF 2 (a)
expenses (a) 2,280 4,159
Equity-settled share-based payment EREZEFEURMND IR
reversal (b) £ (@ (b) — _
16,891 36,536
(a) Post-employment benefit () BEEEEA
Pursuant to the relevant labor rules and regulations in the PRC, RIBEPBEEBEEERERENR K&

the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in the defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal government authorities
whereby the Group is required to make contributions to the
Schemes at certain proportions of eligible employees’ salaries,
ranging from 16% to 20%. The local government authorities
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees. The Group has no other material
obligations for the payment of pension benefits in connection
with the Schemes beyond the annual contributions described
above.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate in the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Scheme for its employees.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held in the funds controlled
by an independent trustee. The contributions arising from the
MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss represent contributions payable to the funds at the
rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

BHOTRBERANBAREAES AP
B 3 77 BT A B AR A5 0 RE RR R BUR
17MaaflJ*+iU(f*Jr2|JJ)'?J§¢t'$%l
ARAEREBEEHFEETLEMNT
16% 2 20%) [A) 5+ 8 F 45K - #75
BUAT H B B B AHE MR IR R B
PHEERENER - ARELER L
ot 4 2 RSN B AT B AR B R K AR
MNROEMEREE -

REBR E\i’éﬁ’]%%’&ﬂ%ﬁ@%
SEBFHEAER((RES])E -
BiEE *JriUE']ﬁEEEIﬁiE%%}\TW
HWEESRHE EREBERERAIIX
MRS AT BN SRR S E
RAFMRENLLERARESERE
A R o

BERBERERAT  Fik 2022

121



122

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
A

EA SRR I RE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

(b) Equity settled share-based payment

On 26 January, 11 May and 14 September 2018, the
Company announced to grant 36,441,291, 10,140,000 and
66,645,000 share options (the “Options”), respectively, under
its share option scheme adopted on 22 November 2011. The
Options entitled the eligible participants to subscribe for up to
a total of 113,226,291 new shares with par value of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company. The vesting of share
options is based on the servicing period of the employee up to
3 years from the date of grant and the fulfilment of certain
performance targets of the Group, including but not limited to
the financial performance of the Group as well as the grantee’s
individual performance. The maximum term of the options
granted is 10 years from the date of the offer. The weighted
average exercise price is set as HK$1.8 per share. The Options
are deemed as equity settled share-based payment. As at 1
January 2022 and 31 December 2022, the number of share
options outstanding was 1,078,200 and 718,800 (2021:
26,824,730 and 1,078,200) respectively. No share option is
granted, exercised or forfeited during the year (2021: Nil).
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the number of
share options lapsed was 359,400 (2021: 25,746,530). As at
31 December 2022, the weighted average exercise price of
options outstanding is HK$1.8 (2021: HK$1.8) and the
weighted average remaining contractual life was 5.1 years (2021:
6.1 years).

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no expense arised
from share-based payment transactions previously recognised
as part of employee benefit expense (2021: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 include one
Director (2021: nil) whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis in Note 37. The emoluments payable to the remaining
four (2021: five) individuals during the year are as follows:

7. EEEABE X @

(c) EfuEmZEHF AL

BHE-_Z-_—Ff+-A=+—HLt
FE AEBENANRSHFALTFE
E—uUEE(CE-_—F:8&) H¥F
T A FEITH S Hpmir (=
T —F:RAM)ATFAEFHBR

R
The emoluments fell within the following bands: FEAN T EE :
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % 1,000,000/ 7T 3 5
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7T £ 1,500,000 7T - =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7T & 2,000,000/ 7T 1 =
8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES/(REVERSAL OF 8. EHMEEMRMERE M
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES) ON FINANCIAL BEEERE)
ASSETS
2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AR®TT

Reversal of impairment losses for financial assets 12 # #5 AN st E M S B & = K
at amortised cost (Note 22) B (B &5 18 7 [ (M 7% 22) (8,302) (8,140)
Impairment losses for trade and other receivables & 5 K E i & U 7% 18 & 5 & &5 18

(Note 25) (B 5E25) 23,574 2,405
15,272 (5,735)
9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hftlr A
2022 2021
—E-—F —ET-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR¥TT

Government grants AT 175 B

176 149
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —&F — —

F+_A=1tT—HILFE

11

10. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET 10. Hftt (&518) = F 5
2022 2021
-~ Sl T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Net fair value gains on financial assets at fair value & A F{Et 2 B 28zt AB%
through profit or loss MERMEENTFEKZFRE - 700
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) [E 5 Uz /(&5 18) 8 3,589 (486)
Net gains on disposal of property, plant HEME  HWE KRB WS
and equipment FEE 26 -
(Loss)/gains on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QAR (&E), s (8,488) 748
Others Hih 151 32
4,722) 904
FINANCE EXPENSES — NET 1. EEXFHE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT
Finance income & WA
Interest income from loans to related parties and  [ME T RE = FEHH
third parties B A 4,854 5,737
Interest income from bank deposits RITE KA B WA 2,519 1,311
Total finance income A& U A B R 7,373 7,048
Finance expenses & F 5
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABMNERX (686) (726)
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEEMNEHRAX (11,129) (12,592)
Net interest expense FERAXT F5E (11,815) (13,318)
Others Hftb - (20)
Total finance expenses BhERZ B (11,815) (13,338)
Finance expenses — net AR FE (4,442) (6,290)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #, %= —
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b E RS

—E -+ -_A=+—HItEE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FRB BB <
2022 2021
-~ Sl T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREF T
Current income tax BV ERET 15 %50 (2,927) (860)
Deferred income tax ELEFFERE (28,948) (38,013)
(31,875) (88,873)
(@)  The reconciliation of income tax expense to the theoretical @ METRAIEEAERARGEER
amount that would arise using the statutory tax rates HEAEMEAESENERBEN
applicable to the consolidated entities are as follows: HERWOT -
2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARET T
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETS R AT (B18), % 7 (274,273) 8,835
Tax calculated at applicable statutory tax rates 323 A & & T K 51 & ) §i 18 72,407 (2,387)
Tax effect of: LT EENHETE
Preferential tax rates BEH X 4,002 3,115
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 7[_ B (66,446) (297)
Income not taxable BARBRBA 658 410
Tax losses for which no deferred tax assets AR HEsRIE FEF1 18 & &= 69 1 18
has been recognised & TE (8,405) (4,151)
Temporary differences for which no deferred 7k i 52 48 1E %1 18 & B BY B RS
tax assets has been recognised =R (5,894) (2,351)
Utilisation of temporary differences for which &) F 7k # 323 fE 4 18 & &= &Y
no deferred tax assets has been recognised s = %8 378 529
Previously unrecognised tax losses recouped 9 1 JA 1 K FE SR 7 1B &5 48
to reduce current tax expense (BUR AR BT B ) 1,837 3,443
Derecognition of deferred tax assets RIETERBELER IEE E (30,412) (37,184)
Income tax expense Fr 4% %5 2 (31,875) (38,873)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12.

(b) As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not recognise
deferred tax assets in respect of accumulated tax losses
arising from the Group’s entities in the PRC amounting to
RMB67,094,000 (2021: RMB43,982,000), as management
believed it is more likely that such tax losses would not be
utilised before their expiry.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the expiry dates of tax
losses arising from the Group’s entities in the PRC with no

Fir 18 B B8 X (@)

) R-ZT-_—F+-A=+—0 K&
By ERAEERFEEREN R
i 18 &5 18 A R #67,094,000 7T (= &
Z—F: AR %43982,0007T) & R
EERELEE RASEHERRZ

750 78 15 18 170 B HA Al 1S X AT g

RZEBEZZFR=_F =

WL -

—%#+=7

=t—B AKERTEERCRE

deferred tax assets recognised are as follows: RELEHRBEE) MM BEEEZIEA
wmr

2022 2021
—E=-C= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR ARBFTT

Year of expiry P HF (7
2022 —_EF-= - 8,672
2023 —E-=4F 7,877 9,091
2024 777m¢ 3,926 4,549
2025 —ET-RF 7,606 7,606
2026 igizxi 14,064 14,064
2027 —EEF 33,621 —
67,094 43,982
(c)  Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands o BERSZHELREBERTBES (X

and the British Virgin Islands (“the BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income taxes in these jurisdictions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #, %= —

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

©

The Group did not make any provisions for Hong Kong profit
tax as there were no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil). As at 31
December 2022, the Group did not recognise deferred tax
assets in respect of accumulated tax losses arising from the
Group’s entities in Hong Kong amounting to RMB49,326,000
(2021: RMB46,358,000).

For the year end 31 December 2022, the statutory income tax
rate of entities within the Group registered in the PRC is 25%
(2021: 25%), except for certain entities entitled to tax
exemption or preferential rates:

Since the respective first revenue-generating year, subsidiaries
of the Company operating solar power plants are exempted
from enterprise income tax for the first three years and are
entitled to a 50% tax reduction for the subsequent three years.
From 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2021, Hoboksar
Mongol Autonomous County Sifang Dianjin Energy Co., Ltd.
(“Sifang Dianjin”), an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, is exempted from enterprise income tax for the
first two years and are entitled to a 50% tax reduction for the
subsequent three years.

RE BTTEIRRMIEE
—E -+ -_A=+—HItEE

12. FTEB B X @

(@

HRAEBERBE_T__F1+=
A=tT—-BLFEYERBEEL

J& SR A Eﬁljﬁﬁﬁﬁdﬁé;‘%ﬂ%ﬁ{’ﬁ
HEMBEB(—E_—F: &)

T _—_4#+=-A=+—8" $’il1
ERAEERESEERMNEFHE
BB A R #49,826,000T (=& = —
F: AR #46,358,0007T ) i R i i
RIBEE -

HE-_ZT-_—_F+-A=+—HL
FE AEERPEEMOEENZE
EMER25%(ZTZ—F :25%)

HETERERHAZZEERE

BEEENEEEKEFELE  AQF
RESNKNBUHNHNBRARNE=F&

MEBMEERSY HE=-FE
50% %t TE R . °
BT \F—A—HB&E=-T=—

F+-_RA=+—HI1 ARQRIMEEIE
2EMBARMMTEREZH AR
SUrEcERERAT(TEEE
) EMFRREHMNEERER
ﬁ?ﬁEEﬁSO%mlﬁﬁﬁa °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE

13. ERE B

(a) Basic loss per share (@ BREXREIE
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss BEARAEBGEEARAQARNEE AENL
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted BREBULNFANDZEITE B INE
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year: EighstE
2022 2021
—E-= T4
Loss attributable to owners of NARIEE ARGEE
the Company (RMB’000) (AR¥FT) (306,368) (28,221)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 2 %17 & 38 i% A0 #E T 15 &
in issue (thousands) (Fh%) 1,484,604 1,484,604
Basic loss per share (RMB) REXEE(ARET) (0.2064) (0.0190)
(b) Diluted loss per share b) ERBHEEA

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. For the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no diluted loss per
share has been presented because the exercise price of the
Company’s options was higher than the average market price
per share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BERKRE

Furniture,
Plant and Motor fixtures and Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles equipment  in progress Total
HE £B
BF BEREM RE EL] ERIR ‘et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARBTR ARETT ARETR
Cost S
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE=-——%—H—H 16,986 518,208 1,360 20,387 4,360 561,301
Additions NE — 32,043 — 120 88 32,196
Transfers ®wH = = = 43 (43) -
Disposals of assets upon HEHBARIEREEE
disposal of subsidiaries — (4,654) - - - (4,654)
At31 December2021and  HRZ-ZE=—4F+=-A=1+—H
1 January 2022 k=Z=-=%—HF—H 16,986 545,597 1,360 20,550 4,350 588,843
Additions NE — 28,635 — 143 — 28,778
Transfers iz — 23 — — (23) —
Disposals & - (77) 211) (191) = (479
Disposals of assets upon HENBRAIKEELE
disposal of subsidiaries (64) (16,237) (802) (75) (4,296) (21,474)
At 31 December 2022 RZBE-_—_F+-A=1+—8H 16,922 557,941 347 20,427 31 595,668
Accumulated depreciation 23 7 E KR &
and impairment
At 1 January 2021 RZF-_—%—F—H 2,842 104,742 674 10,249 - 118,507
Charge for the year FRII% 893 23,300 63 3,183 - 27,439
Disposals of assets upon HENBARINEEEE
disposal of subsidiaries - (1,313 - - - (1,313
Impairment ERE! 8,218 3,240 — 184 — 11,642
At 31 December2021and H-ZE-_—F+-HA=1+—H
1 January 2022 R=—T-=F—HF—H 11,953 129,969 737 13,616 - 156,275
Charge for the year FRFIZ 451 32,443 56 579 — 33,529
Disposals HE - @ (204) (181) — (387)
Disposals of assets upon HENBARKEEAE
disposal of subsidiaries (10) (15,372) (651) (71) — (16,004)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZBE-_—F+-A=+—H 12,394 147,038 38 13,943 - 173,413
Net book amount REFE
At 31 December 2022 RZZE-ZZ%+=-A=+—H 4,528 410,908 309 6,484 31 422,255
At 31 December 2021 RZTZ—+=ZRA=+—8H 5,033 415,628 623 6,934 4,350 432,568
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R BB IRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %= —

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(@)

As at 31 December 2022, certain machineries of solar power
plants of the Group with carrying amount of RMB246,991,000
(2021: RMB266,055,000) were pledged as security for the
Group’s borrowings (Note 29).

Based on an outlook of the development progress of Hoboksar
Mongol Autonomous County Hefeng Industrial Park (“Hefeng
Industrial Park”), management carried out an impairment test
on the Group’s property, plant and equipment in the
transformer station at Hefeng Industrial Park as at 31
December 2022, with carrying amount of RMB55,195,000 (2021:
RMB71,072,000 ). Xinjiang Saier Power Distribution Co., Ltd.
(“Xinjiang Saier”), an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, is under the process of entering into a franchise
operation agreement with the local government of Hoboksar
Mongol Autonomous County to invest and operate the
incremental electricity distribution network at Hefeng Industrial
Park for a period of 30 years.

The recoverable amount of the assets has been determined
based on a fair value less cost of disposal. The recoverable
amount is categorised within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
The calculation uses depreciated replacement cost method
based on the key assumptions including the quoted price in
the market, which reflects replacement cost of the property,
plant and equipment and obsolescence rate which is adjusted
for age, condition, economic or functional obsolescence and
environmental factor existing at the end of the year, if any.
Based on the valuation prepared by management, the
recoverable amount would be RMB55,195,000 (2021:
RMB59,430,000).

As a result of the above assessment, no impairment loss was
recognised for the Group’s property, plant and equipment
located in Hefeng Industrial Park in the smart energy business
segment for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB11,642,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(©

Based on an outlook of the operating condition of a solar
power plant owned by the Group, management carried out an
impairment test on the property, plant and equipment in the
solar power plant as at 31 December 2022, with carrying
amount of RMB4,530,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB4,880,000). The recoverable amount of the assets has
been determined based on the higher of their fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. The value in use calculation
uses cash flow projection based on approved financial budget
and a pre-tax discount rate of 14%. The key assumption of the
cash flow projection is a nil annual growth rate in revenue for
the budget period and the extrapolation period.

As a result of the above assessment, no impairment was
recognised for the property, plant and equipment in the solar
power plant for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

14. ¥ BEREKE@®

BEH —BHHAESEREENLKRE
HEEBRANEE BEEER S
——F+-_A=t+—BHZXKE
vk AR A E A A R #4,530,0007T (=
Z-_— €+ -A=+—8: AR
4,880,0007T) B %« BB K&
TREANR BEEMATKESERE
ERATEREHEKRAzZHERE
BEFHREEET FHEBRKRER
B EVMBRBRENR S REENR
RATF IR E14%5E - HE =278
WEZEBRKXATEE I RIEE UK
mHFREERRT -

AR LG H#E T -_—F+=
A=+—BLEFE ZXKEHD
ME - BEMEBL ERAREEIE
(ZE=—F )

BERBERERAT  Fik 2022

131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

15. LEASES 15. &
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a HHEREAETBEAABANTEE
lessee: B
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (@ REEHMBERRKREZN
statement of financial position -
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-ZTB-—F RZTEZ—F
+=-—BA=+—H +=ZA=+—~H”
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREF T
Right-of-use assets ZHERE
Leasehold land and land use rights FAE 1t [ £ s {5 R 4 12,428 11,252
Properties L3 2,362 3,810
Equipment B 2 21
14,792 15,083
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current mE 704 627
Non-current IER &) 12,458 12,110
13,162 12,737
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 HEZE-_—_F#+-_RA=+—HIE
December 2022 amounted to RMB1,980,000 (2021: FE O AENEAEEEAEARKE
RMB912,000). 1,980,0007c( =T = —F: AR¥
912,0007T) °
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R B RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;

15. LEASES (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss

15. A & @)

EF_FT_—

FT-A=1t—HILFE

b) REEEERBERANTHE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T ARBT T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets EHELENITEER
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE + i &+ {5 B A 804 799
Properties LES 175 2,841
Equipment B 19 19
998 3,659
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets & 1 & 2= B B 1B
Leasehold land and land use rights TS 13 J £ s (5 AR AE - 80
Interest expense (included in finance expenses) F| B Gt AR ERX) 686 726
Gains on lease modification HEEFT W= (69) -
Expense relating to short-term leases REHEERBERZ (GEA
(included in administrative expenses) TBAXA) 1,914 2,969

During the year ended 31 December 2022 the total cash
outflow for leases was RMB2,813,000 (2021: RMB5,569,000).

BE_T-__F#+-_A=+—HLFE"
HERS KL LT A ARK2813,0007T

(ZZ=——%F : AR¥5,569,0007T) °
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Ny =]

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. B EE

Service
concession
Goodwill (b) Software Patent arrangement (c) Total
B A 45 5F
&2 (b) g#4 =¥ ZH(c) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®TR ARBTT ARETL
At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZEF+-A=+—-H
Cost (B9 3,261 17,630 4,038 — 24,929
Accumulated amortisation and S B R RAE
impairment (2,347) (14,817) (976) - (18,140)
Net book amount REFE 914 2,813 3,062 - 6,789
Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZE=-ZE=-—-f+=-B=+-—H
i1:3:5
Opening net book amount BYREEEE 914 2,813 3,062 - 6,789
Amortisation charge BET W — (1,671) (403) = (2,074)
Closing net book amount R BRE R E 914 1,142 2,659 - 4,715
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB-_—-f+-A=+—H
Cost A 3,261 17,630 4,038 - 24,929
Accumulated amortisation and 2B HERRAE
impairment (2,347) (16,488) (1,379) - (20,214)
Net book amount REEE 914 1,142 2,659 — 4,715
Year ended 31 December 2022 ®BZE-ZE=-=-f+=-A=+-—-H
i:3:5
Opening net book amount HREFE 914 1,142 2,659 = 4,715
Acquired on acquisition of a WE-—HNBARREE
subsidiary (note 34) (P 7E34) 16,567 — — 60,589 77,156
Additions NE — — — 261 261
Disposals of assets upon disposal & i B A 7B i B A&
of subsidiaries (366) - (2,491) - (2,857)
Amortisation charge BHETH - (1,055) (168) (645) (1,868)
Closing net book amount HARREEE 17,115 87 - 60,205 77,407
At 31 December 2022 R=-ZB-=Zf+=-A=+-H
Cost B AR 19,462 17,630 1,547 60,850 99,489
Accumulated amortisation and 2HBHEKAE
impairment (2,347) (17,543) (1,547) (645) (22,082)
Net book amount BREEE 17,115 87 - 60,205 77,407
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(@)

Notes to the Consolida

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &; %=

For the year ended 31 December 2022, amortisation (@ &
amounting to RMB1,174,000 (2021: RMB1,543,000) was &=
charged to administrative expenses and RMB694,000 (2021: ==
RMB531,000) to cost of sales. 1T

B

The following table presents the changes in goodwill for the ) T
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. =

#eh
=

ted Financial Statements
e R MIEE
- F+_A=+—HLFE

16. B EE @)

EFE-_—_F#+=ZRA=+—A8H1
B ARM1174000T (=8 = —
© AR #1,543,0007T ) B ## 85 5T A
KA mAR694,000T (==
—4& : AR#531,0007T) 5t ASHE
$a

KRBV EHEEE_—_FR_F =
F+_ A=+t BILFENRE
&) :

As at
31 December
2020 and As at
31 December Additions/ 31 December
2021 (disposals) 2022
RZBZEF
+=A=+-—-8H
ER=-ZF=-—F R-ZB-—F
+=ZHA=+—-8 HFE(HE) +=ZA=t+-—8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
Goodwill =
Gao Bei Dian City Guangshuo /&= i [5 1 Y 8 37 fE R &
New Energy Group Co., Ltd. BAER AT
(“Guangshuo”) (MEl) 686 — 686
Tianjin Haitian Fangyuan Energy X328 X 77 [B] £ 8¢
Saving Technology Co., Ltd. SR NG
(“Haitian Fangyuan”) (MEXxAHED 366 (366) -
Hebei Fakai Energy Development ;] 4k & 25 8l 6L R B 2 B
Co., Ltd. (‘Fakai’) REERA
(rzsll) 2,209 - 2,209
Shandong Shengfeng Heating | B B L #h /) B[R & (£
Co., Ltd (“Shengfeng Heating”) A 7 ([BX &z 5 ) = 16,567 16,567
3,261 16,201 19,462
Impairment Bt 18
Guangshuo (Note) 8 (M 7E) (138) = (138)
Haitian Fangyuan BRH — _ _
Fakali sl (2,209) - (2,209)
(2,347) — (2,347)
914 16,201 17,115
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %= —

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

()

E-_—_F+-_A=+—HBItEE

6. B EE @)

(Continued) ) (&)

Note: Guangshuo and its subsidiaries (together the “Guangshuo Group”), s RELRHENBAG (GBI REEFR)RES
engaged in the electricity sales business, owns two solar power NEEXEB L HEEMENLRKEI - & NHKRE
plants. The assets of each solar power plant represent a cash- WEEHER—EARSELSEM(REEL
generating unit (‘CGU"). The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have BAD BREEABMMNITIKESEREE
been determined based on the higher of their fair value less costs of AEEREEXRAZZLBFERABETRINRS
disposal and value in use. The calculations use cash flow projections EET ZTEFERAENERLERKEREED
based on approved financial budgets and pre-tax discount rate of B2 ne@lEBHAITER14% - BE2hsE
14%. The key assumption of the cash flow projections is a nil annual FEANTFEREARFANFERRAS -
growth rate in revenue.

As a result of the above assessment, no impairment of goodwill was AR EFH B2z _—_F+=-_A=
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB nil). +—HLEFEYEEZHERE(ZZE = —
F:ARETRT) -

Intangible assets recognised in 2022 were related to the 00 RIE-__FHIANEFREESRZE

service concession arrangement associated with the business WAL N (MME34) B8R

combination of Shengfeng Heating (Note 34). The service BRI ER RESFZHED
concession arrangement of approximately RMB60,589,000 A R #60,589,000 T E MR BB
was recognised, which is valued by an independent valuer of fHEEMET(HE XA BESN

discounting the future expected net profits of Shengfeng T BX B BN h oK Sk B B AT I HE 1T I

Heating generated from using “excess profit” method. Key B -HEEEELAFEETHEMFE

inputs used in valuing the fair value of the intangible assets are AR FEG ABBESHI AT :

set forth below:

30 September

2022
—E—-

hBA=+AH

Discount rate #r fﬁ = 11%

Budgeted revenue growth rate FEEWRRERX 0-10%

The discount rate was estimated by the weighted average cost
of capital at the date of acquisition of the service concession
arrangement, which reflects specific risks relating to the assets.

The basis used to determine the budgeted revenue growth
rate is the historical data, management’s expectation of the
future market and average growth rate achieved by
comparable companies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements

R B RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 17. EZEFREH
2022 2021
—ZE-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Deferred tax assets RIETIEE = 3,527 33,043
Deferred tax liabilities EEFTE B E (18,846) (10,854)
Movements in deferred tax assets are as follows: BRERIBEEEMNZSHNAT
Loss
allowance  Loss allowance Loss Impairment
for trade and for financial  allowance Provisions of property, Impairment
other assetsat for contract for  plantand of intangible
receivables  amortised cost assets inventories equipment assets Total
ESREM REHEAAGE
ERFEH HNEREEN AHEE nx - BE #BFEE
BEER BRES FHEBRE BERE RREAE BE @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR AR%TR

As at 1 January 2021 R=-B=--%£-H-H 49,245 16,028 4,787 187 339 1,106 71,692
Charge to profit or loss RERIE (18,005) (14,598) (4,787) (187) = (1,072) (38,649)
As at 31 December 2021 and R=—E=--f+=-HA=1+-A

1 January 2022 E-—B-_&-f- 31,240 1,430 — - 339 34 33,043
Charge to profit or loss RERIZ (28,086) (1,430) - - - - (29,516)
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-—&+-fA=+-H 3,154 - - - 339 34 3,627
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %= —

17. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Movements in deferred tax liabilities are as

E-_—_F+-_A=+—HBItEE

follows:

17. EEFF B @)

BERERERZEHNT

18

Fair value
adjustments in
business
combinations
EKEAHN
AFERAE
RMB’000
AR T T
As at 1 January 2021 R-—ZE-_—F—HF—H 11,490
Credit to profit or loss REz=E AR (636)
As at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R=-B=-—f+=-A=+—-HBR=-ZB=-=%—HF—H 10,854
Credit to profit or loss Rigm AR (568)
Disposal of a subsidiary & — KB AR (411)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE— B AR 8,971
As at 31 December 2022 N-E-_—_F£+—-_H=+—H 18,846
CONTRACT ASSETS 18. EHNEE
2022 2021
S E= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREF T
Unbilled revenue of construction contracts BEAARAREWRZ 190,592 187,722

Contract assets are included in current assets as the group expects
to realise these within its normal operating cycle. As at 31 December
2022 and 2021, the Group assessed the impact of loss allowance
for impairment of contract assets was insignificant.
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19. SUBSIDIARIES

The Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 are set out below. The place of incorporation is also their

principal place of business.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

19. fft & A ]

TRIWNTSAEBRZZE_ZFR T = —
F+-_A=+—"HXNEZEWE R A - 1
BTN E T B & 5B, o

Place of Incorporation Ownership
and kind interest held
Name of entity of legal entity Registered capital by the Group  Principal activities
118 AR 3L 3t BE % rEEREEMN
EREE EEERES HMEEX  FEEEE IEXER
Beijing Longguang Energy Technology the PRC RMB90,000,000 100%  Smart energy service
Co., Ltd (“Beijing Longguang”) limited liability company
EREHGERHFZBRAR (MEREXR]) FREBRETLQF A R #90,000,0007T BERRRG
Beijing LongjiTaihe Energy Technology Co., Ltd the PRC RMB50,000,000 100%  Smart energy service
limited liability company
I REEFRMERRERR A TEEREERAA A R #50,000,0007T BERRRE
Hebei Longitech Cloud Energy the PRC RMB300,000,000 100%  Smart energy service
Technology Co., Ltd. limited liability company
AEEEFMERRBRAR DA TEEREERAA A E# 300,000,000 7T BERRRG
Guangshuo the PRC RMB125,708,800 100%  Operation of solar
limited liability company power plant
KB TEAEREMERT AR #125,708,800 7T 2ENSREU
Zhongneng Hexin Longhua County Solar the PRC RMB10,000,000 100%  Operation of solar
Power Generation Co., Ltd. limited liability company power plant
FREAGEREFEAGHREEFREERAR THRAEARIEEAF A R #10,000,0007T BENREU
Hebei Yuedu City Construction the PRC RMB120,000,000 100%  Public infrastructure
Investment Co., Ltd. limited liability company construction
AL RBEBETRRREBRA A HEAREERA A R #120,000,000 7T NEER
Baoding Qiantai Investment Co., Ltd. the PRC RMB120,000,000 100%  Public infrastructure
limited liability company construction
RERZRREFR QA HEAREERA A R #120,000,0007T NEER
Shengfeng Heating the PRC RMB30,185,065 90%  Smart energy service
limited liability company
23 S| TEEREERAR AR #30,185,0657C BERRR
Notes: it ET -

of incorporation.

(i) The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the best effort by the (ii)
Group’s management to translate their Chinese names, as these

The principal place of operation of each subsidiary is the same as its place 0]

subsidiaries do not have official English names.

BB D 2 I B AR i Bl B AL T K S 3 B
R

HRETHBARLEE FRXEME  HK

XEBDAEEEEEERAZATEPX
ZEBEMRS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 20. AR ZEZARNKRE
USING THE EQUITY METHOD
The table below provides the reconciliation of the Group’s aggregate TREVWWAEBAREZE AR IEEEZEH
carrying amounts of investments in associates from opening to ) B HE oK 45 85 MY ST BR -

closing balances:

2022 2021
—®¥-C —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBTT

Opening balance HA 4 45 £ 265,854 263,397
Share of net (loss)/profit of associates accounted  # FA 1 25 55 A EE R B & N B A (48
for using the equity method &),/ R 5% (265,854) 2,457
Closing balance HA R 4% 4 - 265,854
Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December NTHEHIINANEBR-_E-_—_FEFR T
2022 and 2021. The entities listed below have share capital E+-_HA=+—HHEE AT Ny =T
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the MR A ER LT BRARK AAEEHEER
Group. The place of incorporation is also their principal place of Be AT B AR T EL S
business, and the proportion of ownership interest is the same as the BT EERZNEMEEENRERY
proportion of voting rights held. BIFE R ©
% of ownership interest Carrying amount
As at 31 December As at 31 December
FrEERERLL A REE
R+=ZA=+-—H R+=—A=+-H
Place of Measurement
Name of entity incorporation 2022 2021  method 2022 2021
BEREE AME L —FE--F —T-—F HEFE —B-f —T-—F
Longyao (Beijing) Clean Energy the PRC 45% 45%  Equity method - =

Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Longyao Beijing”) (a)

FE 1B (IE 30) R A IR AL Gl RS
BRAA(ERIER]D) @

Gao Bei Dian City Longchuang the PRC 40% 40%  Equity method - 265,854
Central Heating Co., Ltd.
(“Longchuang Heating”) (b)
SMETEASETHABRAF FH R wmE
(Mea1zh])b)
- 265,854
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

()

(b)

On 4 June 2018, Baoding Yize New Energy Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Baoding Yize”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Beijing Yaohui Hengchang Technology
Partnership Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (“Beijing Yaohui”),
an independent third party, agreed to make capital contribution
to Longyao Beijing, which is principally engaged in heat supply
business. As a result, Baoding Yize obtained 45% equity
interest of Longyao Beijing and shall contribute
RMB135,000,000 to Longyao Beijing before 31 December
2021. During the year ended 31 December 2021, Baoding
Yize and Beijing Yaohui had entered into supplemental
agreement that the unpaid amount to be paid before 31
December 2025. RMB33,400,000 has been paid by Baoding
Yize as of 31 December 2022 and 2021.

On 21 May 2019, Beijing Longguang, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a capital increase
agreement with Hebei Julin Chuanghe Cultural Communication
Co., Ltd. (“Hebei Julin”), a company owned by the Controlling
Shareholder, pursuant to which Beijing Longquang agreed to
make capital contribution to Longchuang Heating, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hebei Julin. As a result, Beijing Longguang
obtained 40% equity interest of Longchuang Heating by
making capital contribution of RMB245,000,000. According to
the valuation report issued by an independent third-party
valuer, the Group’s share of the fair value of Longchuang
Heating’s identifiable assets and liabilities on the acquisition
date was RMB263,000,000. The excess of the Group’s share
of the fair value of Longchuang Heating’s identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of investment amounting to
RMB18,000,000 was included as share of net profit of
associates accounted for using the equity method for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

According to the capital increase agreement, Hebei Julin has a
profit guarantee for Longchuang Heating, which will be
assessed by Beijing Longguang and Hebei Julin every three
years from 1 January 2020. The profit compensation will be
calculated at the end of each three-year term and settled by
Hebei Julin on or before 31 March of the year immediately
following the relevant three-year term. The first three-year term
ending 31 December 2022 will be assessed and settled on or
before 31 March 2023.

20. RAREZEZEABRNERE @

(a)

(b)

RZZE—-—N\NFAAAEOH ARQFME
B2 AN B A BRE S EHERE
RERAAI(RERZE]) BBILE
=ritERBEEENEARE L E
(EREB)([RRE])RERE
BRIt R (EEREHAER) EITIE
E-Al RESENFSERIER
BRREBER_Z=_—F+=A
—+—HAMERILREE AR
135,000,0007c c R E T = —F
+ZA=+—HLEFE RERSHE
ERBREIT Y HAHZE BR_Z
—REF+ZA=+t—BAIXNERHA
HoBEE-_—ER=_FE=-_—F+
ZA=t+—H REBZEEIFTAR
# 33,400,000 7T °

R-_ZE—AFRA-_+—8B &AQ
AEE2ENB AR REEER
7 % B% 3R % A B AT JE BX 4B Al AN XX (b
BEBRAB(AILEH]) % B8
Bt b RR KR E a3k BB
ZEEMB QA RA RS TG
BEoA tRBENERIEEARYE
245,000,0007T BY 15 [& &l £ 11 40% A%
- RBREBYF=HHAEMEAEN
HERS AEBEGEAR DR
KWEENAENEERABBENRTE
B B A R #263,000,0007C ° A £ &
BIERABRNTENEEREBEN
AFEBEEERANITH ARE
18,000,000 CEt ABE =T — NF+
At BLEFEEFAESEA
AR AESE & N R AL FI D 58 -

RIBIEE B Z I RBEERR S
FHEBENRE ZREX_F_FF
— A — B d 4t R M e B
BE=FZR R - BINHELES
=FHARKFE YAt RSE
REBEB=FHRZFEZ=A
= t—RAHZAEE -BE_T_—
FT_A=+t—HHNE—BA=FH
BEE_ZT_=F=A=+—Hx
ZEVETTEZANGEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(C) The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses
of Longyao Beijing. The amount of unrecognised share of the
associate, extracted from the relevant management account of

20. RAREZEZEABRNERE @

() remMErR IBRRER

FE AL =AY

BENE BERARBIRAFESR
MERRBNZBE RN RER

Longyao Beijing for the year is as follows: MBERBELOT :
2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARBFTT

Unrecognised share of losses of associates 7N 4F [Z B 4 A 7] B K HE 72 /5 18
for the year Ak 427 945
(d) Commitments in respect of associates (d) BN a]ErEAE

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Investment in associate REE RN RIIRE 101,600 101,600
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #, %= —

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(e) Summarised financial information for
associates

The table below provides summarised financial information for

20. SRR

RE BTTEIRRMIEE
—E -+ -_A=+—HItEE

EARNKRE @
(e) BbE AR BIE Bt

AEEBERARYBEEHM A M TRAA

the Group’s associates. The information disclosed reflects the R WERE B RMAEMEE S A TS ®R
amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant KT EBRNELSEE ZELBODETEBE

associates, which have been amended to reflect adjustments
made by the Group when using the equity method, including
fair value adjustments and modifications for differences in

DA B 7 o B 7 I PO M 250K S RSB -
EEATEBEREHBRAZRANY
k-

accounting policy.

2022 2021
—8=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETT
Longchuang Heating f& Bl & hH
Summarised statement of financial position Bt #% AR 57 3% #f 1t
Current assets MBEE 557,045 1,396,150
Non-current assets EmEEE 619,308 677,193
Current liabilities mEEE (909,295) (858,607)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (1,047,709) (714,567)
Net (liabilities)/assets F(BE)EE (780,651) 500,169
Reconciliation to carrying amounts EHRREE R
Opening net assets HYEEE 500,169 486,827
(Loss)/profit for the year FN(ER), & (1,280,820) 13,342
Closing net (liabilities)/assets HRF (BB EE (780,651) 500,169
Fair value adjustments AT EFE
Revaluation surplus on acquisition I i 12 (B 182,440 182,440
Amortisation of share of revaluation surplus B E D B (25,175) (17,973)
Closing net (liabilities)/assets adjusted using  #% A 4 7 )% 38 2 ) HA K F
the equity method (A&, BE (623,386) 664,636
Group’s shares in % 7 5 [ F5 R L A 40% 40%
Group’s shares in RMB REERMDIAARES|R - 265,854
Carrying amounts of investment in associates 7 B & A 7% & iR B & - 265,854
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % —&F — —

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR

F+_A=1tT—HILFE

USING THE EQUITY METHOD (continued)

20. RAREZEZEABRNERE @

() Summarised financial information for ) B&E AR MK E S B
associates (Continued) (&)
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBF T
Longchuang Heating (Continued) fERl& H (&)
Year ended 31 December BZ+=-A=1+—HLEE
Revenue g 225,322 221,576
Expenses 53 (1,506,142) (208,234)
(Losses)/profits from continuing operations BECEEE (BB, &5 (1,280,820) 13,342
Other comprehensive income Hib2EKA - =
Total comprehensive income SHIRABLE (1,280,820) 13,342

Dividend record from associate
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 20. RAREZ EARNAKRE @
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
() Summarised financial information for ) & AR MK E S B
associates (Continued) (&)
2022 2021
—EC-_8% T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR®TT

Longyao Beijing 37 A

Summarised statement of financial position B # AR 57 3 #f 1t

Current assets MEE E 550 1,762

Non-current assets EMEBEE 27 67

Current liabilities mEEE 4,713) (5,019)
Net liabilities FEE (4,136) (3,186)
Reconciliation to carrying amounts EHEREEY R

Opening net liabilities HYFEE (3,186) (1,091)
Loss for the year FRNEE (950) (2,099)
Closing net liabilities HARFAEE (4,136) (3,186)
Group’s shares in % AN E TRy g ALl 45% 45%

Group’s shares in RMB REERMDIAARES|R - =

Carrying amounts of investment in associates B4 R 7R EBRHEE - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 2. e T AEEHA
CATEGORY
The Group holds the following financial instruments: AEEFE TSI A :
(@) Financial assets (@ =MEE

Financial assets at
amortised cost
REBERATE
HWERMEE
2022 2021
—®== —Eo

—— =

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR ARBTT

Trade and other receivables B 5 K& H fib fE W FRIAE
(excluding non-financial assets) (TRIEEcRHEE) 239,292 208,705
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKNATENESREE - 64,035
Restricted cash R3] & 7,817 18,341
Cash and cash equivalents HehBeEEY 205,381 222 320
452,490 513,401

(b) Financial liabilities b) E@EE
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
REBERATENESREE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T

Trade and other payables B 5 K H b FEAT 5B
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (TBEFemAas) 56,793 64,883
Borrowings ERE 186,300 211,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 13,162 12,737

256,255 288,620
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #, %= —

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BTTEIRRMIEE
—E -+ -_A=+—HItEE

R BRBERATENES
BE

COST
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARETF T
Loans to related parties REERT AL - 12,662
Loans to third parties RHERTE=HR 55,683 61,703
Receivable relating to investment in Shandong B3O8 5 205 R 8L IR AR (9
Hailifeng Clean Energy Joint Stock Co., Ltd BAREAR(TLEREME]IKE
(“Shandong Hailifeng”) (Note (c)) B R E W R E (5 () - 60,000
55,683 134,365
Less: loss allowance W B R REE (55,683) (70,330)
— 64,035
Interests from loans to related parties and third parties charged at REERTHEBEIRE=ZT0OF8®EE
commercial rates are included in finance income. ) = g H}l CEFAREWRAR e

For debt investments at amortised cost considered to have low credit
risk, applying the expected credit risk model result in loss allowance
December 2022 (2021:

recognised of RMB nil as at 31
RMB126,000).

For debt investments at amortised cost showing a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a total allowance of
lifetime expected credit losses amounting to RMB55,683,000 was
recognised as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:

RMB70,204,000).

HEWRAABEEERRNIZEHKA
?r%ﬂ’ﬂfﬁ%&ﬁ*Fﬁ)ﬂf‘ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂlﬁﬁi’”
BER T _—_F+_A=1+—H®AH

E%ﬁAE%EH&:?:—E-AE%
126,0007T) °

HEAMREREBEERREZENA
REBHEKNAFENEBERE RZ2F=
—F+ A=+ BHERNFETE
EEBENEBEBTE A A R K55683,000

T(ZF-_—F+-_A=+—B: AR¥
70,204,0007T) °
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R BB IRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED

2 ZBERATENETHE

COST (Continued) E (48)
Movement in the loss allowance of financial assets at amortised cost IRBIEK AT EN S REENERBRBES
is as follows: E N
Receivable
relating to
Loans Loans to investment
to related third parties in Shandong
parties (a) (b) Hailifeng (c) Total
=i}
W RgR 8
REHEERT REERT REFBEHN
B 7 (a) F=F0b) FEWRKIE(C) @et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®TT ARBTT
As at 1 January 2021 R=TB=—fF—H—H 2,743 63,932 12,395 79,070
Decrease in loss allowance &5 18 £ & &t (461) (1,629) (6,050) (8,140)
Written-off i 88 - (600) - (600)
As at 31 December 2021 R-EBE-_—%+=-A=+—H
and 1 January 2022 kR=ZB==%—H—H 2,282 61,703 6,345 70,330
Decrease in loss allowance &5 8 3 1 % (2,282) (6,020) - (8,302)
Transfer g = = (6,345) (6,345)
As at 31 December 2022 R-—B-_-—F+=-A=+—H — 55,683 - 55,683
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R B RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED
COST (Continued)

(@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the loss allowance of
RMB2,282,000 was reversed for loans to related parties based
on the repayments from related parties (2021: RMB461,000
was reversed for based on the management’s impairment
assessment).

The Group’s loans to third parties mainly include various loans
provided to target companies in accordance with the payment
arrangement of potential acquisition transactions. The Group
recovered part of the loans during the year ended 31
December 2022, a total allowance for expected credit losses
amounting to RMB55,683,000 was recognised as at 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB61,703,000).

The security of loans to third parties is as follows:

Principal amount as

2 ZBERATENETHE

E @)

@ BEZZE-ZZ—F+ZA=+—HL
FEREBEFER HMEH
FRENERBOBEEREBEARE

228200 (T - —F: RBRET
BEMENRET G BQ ARE
461,0007T) ©

b)) AEFRAF=ZFRENERZTEZSR
REZERETERBRIONRETH
MEZEQARRENER REBEE=Z
—_—F+-A=t+t—BULFE &A%
BRETHHIER MR =T ==
+_A=+—BREBHEEEER
R H BT A RS55683,0007T (=
T - —4%: AR#¥61,703,0007T) °

AE=TRENERERDOT

at 31 December 2022 Pledged assets Guarantees
R==F=-=%F+=A#
=St+t—HNEEEH BEEREE BRA
RMB’000
ARMT T
2,000 Borrower’s assets By the borrower’s Controlling Shareholder and
an independent third party
BERAEE ERAERBRRE —E2BILE=F
6,980 Equity interest in the borrower By the borrower’s parent company, Controlling
Shareholder and his spouse
RN T ERAZBRE - ZRRER R A RS
24,600 Borrower’s assets and equity interestina By one of the shareholders of the borrower

third-party company

fERABER—ME=77 R EINRE

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s financial
assets at amortised cost were all denominated in RMB.

Since the financial assets at amortised cost were short-term in
nature and the interest rates were close to the market rates,
the carrying amounts of financial assets at amortised cost were
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2022 and 2021.

and independent third parties
ERAN—ERERBIE=7

R —FR T - —F+_A=1+—
B AEEZRBHEAAGFENESREES
HAARBEHE -

MR R R A BN RAERE B
BRAEETHAEIEE KR =F==
ER-F-—F+-A=+—BREBK
At EMSMEENBEESEEATEMA
ERAK -
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R BB IRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED
COST (Continued)

()  The net carry amount of RMB53,655,000 was transferred as
the consideration of acquiring Shengfeng Heating on 30
September 2022 (Note 34).

23. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2 ZBERATENETHE

E @)

© RZZEZZFHLA=+8 KEFE
A R #¥53,655,000 7 B 8 :E & & U B8
BREH MR E (E34) o

23. HthkERBEE

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT T ARETTT

Recoverable value-added tax to be utilised N—FBEANEFENEER
after one year EIRB® 9,077 11,728
24. INVENTORIES 24. 78
2022 2021
B8 —ET-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR¥TT

Finished goods UK 6,667 30,828
Less: write-downs of inventories B EE®RE (1) (23)
6,666 30,805

Cost of inventories amounting to RMB15,962,000 (2021:
RMB210,591,000) were recognised as cost of sales during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value amounting to RMB
nil (2021: RMB nil) were recognised in cost of sales during the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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25

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

24. ZE @)

The Group reversed RMB22,000 (2021: RMB976,000) of previous BE-_E-_—_F+-_A=t+—HI=FE"
write-downs of inventories during the year ended 31 December 2022 AR AEBEEERLEETBHBYRE -
since the Group has sold the goods to independent customers. The NEBRLLIERZNFZFELEARE
amount reversed was included in cost of sales for the year ended 31 22,000 (=& = —F: A R %¥976,000
December 2022. ) c BEMESHEAABE_SE__F+=
A=+—BLEFERMHEEXER -
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. E 5 & H it g WK1
2022 2021
—E_= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTT

Trade receivables (a) B 5 WA () 288,718 281,949
Tariff adjustment receivables (b) {5 1 B FE W FE (b) 122,912 103,309

411,630 385,258
Less: loss allowance o IR R s (229,275) (205,701)
Total trade receivables B 5 IEA 182,355 179,557
Notes receivables JiE U 22 5% - 400
Prepayments B4 B 2,992 4,699
Deposits and other receivables e & H ith E U FRIR 57,494 29,305
Less: loss allowance for other receivables R EL At FE Uk SR IE B R R (557) (657)
Gross trade and other receivables B 5 & H b fE W R IB B 5 242,284 213,404
Non-current portion JER B2 (28,570) (8,000)
Current portion mEE o 218,714 205,404
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the collection rights of trade receivables
derived from certain solar power plants with carrying amount of
RMB132,653,000 (31 December 2021: RMB118,997,000) were
pledged as security for the Group’s borrowings (Note 29).

Ageing analysis of trade receivables in gross basis, based on the
invoice date is as follows:

25. 5 & H b fE U FIE ()

RZEZ=ZF+=ZA=+—HB ' XBH
F K E U BR®EE AR 132,653,000
(ZEZ—F+ZA=+—H: AR%
118,997,0007T) B & 5 FE Y 7 18 W R 4 4
HRIEAREEBEE/ER M EE29) -

ERERAHNE ZEUGKIEEED KK

ST :

2022 2021

—E_— T —
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETT
Within 1 year R—F R 66,496 66,023
1 year to 2 years —FEWF 50,808 38,322
2 years to 3 years MEZE=F 37,076 74,195
Over 3 years =F Pk 257,250 206,718
411,630 385,258
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R B RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(@)

Trade receivables from sales of household solar power
generation systems are due within 180 days from the date of
billing. Trade receivables from rendering smart energy services
are due within one year from the date of biling. Trade
receivables from sales of electricity are due within one month
from the date of billing. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and ageing. The allowance for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 was
determined as follows:

As at 31 December 2022

25. 5 & H b fE U FIE ()

REBEEFAARESRNE ZENR
RIE B FEE A HR180K AN E H - 5K
BRHEEERRRG N E S E WK
HERERBME—FREE - REaH
EEIMEBEZEBFEERELR
B—EARNIH - B E2EHEES
B BSRKRFEREAREERK
HEERERTUDE RZTZZF
;E=EZ—F+=-A=+—H B%
FEWRIEMBBEEETOT

R-B-—#+-A=+-8”

Past due
between
Sales of household Past due 6 months Past due
solar power generation Not yet within and over
systems HEFAXREAES past due 6 months 18 months 18 months Total
miefE A gt
MABH BmE6EAR Z181 A 18EA L Ht
Individually assessed!: 18 BY 71 -
Gross carrying amount R4
(RMB’000) (ANR®EF ) - - - 197,307 197,307
Loss allowance BEEE
(RMB’000) (ANREF ) - - - (182,820) (182,820)
Collectively assessed: A
Expected loss rate TEHE 1B = 0% 0% 5% 10%
Gross carrying amount TR
(RMB’000) (AR®F 1) 8,409 4,508 10,139 410 23,466
Loss allowance (RMB’000) &g (A RE T ) - - (515) (41) (556)

Total loss allowance BREEERER
(RMB’000) (ANR®ETF )

(183,376)

BERBERERAT  Fik 2022



154
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e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(@)

XINDA INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022

25. E 5 & H it FE WK IE (@)

(Continued) @ (&)
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H
Past due
between
Sales of household Past due 6 months Past due
solar power generation Not yet within and over
systems HEFRAXRAR past due 6 months 18 months 18 months Total
mH6E A e
BAEE BHEAR Z18A 18EAMNL st
Individually assessed: 18 B 5T A -
Gross carrying amount AR A%

(RMB’000) (AR®F ) = = = 202,871 202,871
Loss allowance BiERE

(RMB’000) (ANREETF ) = = — (185,802) (185,802)
Collectively assessed: A
Expected loss rate BB X 0% 0% 5%  N/A RiEf
Gross carrying amount AR 4%

(RMB’000) (AREF ) 3,644 20,364 410 = 24,418
Loss allowance (RMB'000) E#E# & (AR T L) = — (19 = (19)
Total loss allowance EEEBEEE

(RMB’000) (AR&FT) (185,821)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022

25. 5 & H b fE U FIE ()

@ (%)
R-ZBZZ=ZF+=ZH=+—H

Past due Past due

Past due between between Past due
Rendering smart Not yet within 1 yearand 2 years and over
energy services BEEHEERRE past due 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
B e B
MABE BEIER 1FZ26 26FE3F  3FLLE @t
Individually assessed: 1 5l 5F 1% :
Gross carrying amount B [H 4258
(RMB’000) (ANR®EF ) 56 - 1,908 16,845 10,914 29,723
Loss allowance BEEE
(RMB’000) (AREBFT) (56) - (1,908) (16,845) (10,914)  (29,723)
Collectively assessed: A& 3F{ -
Expected loss rate TBEEEX 0% 5% N/ATERA NATER NATER
Gross carrying amount  BR [ 42 58
(RMB’000) (ARETT) 5,627 3,100 - - - 8,727
Loss allowance EREEE
(RMB’000) (AREFT) - (157) - - - (157)
Total loss allowance B R E AR
(RMB’000) (AR®FT) (29,880)
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R BB IRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

ST

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

F+_A=1tT—HILFE

25. E 5 & H it FE WK IE (@)

(Continued)
(a)  (Continued) @ (&)
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H
Pass due Past due
Past due between between Past due
Rendering smart Not yet within 1 yearand 2 years and over
energy services BEEHEERRE past due 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
gt B B
MABH BAPIFR 15225 25F3F 3FUE it
Individually assessed: 1 5l 5F 1% :
Gross carrying amount B [ 42 58
(RMB’000) (ANR®EF ) - 1,908 816 10,914 = 13,638
Loss allowance BiERE
(RMB’000) (ANR®EF ) — (1,908) (816) (10,914) = (13,638)
Collectively assessed: — #H A EF{#
Expected loss rate TEHi B 18 & 0% 5% 9% N/A @B 16%
Gross carrying amount B [ 42 58
(RMB’000) (ANR®ETT) 208 230 16,029 — 200 16,667
Loss allowance BEEE
(RMB’000) (ANR®EF ) - (11) (1,428) - (32) (1,471)
Total loss allowance BiEBERE
(RMB’000) (AREFT) (15,109)
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R B RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ—ZE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022

25. 5 5 & H it fE U FKIE (@)

(&)

R=-ZT-_—F+=-HA=+—H

Past due Past due Past due
between between between
Past due 11 months 23 months 35 months  Past due
Sales of electricity HEE D Not yet within and and and over
(non-government entities) (FEHFEE) pastdue 11 months  23months  35months 47 months 47 months  Total
A
BE BHNER BH22BEAR BHSMEAE  47@EA
HABHE 11EAR Z23f8 A Z35f8 A Z4718R RE @
Individually assessed: 18 BT 1 -
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB’000) (AR®T) - 649 857 4,278 7,658 2,154 15,596
Loss allowance BREEE
(RMB’000) (AR FT) - (649) (857) (4,278) (7,658) (2,154) (15,596)
Collectively assessed: HE T
Expected loss rate EHEEE 0% 0% 5% 10% 14% 18%
Gross carrying amount RHERE
(RMB'000) (AREETT) 3446 6,610 3,254 194 196 199 13,899
Loss allowance BEEE
(RMB’000) (ARET) - - (165) (19) (28) (35)  (247)
Total loss allowance BRERERSR
(RMB'000) (AREF ) (15,843)
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e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. 5 & H b fE U FIE ()
(Continued)
(@  (Continued) @@ (&)
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H
Past due Past due Past due
between between between
Past due 11 months 23 months 35 months  Past due
Sales of electricity HEE D Not yet within and and and over
(non-government entities) (BT EB) pastdue 11 months  23months  35months 47 months 47 months  Total

g
Bf AHNMER BH2BEA AHBEA 4718 A
HAREH 11EARK Z231@A8 Z35 A 4718 R B E @t

Individually assessed: 18 R FF 1 -
Gross carrying amount REAE

(RMB'000) (AREBFTT) 52 791 497 581 527 1,113 3,561
Loss allowance EERE

(RMB’000) (AR®T) (62) (791) (497) (581) (627) (1,113 (3,561)
Collectively assessed: A -
Expected loss rate EHEB X 0% 0% 5% 9% 13% 16%
Gross carrying amount IR

(RMB’000) (ANREFTT) 1,100 6,354 4,861 7,286 1,098 95 20,794
Loss allowance BEES

(RMB’000) (ARET) = = (222) (649) (140) (15)  (1,026)
Total loss allowance BERERSR

(RMB’000) (AREFT) (4,587)
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e R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. B 5 & H it fE W 58 )
(Continued)
(@  (Continued) @@ (&)
As at 31 December 2022 R-—E-_—_H+=-_HF=+—H
Past due Past due Past due
between between between
Sales of electricity HEEN Pastdue 11 months 23 months  35months  Past due
(tariff adjustment (SERHEEEYR Not yet within and and and over
receivables) FIE) pastdue 11 months  23months  35months 47 months 47 months  Total

A
AY AYNMER BH23EA AHBEA 4718 A
HAREH 1EARX Z238A Z3518 A 4718 R BLE f@gt

Collectively assessed: AT
Expected loss rate BHEER 0% 0.55%
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB'000) (ARETT) 2,589 2,071 122,912
Loss allowance BEES
(RMB’000) (AREFTT) - - (1) (176)
Total loss allowance BEREBEE
(RMB’000) (ARBTT) (176)
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZBE-_—F+_-_A=+—H
Past due Past due Past due
between between between
Sales of electricity HEEN Pastdue 11 months  23months 35 months  Past due
(tariff adjustment (EERHEEYR Not yet within and and and over
receivables) FIE) pastdue 11 months  23months  35months 47 months 47 months  Total
B
BE BHNER BH22BEAR BHSMEAE  47@EA
HABHE 11EAR Z23f8A Z35f8A Z4718R RE @
Collectively assessed: AT
Expected loss rate BHEE R 0% 0.82%
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB'000) (ANR®ET ) 2,771 1,570 103,309
Loss allowance BEEE
(RMB’000) (AR®TTT) = (18)  (184)
Total loss allowance BEEBEE
(RMB’000) (AREFT) (184)
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R BB IRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %= —

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

E-_—_F+-_A=+—HBItEE

BEZRHEMmEYRE

R IE (@)

(b) As at 31 December 2022, RMB85,721,000 (2021: (b) #fz::iJr:ﬂ =+—8 &
RMB69,800,000) of trade receivables aged over one year W—FEIA TN ESRIKRHIEARK
represent tariff adjustment receivables, derived from the 85,721,000 (ZE = —F: AR
subsidies in respect of sales of electricity. Applying the 69,800,000 ) & & f‘i B B W R
expected credit risk model result in loss allowance amounted B EMAFERBHEE N - K
to RMB176,000 recognised for tariff adjustment receivables as RERCEERBENERREEM
at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB184,000). BEEWSRIEN S -_—F+_-_A=

T HREREEREME ARK176,000
T(ZEZ—%F : AR%184,0007T) °
€ Movement in the loss allowance of trade and other receivables © EBIREMEWFEBBEHNE
is as follows: BT :
2022 2021
—E-= —EF - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Opening balance B ¥ 45 o4 206,258 203,853
Increase in loss allowance &5 8 #5831 N
— Trade receivables — B 5 EWHIE 23,574 2,405
— Other receivables — H fb R RIR - —
Written off as uncollectible BE] #2% J:5 Wz o0 i 0 S
— Trade receivables — B85 RrkHE - -
— Other receivables — Efh e FRIA - -
Closing balance iR 45 o4 229,832 206,258

(d)  The Group’s trade and other receivables were denominated in ) AXEEBBSNHMEWRZIEN TS
the following currencies: EHETE -

2022 2021

=B== —T-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETT

HK$ BT 36 26

RMB AR 242,248 213,378

242,284 213,404

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of NR-ZBE - —FN T -_—F+_A=+—

trade and other receivables approximated their fair values. H B hHMEKIENEEERELAN
FERE -
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e R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

26. RESTRICTED CASH

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s restricted cash amounted to
RMB7,817,000 (2021: RMB18,341,000), mainly representing the
deposits made in accordance with the terms of loan agreements
between the Group and the lender, whereby the Group is required to
deposit the entire loan proceeds into restricted bank accounts. The
restricted cash can only be used to finance the development of
designated public infrastructure construction business.

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

26. TR&EIBE &

R_T-_—_F#+_A=+—8 A&EEHH
EXRHRES AREK7,817,000t(=ZF =
— & AR #¥18,341,0007T) * = BB E
REBEERAFG MY E R W& IER
FTER TR AEEBELEE2HERMER
HEFEAZRHBEITERS - L ZRHIRE
AEARBNERETCAREREBNSE
B o

MR

27. RERREEEY

2022 2021

—E=-= T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBTT

Cash at bank BITFER 205,380 222,319
Cash on hand BEERE4 1 1
205,381 222,320

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the

FEENRE MRS EEBYATIEE

following currencies: BRER
2022 2021
—E-= - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Us$ e 2 3
HK$S & TT 45,249 40,052
RMB AR 160,130 182,265
205,381 222,320
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e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28. AR & fE
(@) Share capital (a) =&
Authorised and issued share capital: EERBBITRA
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
ROHE £8 SR €] ik
’000 HK$’000 ’000 HK$'000
TR TERT Tz TET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &R E{E0.01/8 7L ) & @R 2,000,000 20,000 2,000,000 20,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: TEKRERTEEHE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
No. of RMB No. of RMB
shares Amount equivalent shares Amount equivalent
7 20 B 2% ZFEAREK e E &H ZSHEAR®
’000 HK$’000 RMB’000 ‘000 HK$'000 RMB’000
Fhx TELT AREBTT Fhx THELT ARETRT
At1danuaryand HR—A—HBRk
31 December +-A=+—H 1,484,604 14,846 12,255 1,484,604 14,846 12,255
(b) Reserves (b) &

(i)

Share premium

The excess of the issued price net of any issuance
expenses over the par value of the shares issued has
been credited to share premium of the Company.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in share premium are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & = —

28. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Reserves (continued)

RE BTTEIRRMIEE
T F+_A=+—HILFE

28. IR AR K 5% 8 )
(b) 1 m

(i) Statutory reserve iy ZERE
The PRC statutory reserve were established in AEBEREBEFBEEBEIZER
accordance with the relevant rules and regulations of the ERARAREBET A BIAA
PRC and the articles of association of the companies 4 = 2 M B  EETFE R
within the Group. The companies in the PRC are H-FREBARRA®KE T
required to transfer certain proportion of their net profit BlE R (EERTEFEEE
(after offsetting prior-year losses) to general statutory B)EE-RAEAFERE REZE
reserve. For the year ended 31 December 2022, -+ -A=+—HIt
RMB681,000 was credited to statutory reserve (2021: FE - AR¥E81,000T:t AT
RMB1,406,000). EERHEB(ZZEZ—F ARK
1,406,0007T) °
General statutory reserve can be used to reduce prior- —REEHEBATRARBALBE
year losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-in/ FEEEB(NAE) WAHEBIK
share capital by issuing new shares to shareholders RREFMBRAEZB D
proportionate to their existing percentage of equity Ee 7] R B% R AT EFT AR T A
interests provided that the balance after such issue is BB AR R ERITEM
not less than 25% of the registered capital. General FEBTEENRTMELRDN
statutory reserve is non-distributable other than in 25% ° BB BN — A T
liquidation. BEAAARDIK ©
29. BORROWINGS 29. 6 &
2022 2021
—E=-= —ET-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Secured bank borrowings BERRITEE
Pledged and guaranteed borrowings (a) BERMEREEQ) 186,300 211,000
Current B Ej
Pledged and guaranteed borrowings BEHMEREE 25,800 24,700
Non-current FERN A
Pledged and guaranteed borrowings BERREREE 160,500 186,300
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R BB IRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %= —

29. BORROWINGS (continued)

E-_—_F+-_A=+—HBItEE

29. 5 & @)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s borrowings were NZE ::E&_ T - —F+-_A=+—
repayable as follows: B AEBEEEESEEWDT

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARET T

Within 1 year R—FR 25,800 24,700

Between 1 and 2 years —FEEWFE 26,900 25,800

Between 2 and 5 years MEERF 86,400 84,200

Over 5 years AFUE 47,200 76,300

186,300 211,000

(@)  As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s borrowings amounting @ MW-ZZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H &&

to RMB186,300,000 (2021: RMB211,000,000), with interest &8 AR #186,300,0000(=Z =

rates ranging from 5.39% to 5.63% (2021: 5.39% to 5.63%) —F : AR #211,000,0007T) # N F

per annum, were jointly guaranteed by the Controlling 539%%E563% (=& = — F : 539%

Shareholder, his spouse and a company controlled by the E563%) M EFERE B REREE
Controlling Shareholder. Property, plant and equipment of AIERE AR B - E A (B LA e 5 BR AR B 4

solar power plants of the Group with carrying amount of HE—BAFHRIIERER BBEE

RMB246,991,000 (2021: RMB266,055,000) and the collection BA A RE246,991,000C(—F = —

rights of trade receivables derived from the solar power plants F 0 AR #266,055,0007T) H) AR &

were pledged as security for these borrowings (Note 14(a) and WHIRBILHWE - E R EEREIR

25). BUMHEWRREBRREESERIER

ZEEENER(WiE14(@ &k25) ©
(o)  As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s borrowings by R-ZZBE-_—_Frk-_ZFT-_—%+—-_A
were all denominated in RMB., =+—H AEEEFEEEFIUARE
5HE -
() As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of © MZE—_—_Fr-_ZT-_—F+_-AH

the Group’s bank borrowings were not materially different from
their fair values as the interest rates were close to the market
rates.
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 0. EZ R EMENKIE
2022 2021
—ZE-= —ET - —F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

Trade payables B 5 A 17,586 23,557

Accruals and other payables FEETE R R E b FE - 3KIB 39,207 41,326

56,793 64,883

Ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as follows: ERBEZHHNE S ENFIBRRE DT
W

2022 2021

—E- —E-—4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®E T ARETT

Within 1 year —FHRA 6,492 11,976
Over 1 year —F L E 11,094 11,581
17,586 23,557
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s trade and other RE-_—_FR_EBE-_—F+_A=+—
payables were all denominated in RMB and the carrying amounts H AXEEMNZE S RHEMENKEBESANUA
approximated their fair values. REHE EREEEEAFERESE -
31. DIVIDENDS 31. K&
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company BE_E-_—_FgR-_ZE-_—F+-A=+
did not declare any dividends to the shareholders of the Company. —BIEFEE ARRTERAQAABRRE

IRAERIACE e
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32. CASH FLOW INFORMATION R2.HEREEHR

(a) Cash generated from operations () REMBARSE
2022 2021
—E- —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
(i AR¥T R ARETT
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETS B A0 (F518), & 7l (274,273) 8,835
Adjustments for: RARLTIEE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ % - B L2 EITE 14 33,529 27,439
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 998 3,659
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets FREEERERE 15 - 80
Gains on lease modification MEBT W= 15 (69) -
Amortisation of intangible assets 18 =5 16 1,868 2,074
Reversal of inventories write down T B R [ 24 (22) (976)
Impairment losses of trade and other receivables 2 5 K H i i i 7% 18 )5 (&
EiE 25 23,574 2,405
Reversal of impairment losses of financial assets %4 $4 5k 4 5+ 8 &9 & &t
at amortised cost AEREEERE 22 (8,302) (8,140)
Impairment losses of property, plant and M BE RS ERE
equipment = 14 - 11,642
Net fair value gains on financial assets at fair EAFEAEEHZY
value through profit or loss qu AEENEREE
NEEREFE 10 - (700)
Net gains on disposal of property, plant and LEDE BB KERE
equipment W% 5 10 (26) -
Losses/(gains) on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBRARMER
&) 10 8,488 (748)
Deferred income from government grants PR B TR 478 Bl A3 A A (107) (107)
Finance expenses, net AR FRE 11 4,442 6,290
Share of net loss/(profit) of associates accounted £ F8 # 25 7 A BE & B &4 A\
for using the equity method RIM 4,/ (MEF) (D58 20 265,854 (2,457)
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses fE X (Weax), B8 10 (3,589) 486
Changes in working capital: EEEAREEH:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,/ (M) 23,887 (866)
Increase in contract assets BHEELM (2,870) (6,4%9)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 K H A B W FRIB (35
receivables m),/w (46,547) 35,174
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 & E e 3R E R A (14,045) (2,082)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities BRAECRD) L (5,332) 2,298
Cash generated from operations meEmEESE 7,458 77,847
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32. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 2. BEREER @
(b) Net debt reconciliation (b) EBFELHK
2022 2021
—E-= —ET-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREF T
Cash and cash equivalents ReLBEEEY 205,381 222,320
Restricted cash R Hl 3R & 7,817 18,341
Borrowings — repayable within one year BEE-RN—FRNEE (25,800) (24,700)
Borrowings — repayable after one year EBEE-—RN—FEEE (160,500) (186,300)
Lease liabilities HEAE (13,162 (12,787)
Net cash & 55 13,736 16,924
Cash and cash equivalents HeLhBEEEY 205,381 222,320
Restricted cash = PR 43R & 7,817 18,341
Gross debt — fixed interest rates B 4a% — & E F X (13,162) (12,737)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BB — TR X (186,300) (211,000)
Net cash ReFE 13,736 16,924
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32. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 2. BEREER @
(b) Net debt reconciliation (continued) (b) EBFEL K@
Liabilities from financing activities
REBMEEHNAR
Borrowings Borrowings Amount due
due within due after to related Lease
1 year 1 year parties liabilities Total
—FREE —-FHIY A4
HEE WEE BEBLIXE HESE #st

RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

Balance as at 1 January 2021 RoB-—-#—A-A&H (24,4000 (211,000) (2,612) (11,939)  (249,951)
Cash flows Heng
Funds paid *HE¢ 24,400 - 3,952 1,874 30,226
Funds received WEE % - - (2,355) — (2,355)
Interest paid FAFE 12,592 - - 726 13,318
Non-cash changes FEEEH
Interest expense MBERAL (12,592) — — (726) (13,318)
Foreign exchange adjustments EHAZE - - 165 22 187
Other non-cash movements HmFB s & (24,700) 24,700 - (2,694) (2,694)

Balance as at 31 December2021 R=-ZT=—-%+=-H=+-—H

and 1 January 2022 E-E--—F-HF-H&8 (24,7000  (186,300) (850) (12,737) (224,587
Cash flows RenE

Funds paid HTRHES 24,700 = 1,044 213 26,857

Funds received WHE & = = (4,485) - (4,485)

Interest paid SAFE 11,129 - - 686 11,815
Non-cash changes EHsE

Interest expense MERL (11,129) — — (686) (11,815)
Foreign exchange adjustments fE 5 — - - ) 2
Other non-cash movements HihER & & (25,800) 25,800 — (636) (636)

Balance as at 31 December2022 R-ZE-—%#+=-H=+—-H

e (25,800) (160,500) (3,391) (13,162) (202,853)
33. COMMITMENTS 33. & IE
Investment commitments REAE
Commitments in respect of associates are disclosed in Note 20(d). A B 2 X ) A R A A E RO B RE20(d) K B -
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34. BUSINESS ACQUISITION

On 26 July 2018, Beijing Longguang, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the an agreement with Shengli Oilfield
Lifeng Industrial Group Co., Ltd. (“Shengli QOilfield Lifeng”) and
Shandong Hailifeng in relation to the investment of the Group in
Shandong Hailifeng (“Acquisition Agreement) to acquire a 40%
interest in Shandong Hailifeng with an aggregate consideration of
RMB60,000,001. Under the Acquisition Agreement, Shengli Qilfield
Lifeng has provide certain performance about Shandong Hailifeng,
otherwise, Beijing Longguang shall have the right to require Shengli
Qilfield Lifeng to repurchase the 40% equity interest held by Beijing
Longguang in Shandong Hailifeng pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the Acquisition Agreement.

As Shandong Hailifeng failed to meet its performance target, Beijing
Longguang elected to exercise the put option granted by Shengli
Qilfield Lifeng to Beijing Longguang and requested Shengli Oilfield
Lifeng to repurchase the 40% interest in Shandong Hailifeng. A
repurchase agreement between Beijing Longguang, Shengli Oilfield
Lifeng and Shandong Hailifeng was entered into on 29 March 2019
under which Shengli Oilfield Lifeng agreed to repurchase the 40%
interest in Shandong Hailifeng for an aggregate consideration of
RMB60,000,001 (“Repurchase Agreement”). In addition, Beijing
Longguang is entitled to the distributable profit of Shandong Hailifeng
of RMB16,000,000 for 2018 in accordance with the terms of the
Repurchase Agreement and the Acquisition Agreement.

Beijing Longguang has only received the distributable profit of
RMB16,000,000; while consideration for the 40% equity interest in
Shandong Hailifeng in the amount of RMB60,000,001 remains
outstanding and has not been paid. On 10 August 2020, Beijing
Longguang, Shandong Hailifeng, Shengli Oilfield Lifeng and
Shengfeng Heating entered into a settlement agreement (the
“Settlement Agreement”) to settle the outstanding amount by way of
Shandong Hailifeng transferring 90% of the interest in Shengfeng
Heating held by it to Beijing Longguang.

According to the Settlement Agreement, upon completion of transfer
and before 30 September 2022, Shengli QOilfield Lifeng has the right
to repurchase the equity interest held by Beijing Longguang in
Shengfeng Heating for a consideration of RMB60,000,000. Upon 30
September 2022, Shengli Oilfield Lifeng has lost the right to
repurchase the equity interest held by Beijing Longguang in
Shengfeng Heating and considering other provisions of Settlement
Agreement, the Group consolidated Shengfeng Heating by business
acquisition.

34. ¥ WE

RZE—NFLtA=-+BH KRFE2E
B B8 A &) db B Y B AN SR B 38 B 1L BOF A
LHpBEA A YEEEBMEGR AR (B
FRAFE D) RILRER LT3 (TR
Bkl LR E AR 60,000,0017T
UG B 1L 3R 8 ) 42 B9 40% HE 25 o AR 18 UK BE
FoOBAABMLERHEETERLRE
MLERBENENFAE BB L RE
KB EBIBERE R ZORR KRGS ER
B e BB & B BB AL R L R I RUE I
A RI40% R AN FERS o

MRILE SR EReeEREEMBZ 4t
FREEREBITER AR B E R mE X
% RO RR A B - SRS A B A O R
L 38 F) 2 A 40% 4 & o db R X - B A
HEFMERILREFLER=_Z—NF=A
Zt+HABETEERE B BREE
F & E = 48K E A R 60,000,001 7T B
BILREF YM40%Es((HEHED -
e o+ dE R S B AR 1R B B 5 I WORE
MENERESLURENER=_F—N\F
79 7] 5 B i ) A R 5 16,000,000 7T °

T REXERITHIESEANARE
16,000,000 7T * i #t U 3 & F| £ 40% % #
7R B A K 60,000,001 7T 14 & € & B &
AEXfF-RZZFE_FEFNA+H tRE
Yo LB EFI L - BRI R E R LR
NalutEwmz(EEmzl) 8BILE
BHEmMIEREAERERNBRERNRE
HJ Q0% 1 45 B R (B8 5KA o

RIBFEEHZ REZEEXEBEER_ZZ
ZENRA=T B B R BN E A
KB A K #60,000,0007T B 8 4t =& 5 3%
EMRERIRE - R_T=__FNLA=
+H%E BAHAEMNERXETEHBILRE
KBFENRERNRENEF  REESE
EEMBZEMERNOTE A5BEBE
BREBEHREES -
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34. BUSINESS ACQU'S'T'ON (Continued)

The provisional fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of
Shengfeng Heating as at the date of acquisition were:

34. EKEUWE @

REBEH BRERNZARBNEERE
BHERERFERS:

30 September

2022
—E—-=
hA=+H
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Intangible assets mEE 60,589
Cash W& 451
Trade receivables B 5 EWFIA 12,051
Other receivables H th FE SRR 2,639
Inventory FE 5
Trade payables 5 FIE (9,926)
Other payables H b FE 1 5K IB (696)
Contract liabilities ERHBE (14,934)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIAEE (8,971)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value ERAFEINEZHNFEELTE 41,208
Non-controlling interest FE 12 AR (4,120)
Total net assets FEEMRRE 37,088
Goodwill S 16,567
53,655
Fair value of consideration paid: ERNREZAFAE:
Financial assets measured at amortised cost R SEK AT ERN S RIE E (53,655)
Net cash inflow arising from acquisition WHREENR SR A FHE 451

The amount of the non-controlling interest at the acquisition date
amounted to RMB4,120,000. Since the acquisition date, Shengfeng
Heating has contributed RMB4,705,000 and RMB1,518,000 to the
Group’s revenue and loss for the year respectively. If the acquisition
had occurred on 1 January 2022, Group revenue and loss for the
year ended 31 December 2022 would have been RMB209,554,000
and RMB321,054,000 respectively. This pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2022, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
performance.
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4,120,0007T - B R E H e - RE R AE
DAl BAEB TR T AR4,7050007T
& AR #1,518,0007T 8 F [ Wz 2 518 o
WKBEER =S -_—_F—A—HB %%
ARNEEHEE T -_—_F+=-_RA=+—
HEFEMNEEREBEEBED I AARE
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BE AR Z

() BEBLTNRS

(@) Transactions with related parties

2022 2021
g —=F_—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARET T
Funds received from companies controlled e 172 BG A% BR A Il B9 A B LS
by the Controlling Shareholder & 4,380 5,652
Funds received from companies controlled HARRR—BATESEH B
by an executive Director of the Company REMBES 1,660 3,995
Funds received from an associate arising from  FtIEE 5 32 5 % — BB 2 A 7
non-trading transactions BEE® 2,000 =
Funds repaid to parent company BEEESTHAF - (1,872)
Funds repaid to companies controlled EREELTARR—RBHAT
by an executive Director of the Company EEEHHNRAA (1,944) (2,080)
Loans repayment received from a company  [A] 22 % A% BR #% & ) — & A 7
controlled by the Controlling Shareholder WELBEE - (2,334)
Loans repayment received from a company  [A] A8 A & — 4 1T & == 12 6 Y
controlled by an executive Director of the —HAREEEER
Company (10,950) (1,386)
Loans repayment received from an associate  [A] — [ B & A &) W BUE & B & (2,050) —
Interest from loans to a company controlled A1 3% & A% 8 122 41 &9 — S 2 &
by the Controlling Shareholder B HRE FRPT U A A1 B - 89
Interest from loans to a company controlled MARNB] —BHRITESZEH B
by an executive Director of the Company — [ A 7] % ME 3T W ER AY
) 2. 326 716
Sales of goods or rendering services to: HEEmMIIBHER :
Companies controlled by the Controlling R R Hl A 2 Al
Shareholder 7,737 7,079
Companies controlled by an executive KRB —BAITEFEH
Director of the Company NS 1,470 3,149
9,207 10,228
Purchases of goods or receiving services from: B8 B & s X R ¢
Companies controlled by an executive KRAR] —BWITESES G
Director of the Company NG 2,485 2,355
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BE A R B @)

(Continued)

(@) Transactions with related parties (continued)

Sales and purchases of goods and services were made on
normal commercial terms, conditions and market rates.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s borrowings amounting
to RMB186,300,000 (2021: RMB211,000,000) were jointly
guaranteed by the Controlling Shareholder, his spouse and a
company controlled by the Controling Shareholder (Note
29(a)).

(b) Key management personnel compensation

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to Directors, is as follows:

(a) EEEEEEF VR F )

PEERRRHRBEIEE AR
R RBHE—RAEER RS
5 AR AT -

RZEBE-_—_F+_A=+—H &K
B &5 A R ¥186,300,000 T (= Z =
— 4 : AR #211,000,0007T) A 2 f%
AE B H BB LA & — 8 A 4 AR AR SR 4%
#1892 & H B AR (B 5E29(@)) °

b) TEEEBAEHM

AEBIZERRAENEN(BHE M
FTEENFR)WT

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTT

Wages, salaries and allowances ITE& #Ha KkER 4,277 2,481

Post-employment benefit and other welfare iR ¥R 48 F1| } H 18 F1| B ¢
expenses 525 540
4,802 3,021
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BBHE A R B @m0
(Continued)
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) B LM ARBELERR
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBTT

Amounts due from: EWRERE :
Companies controlled by the Controlling B 5K 5 A AR B R H Y
Shareholder arising from trade transaction NG| 9,745 8,973
Companies controlled by an executive MEZRHEARRNE] —BHIT
Director of the Company arising from ZEETHINRA A
trade transaction 10 8,609
An associate arising from trade transaction REHRHE —HBEE QA - 15,296
9,755 32,878
Amounts due to: ENRERE :
Companies controlled by the Controlling 7 A% IR B A2 B A A
Shareholder 489 489
Companies controlled by an executive KANR—BHITEEIEHIM
Director of the Company ~ A 902 361
An associate arising from non-trading MBS HE —BEHERT
transactions 2,000 —
3,391 850
Loans to: RHEERT:
A company controlled by an executive RAR—BAITESEHH
Director of the Company (i) — [ 2 F) — 10,581
- 10,581
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties
(Continued)

M

(i)

The Company entered into a revolving loan agreement
with Longjitaine Group Limited, a company controlled by
the Controlling Shareholder, on 13 June 2018, pursuant
to which the Company and its subsidiary had provided
revolving loans in a maximum principal amount of up to
RMB110,000,000 to Longjitaihe Group Limited , the
Company’s parent companies, and a company
controlled by an executive Director of the Company for
the period from 13 June 2018 to 12 June 2019, with an
interest rate of 9% per annum.

On 18 June 2021, the Company and Longjitaihe Group
Limited renewed the revolving loan agreement for the
period from 18 June 2021 to 18 June 2022, with the
maximum principal amount adjusted to RMB11,000,000.

The amount was fully repaid during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Other amounts due from and due to related parties were
interest-free, unsecured and with no fixed terms of
repayments.
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(i)
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—Z—NFEXA+=8B"'&
A7) B — R & R AR AR SR A I A
ARIEEFMEBMER QR
VYERERBH Bt AR
AREMBARIER =2 —N
EXAT=BE-_ZE—AERX
At-_BYMmBEERME
B - ARRZERARE—HZ
RARITESIEF QAR
HRERER AeBEHaTH
B A R #110,000,0007T © 4 F
K 59% o

N

RZEZ—F~A+NA &
ARHEREARNEEEEGR
EXthaE BRAZS=Z—F
NATNBEZZEZ_F,XA
+TNE A sBAEAREA
R % 11,000,000 7T °

ZRERBE_T-__F+
“ A=+ BALFEEERX
B
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY

36.

(a) Statement of financial position of the

Z
i

B 2 Bt %R R K

Rk >
L]

(@ A2 7z HFBAMRRT

Company

2022 2021
—E-CF —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBET T
Assets EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 36 63
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2 30
Investments in subsidiaries RBARMHEZE 346 342
Loans to subsidiaries REERTHEBE A 817,256 1,017,547
Total non-current assets kRBEELLE 817,640 1,017,982
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables o {th fE U SR I8 39 35
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEFEY 3,651 14,248
Total current assets REBEEHAE 3,690 14,283
Total assets EEHAR 821,330 1,032,265
Equity and Liabilities ERREE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AKATEBEAELER
Share capital A% 2 12,255 12,255
Reserves (b) & (o) 1,159,694 1,066,391
Accumulated losses (b) RETE51E(b) (350,895) (46,667)
Total equity EREE 821,054 1,081,979
Liabilities 8E&
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE - 18
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELAE - 18
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables H b e 5RIB 256 253
Lease liabilities HEAE 20 15
Total current liabilities REBAEARE 276 268
Total liabilities BEHEE 276 286
Total equity and liabilities ERLEEEE 821,330 1,032,265

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2023 and

was signed on its behalf

Wei Qiang
B

Director

EF

ARRMZMBRARR T _=F
AT \BREBEESHME THT

IERREEE

Han Qinchun
BEF
Director

EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 — L - —F + A =+—HILFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36. % NAEZMBERRRK KR

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 2B m)
COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) XAFIREELE
Accumulated
Reserves losses
R ES g
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR¥TT

At 1 January 2021

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Equity-settled share-based transactions

RZZE-_—F—HF—H 1,094,823 (40,418)
FAEE — (6,249)
H 2 m A (28,432) =

BRSGEENENOXNNRS = =

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022

RZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H

rEZZB-_—_4F—HF—H 1,066,391 (46,667)
Loss for the year FRERE = (304,228)
Other comprehensive income HE2mEBA 93,303 —
At 31 December 2022 N-_EBE-_—_F+=-_A=+—H 1,159,694 (350,895)

XINDA INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ—ZE-—F+_A=+—HILFE

37. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS

7. EE2EFN R ER

The remuneration of Directors of the Company for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 is set out as follows:

BHE-_T-_—_FR=_F=-—
—ALEFEARARREZTNHFMOT ¢

Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_E-__F+-fA=t—HLEE

F+-—A=+

Employer’s

contribution to a

Other

emoluments paid

or receivable in
respect of
Director’s other
services in
connection with
the management
of the affairs of

the Company or

retirement its subsidiary
Name 4 Fees Salary  benefit scheme  undertaking (e) Total
HEERM
EHEBRARDNT
ok Bt B A ]
S5 H th R
RINEFIFEIZ MEMSEKmN
Hwe £ EEHT HiM £ (@) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARMT T
Chairman £
Mr. Wei Qiang Mg - 1,681 15 - 1,696
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. Wei Shaojun (a) BOELE(@ - - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ BY FHTEE
Directors
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BERBEE 215 - - - 215
Dr. Han Qinchun BREBL 215 - - - 215
Mr. Han Xiaoping (b) BETEE (@) 11 - - - 11
Mr. Feng Zhidong (c) BEREE(Q) 54 - - - 54
595 1,681 15 - 2,291
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37. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 7. EZT 2/ AR E=R @
DIRECTORS (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-_—F+-A=+—HLEE

Other

emoluments paid

or receivable in

respect of

Director’s other

services in

connection with

the management

Employer’s of the affairs of

contributiontoa  the Company or

retirement its subsidiary
Name "2 Fees Salary benefit scheme undertaking (e) Total
HEZRM
BEBERADA
KHMBAR
EBMEMRS
BAREHFEz MEMHERD
e e EE 47 Hir# <) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETE ARETR ARETT ARBETT

Chairman 33

Mr. Wei Qiang HoethE - 249 12 = 261
Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Liu Zhengang (d) 23R M) % 4 (d) = = - _ _
Non-executive Director FHTES

Mr. Wei Shaojun (a) BOELAE(@) = = = - -

Independent non-executive ~ BIY FHTES

Directors
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John HREAE 208 — _ _ 208
Dr. Han Qinchun BEREE L 208 — _ _ 208
Mr. Han Xiaoping (b) BIEFTE®D 208 = - _ 208

624 249 12 = 885
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38.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B RAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 i 2 =L - —F + A =+—HILFE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Mr. Wei Shaojun has resigned from the Board from 24 June 2022.
(b) Mr. Han Xiaoping has resigned from the Board from 8 July 2022.

(c) Mr. Feng Zhidong was appointed on 7 October 2022.

(d) Mr. Liu Zhengang has resigned from the Board from 29 January 2021.

(e) These represent the fair value of share options granted to the Directors
under the Company’s share option scheme and recognised as equity-
settled share-based payment expense for the respective years. The value of
these share options was measured according to the Group’s accounting
policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in Note 2.20,
including adjustments to reverse accrued in previous periods where grants
of equity instruments are forfeited prior to the vesting date. The principal
terms and the number of options granted are disclosed in Note 7(b).

No Directors of the Company waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the current and previous financial years. During
the current and previous financial years, there were also no amounts
paid or payable by the Group to the Directors or any of the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

APPROVAL FOR CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of Directors on 28 March 2023.

37.

38.

EEZEANRES @

B & -

@ BOBEAHEBE_T__FAA-THBEE
FEEGKRE -

b) BHEFTEEE-_T-__F+tA/\BEFEE
=EKE -

© BEREER_ZE__F+A+BEEEE-

@ BEMEEE_ZE-_—F AT L HEE
EFEEGEKRE -

©) ZREEBBAARNNBEREFEARTES
BRENDABERNSEFNHERALE
mEEURND IR ZEERENE
BEREH F2. 20T H AN B A B URG X
MR EFHRAE DEEEETAR
HEBAERNEREE AT HHETIRNS
BHAR T ERARBELBERESE OF
ERHE70)FIRE -

RAFBFERE-—MBRFE  ARAE
EMERBEXRBRETMAMFHFHN - XAY
BERER E-—FRFEERN - AEBE T EE
ARREREEFHANREHFALENT—A
XNRENERMKE ESMAXKEK
MAREERNFE  RIE/SKREBA
fHE-

BHEGESHBRRE

HRAaMBBREAN_-_ZB_=F=A=+/\H
REZSHENMRETE -
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Financial Summary

HMEEaR

A summary of consolidated results and assets, liabilities and equity of the ANEEBEBERBEA B FENGEEZEIURE

Group for the last five financial years is set out below: E BEREZBEFHINNT:
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS RE¥E
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

—ET-N\F ZE-NF —TETF —T-_—F ZFB-Z
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFIT ARETIT ARETIT ARETT AR¥ETx

Revenue & 708,493 147,460 396,413 462,642 195,209
Income tax (expense)/credit  Fr {581 (B 52 ), W25 (10,386) 64,454 (2,240) (38,873) (31,875)
Profit/(loss) for the year FWEF(EE) 108,501 (261,414) (1,257) (30,038) (306,148)
Attributable to: AT FEA{h

Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE7F SN 107,720 (264,522) 1,064 (28,221) (306,368)
Non-controlling interests EE RS 781 3,108 (2,321) (1,817) 220

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIESAND &Z&8&8E SE8EEZR

EQUITY
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—E-N\F T NFE ZT-TFE —T-_—F 8=
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFTT AR®FTIT ARBTRT AR®TR
ASSETS =93
Non-current assets IERBEE 799,002 926,511 810,420 770,991 550,628
Current assets mEEE 1,370,646 925,343 743,960 728,627 629,170
Total assets BE®MTE 2,169,648 1,851,854 1,554,380 1,499,618 1,179,798
LIABILITIES =i
Non-current liabilities EMBEE 549,077 261,586 233,876 211,330 209,478
Current liabilities mEBE 140,622 365,175 118,588 116,697 104,022
Total liabilities BEQEE 689,699 626,761 352,464 328,027 313,500
EQUITY %
Equity attributable to owners 7K A & # A A JE1S
of the Company R 1,473,790 1,215,786 1,194,930 1,166,499 860,768
Non-controlling interests JEE RS 6,159 9,307 6,986 5,092 5,530
Total equity W 5 AR 1,479,949 1,225,093 1,201,916 1,171,591 866,298
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